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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Bison Finance Group Limited (formerly known as RoadShow
Holdings Limited BB AR AR *) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), I hereby present to our Shareholders
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017.

2017 was a remarkable year for the Group, the completion of the
unconditional mandatory cash offer (“General Offer”) represented
a milestone of the Group that it has not only strengthened the
development of the existing media and advertising businesses
(“Media Business”), but also facilitated the Group to explore
opportunities in financial services business (“Financial Services

Business”).

The Group will continue to carry on the Media Business and will
provide necessary resources and working capital to support its
sustainable development. Subject to the availability of suitable
investment or business opportunities, it is contemplating to
diversify the business of the Group by way of acquisition, joint
venture or investment, particularly into the financial service
sector in which myself, XU Peixin and Dr MA Weihua (a non-
executive director of the Company) have substantial experience,
with the view of broadening the source of income of the Group
and maximising the value of the Company in the long run and the

return of the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

On 27 October 2017, immediately following the completion of
the disposal of 728,127,410 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 73.01% of the entire issued share capital of

the Company as at the date thereof, by the former controlling
shareholder to Bliss Chance Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”)

* For identification purposes only
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pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 26 October
2017, Bliss Chance became the controlling sharcholder of the
Company. All the ordinary shares of Bliss Chance are wholly and
beneficially owned by Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited
(“Bison Capital”). Bison Capital is in turn wholly and beneficially
owned by myself.

On 12 December 2017, upon the close of the General Offer, Bliss
Chance held 750,978,005 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 75.30% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company as at the date thereof. Accordingly, following the close of
the General Offer, less than 25% of the issued share capital of the
Company (being the minimum prescribed percentage applicable to
the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)) were held by the public and the
Company did not satisfy the minimum public float requirement as
set out under Rule 8.08(I)(a) of the Listing Rules.

In order to assist the Company to restore its public float in
compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, Bliss Chance
has, through its placing agent, completed the disposal of 50,300,000
shares of the Company, representing approximately 5.05% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company as at the date thereof
(the “Disposal”), to independent investors on 19 December 2017.
Immediately after completion of the Disposal, a total of 296,687,327
shares of the Company, representing approximately 29.75% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company as at the date thereof,
were held by the public and Bliss Chance held 700,678,005 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 70.25% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company. As such, the public float of the
Company has been restored to not less than 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company in compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the
Listing Rules.
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RESULTS FORTHEYEAR

The Group recorded a loss after taxation of approximately HK$7.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, compared with a

loss after taxation of HK$42.1 million for the previous financial year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group reported

total operating revenue of HK$373.5 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 9.9% from that of the previous year.
Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$6.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, compared
with HK$45.3 million for 2016. The loss for the year was mainly
attributable to the reduction in revenue mainly due to the gradual
scaling down of the BUS-TV business which approached the
expiry of the related licence agreement with The Kowloon Motor
Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) on 30 June 2017 and net
off by exchange gain of approximately HK$12.3 million due to
the appreciation of the Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars and
net reversal of provision for onerous contracts of approximately

HK$13.9 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
The overall Hong Kong advertising spending (adspend) in the first

quarter of 2017 was only on par as the previous year, the 6% year
on year (YOY) growth in adspend in second and third quarters,
and the 5% YOY increase in the last quarter brought an overall 4%
increment in adspend in 2017. Although adspend started to pick
up from the second quarter of 2017, the outlook for the media
industry, out-of-home (OOH) media in particular, was still murky
as advertisers tend to be very cautious when deciding when and

where to place their marketing campaigns.

The Group’s revenue from advertising dropped amid keen

competition from the digital media and other OOH media vendors,

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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the ceasing of the BUS-TV business due to the reason stated in the
following paragraph and the expiry of the licence relating to the
billboard business. The Group has taken measures to streamline

its operations and reduce operating costs so as to increase its cost
efficiency. As a result, the Group’s performance for the year of 2017

was significantly improved as compared with last year.

Having reviewed the Group’s operations and considered the terms
included in the tender invitation issued by KMB for a new licence
relating to the BUS-TV business, the Group decided during the
year ended 31 December 2016 not to submit a tender for this new
licence, which would have succeeded the then existing licence

due to expire on 30 June 2017. As a result, the Group’s BUS-TV
business ceased with effect from 1 July 2017. The cessation of the
BUS-TV business will allow the Group to reallocate its resources to

other more profitable areas of its business.

On the other hand, KMB has exercised its option to extend the
term of the licence agreement in respect of the BUS-BODY and
BUS-INTERIOR advertising businesses for another 36 months
from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2020 (both dates inclusive) with all
other terms and conditions of the licence agreement remaining

unchanged.

Furthermore, in May 2017, the Group entered into a licence
agreement with KMB for the exclusive licence to place, install,
remove, maintain and/or repair advertisements at the advertising
space in the bus shelters of KMB for an initial term of 5 years
commencing from 1 July 2017 and ending on 30 June 2022 (both
dates inclusive), which may be extended for another 5 years from
1 July 2022 to 30 June 2027 (both dates inclusive), at the option
of KMB. This licence has succeeded the licence relating to BUS-
SHELTER advertising business jointly operated with JCDecaux
Cityscape Limited which expired on 30 June 2017. After the
commencement date of the licence agreement on 1 July 2017,
the Group has endeavored to elevate the perceived value of BUS-
SHELTER through continuously upgrading of the display panels,
enhancing the tidiness and cleanliness of the shelters in operation
and constantly providing effective and creative shelter domination

ideas to the advertisers and agencies.
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PROSPECTS

In the coming year, in relation to the Media Business, on one

hand, the Group shall continue to make new investments in

digital panels as 4-dimension interactive advertising platform at
bus shelters in Hong Kong which are expected to be launched by
stages in 2018 with target advertisers including, but not limited

to, commercial, government and NGOs to drive the growth of the
Media Business and to explore the possibility of business expansion
and collaboration with other entities should opportunities arise; on the
other hand, the Group will continue to closely scrutinise the costs and
expenses and to increase the cost efficiency of the media operation.

In addition to the existing business, the Group has entered into
the sale and purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Target Capital Management
Limited (“TCM”), BTS Investment Limited, BTY Investment
Limited, NanTai Investment Limited and Shangtai Asset
Management Limited (collectively, the “Subject Companies”) in
January 2018. A special general meeting of the Company will

be held on 16 March 2018, details of the transaction have been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23 January
2018 and circular dated 28 February 2018.TCM is a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to carry out type 1 (dealing

in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities and is principally engaged in (i)
external asset management and (ii) investment advisory services
to fund management businesses. The Subject Companies are the
fund manager/general partners of eight offshore private equity
funds. Upon completion of the transactions, the Group shall
engage in the financial services business carried out by TCM and
the Subject Companies and it is expected to form a new business
segment of the Group. According to the Fund Management
Activities Survey 2016 released by the Securities and Futures

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Commission of Hong Kong in July 2017, Hong Kong’s combined
fund management business reached HK$18,293 billion as of the end
of 2016; and HK$ 12,824 billion of which were contributed from
the asset management business of licensed corporations, registered
institutions and insurance companies. The People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) has a growing demand for fund management
expertise to manage its massive savings pool and rapidly expanding
retirement funds and is in close proximity with Hong Kong.
Considering the expected benefit from the strong demand of asset
management and fund management business in the PRC, the Group is
optimistic about the future prospects of the Financial Services Business.

Looking forward, the Company will strive to strengthen the Group’s
competence in managing the existing Media Business, formulate
plans to develop Financial Services Business, and identify and
consider other investment opportunities when they arise with an
attempt to maximise the Company’s value and shareholders’ returns.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its gratitude to all the staff for
their hard work and dedication and to thank all our shareholders,
clients and suppliers for their continuous support.

By Order of the Board

XU Peixin

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 March 2018
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Overall 4%
increment in Hong
Kong advertising
spending in 2017
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BUS-BODY is a highly creative and impactful
platform so the Group shall be benefited from
the success of our clients and be able to pursue
a steady growth.

Developed bus shelters will develop |
for advertising and 100 bus shelters

promotion purposes each year




OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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BUS-TV
In the first half year of 2017, BUS-TV continued to produce a broad

spectrum of programming that provided general infotainment,
entertainment and environmental news to market. Aimed at
celebrating the 20th anniversary of HKSAR, BUS-TV has self-
produced a series of programmes on the development of the HKSAR
after the transfer of sovereignty to the PRC, and they received
overwhelming positive response from the market. Commencing
from July 2017, the Group ceased the BUS-TV advertising business
as the license granted by KMB for this platform expired on 30 June
2017 and the Group did not submit a new tender after considering
its terms. The main reason to stop running BUS-TV business was
to reallocate the resources to other, more profitable, areas of the

Group’s Media Business.

BUS-BODY
BUS-BODY faced fiercer than ever competition in 2017. As agile

and responsive as always, we were able to implement a number of
initiatives and sales packages to tackle the challenges. Our already
strong existing client base with sustained progress in attracting new
partners further helped the BUS-BODY segment continue to remain
as one of the market leaders. In the up-coming 12 months, we shall
continue to maintain BUS-BODY as a highly creative and impactful
platform so that our clients can strengthen their appeal among
targets, and the Group shall be benefited from the success of our

clients and be able to pursue a steady growth.
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BUS-INTERIOR

Over the course of the financial year ended 31 December 2017, we
implemented many special measures to ensure BUS-INTERIOR
continued to be one of the top choices for advertisers and agencies
as one of the alternatives for Offline to Online marketing initiatives.
We further enhanced BUS-INTERIOR’s creativity and interactivity
via the leveraging of various state-of-the-art technologies. Specific
examples included Hong Kong’s first ever Augmented Reality (AR)
BUS-INTERIOR campaign for a leading department store operator.

BUS-SHELTER

Starting from 1 July 2017, the Company has expanded its business
to BUS-SHELTER advertising. BUS-SHELTER can accommodate a
diversity of advertising formats namely Static and Scrolling Premiere
Panel, Mega Panel, 4-Sheet, Shelter Top and Shelter Domination.
Evidencing to have 80% coverage of Hong Kong’s population, as at
31 December 2017, BUS-SHELTER ad service offered more than
380 developed bus shelters for advertising and promotion purposes.
In the coming years, the Group will develop 100 bus shelters each
year. Having operated BUS-SHELTER for half a year, advertisers
and agencies responded very satisfied with the effectiveness and
high creative flexibility of Shelter Domination at prominent
locations, which are able to provide platforms for interactive games
with customers and to amplify impact of the advertisements by
enhancing the brand awareness. BUS-SHELTER’s sizeable market
share and status as probably Hong Kong’s foremost out-of-home
(OOH) advertising specialist were also further strengthened, and
more importantly the perceived value of BUS-SHELTER has been
significantly boosted.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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BILLBOARDS

The Group has been granted sole and exclusive rights to several high-
profile outdoor advertising spaces which include the Aberdeen Tunnel
and Cheong Wan Road at Cross Harbour Tunnel entrance in Tsim Sha
Tsui. Rights granted for the advertising spaces at Hip Kee Godown No. 1
and No.2 expired in the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

888 LAB - INTEGRATED MARKETING
SOLUTIONS

Leveraging on our leading advertising network in Hong Kong, in June
2017, the Group established 888 Lab Limited (“888 LAB”), which
provides integrated marketing solutions for advertisers to connect

with customers effectively.

From creative solutions to branded marketing content, event
management, concert & entertainment, digital marketing solutions, PR
& Promotion, CSR & sustainability campaign, social listening and crisis
management, 888 LAB develops innovative ideas with human insights that

help to make every intercept to customers a powerful and impactful one.
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OPERATIONS UNDER CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

On 14 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Company incorporated
in the PRC (“WFOE”) entered into a series of structured contracts
(“Structured Contracts”) with the registered owners of Z215( X))
4= B8 #A PR 2 7] (Ankai (Tianjin) Economic Information
Consulting Limited") (formerly known as ZEL(K#E)IFER

2 7] (Ankai (Tianjin) Holdings Limited*)) (“Ankai”), which is the
direct sole sharcholder of 1t * g8 (R 48 42 5 PR A &) (China Sports

Insurance Broker Co., Ltd.") (“CSIB”), which engages in insurance

business relating to sports. As insurance business in the PRC is subject

to restrictions on foreign ownership under the prevailing laws,

regulations and practice in the PRC, the Structured Contracts allowed

the Group to gain control over the financial and business operations
of CSIB in the PRC and the Group is also entitled to the economic
interest and benefits of the operations, so as to optimise the Group’s
business structure. The financial results of CSIB (including the assets
and liabilities and revenue and profits) have been consolidated into
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group since 14
December 2017.

The information of CSIB and its registered
shareholders under the Structured Contracts

CSIB is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and
is primarily engaged in insurance business relating to sports in the
PRC. The sole registered sharcholder of CSIB is Ankai, which is a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The registered
sharcholder of Ankai are Mr JIANG Xiaolin (“Mr Jiang”) (holder
of 99% of the equity interests of Ankai) and Mr SHI Pengfei (“Mr
Shi”) (holder of 1% of the equity interest of Ankai) (together, the
“Registered Sharcholders”).

Summary of the major terms of the Structured
Contracts

The major terms of each of the Structured Contracts are set out as
follows:

(1) Loan Agreement

The WFOE agreed to provide a loan in the sum of
RMB 40,000,000 (i) to Mr Jiang and Mr Shi for the acquisition

of the entire equity interests of Ankai; and (ii) to Ankai to acquire

30% of the equity interest of CSIB so that upon completion
of the two acquisitions, Mr Jiang and Mr Shi shall become the
sharcholders of the entire equity interests of Ankai and Ankai
shall become the sole shareholder of CSIB.

“For identification purposes only

| Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017

BHRHERTNER

RIB—HF+ZA+MHA - RRFRP MK
B AR([IMNEBERE DEREB(RE)EERER
FABRARAELI(RR)ERERAR) (TR
BDRIZT —FIBEB A ([ HEBEEHN]) » wis
Rt RPRRERELERAR([FERR DO EEME
—R - MR RREREEEERABRRES - AR
BRERTER  EZRRER  PERBREBKAET
SNEHRBRERY - SRS NBRAEEESTRRR
HR B R M RS IEGIE  MAKETBESE
BRERBNEHEER R - em@EAREER
BRE BT —tF+-ATmAR  REREN
MBEE(BREENBEARBAREN)EHAR
SENEEZRE MRS

REABUESOTRARBRAZMBRRMN
&#

R A RN PEEMKINEREETAR - £
ERPENEEERBRRER - PRRR M —
AMBEERARE  ZEA—FKRHPEEMKRILINE
REFERR - ZIEOEMBR BT IMEENTE
(R 9% BEFBA) RABREE(AxLE])
(RIS 1% AR AN) (A [ FEMBER )

RBMSHNIERRREE
BRBUEANNIZEREIIAT

(1) EsktaE

SN A E B R EREAEA R 40,000,000 7T
MER ) PIIRERALYE  BEKEZRIEEE
BEHE i) RIS - LA AP BB IR B 30% IR AEE -
Hitt - REMIBWEE  ThAERAEEEK
BRIEEHRENRE - MEIEBKRAEPEBRR
HME— AR o



Mr Jiang, Mr Shi and Ankai shall repay the loan by way of
transferring the equity interests of Ankai and CSIB to the WFOE
or its designated entities when the WFOE could directly hold
all the equity interests of Ankai and CSIB directly under the
prevailing laws of the PRC.

The term of the loan agreement is 10 years from the date of
execution of the loan agreement and shall be extended for
another term of 10 years automatically unless mutually agreed by
both parties. The loan agreement will be terminated when the

respective obligations by each party to the agreement are fulfilled.

(2) Exclusive Technical Support and Service Agreement

The WFOE shall provide Ankai and its subsidiaries or associated
companies (including CSIB) exclusive technical support services,
including: (i) research and technical support; (ii) consultancy
services; (iii) on-the-job technical training services; (iv) provision
of licence in relation to intellectual property rights including
softwares, trademarks, domain names and technical secrets; and (v)
other services as agreed between the WFOE and Ankai. For services
provided by the WFOE, Ankai and its subsidiaries or associated
companies which have received the services shall pay to the WFOE
its net profits (after deducting all necessary amounts to be reserved
as required by law) as service fees. The WFOE is entitled to adjust
the service fees to be charged.

Furthermore, the WFOE is entitled to (i) make suggestions and
requirements as to the employment of operation and finance staff of
Ankai; (ii) the shareholders of Ankai and Ankai shall appoint directors
and senior management nominated by the WFOE as the directors
and senior management of Ankai; (iii) terminate the employment of
any senior management and directorship of any director. The WFOE
is granted access to the financial information of Ankai at any time.

The term of the exclusive technical support and service agreement is
10 years from the date of execution of the loan agreement. The term
of the exclusive technical support and service agreement could be
extended at the option of the WFOE and there is no limitation on the
number of extension of the term.

(3) Exclusive Call Option Agreement

The Registered Sharcholders and Ankai agreed to unconditionally
and irrevocably grant an exclusive right to the WFOE that insofar as
permitted under applicable PRC laws and regulations, they shall (i)
transfer their respective equity interests in the Ankai to the WFOE or
its designated entities; or (ii) transfer all or part of the assets of Ankai
at the lowest consideration as allowed under the laws of the PRC.
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In the event that consideration is required to be provided for such
transfer under relevant PRC laws and regulations, such consideration
shall be the minimum as permitted under applicable PRC laws and
regulations, and that insofar as permitted under applicable PRC laws
and regulations, the full amount of consideration received by or is
paid to the registered sharcholders of CSIB, shall be returned to

the WFOE or its designated entities. The registered sharcholders of
CSIB shall, upon request from the WFOE at any time, immediately
and unconditionally, transfer their entire equity interests in CSIB to
such representative(s) as nominated by the WFOE.

The exclusive call option agreement takes effect from the date of
execution of the loan agreement and will only be terminated by the
WFOE in writing,

(4) Power of Attorney

The Registered Sharcholders have irrevocably authorised an
exclusive authority to the WFOE:

(a) to convene shareholders meeting, participate in the shareholders'
meeting and to approve shareholders resolutions of Ankai;

(b) to exercise the sharcholders rights of Ankai including voting
rights, nomination rights and appointment rights;

() to file any documents required to be submitted by the
sharcholders of Ankai to government authorities;

(d) to be entitled to the dividend rights, power of sale or
transfer or pledging or disposal of the shares of Ankai held
by its registered holders, and the rights of distribution upon
winding up of Ankai; and

(¢) to be entitled to all sharcholders' right of Ankai.

The power of attorney takes effect from the date of execution
of the loan agreement and will be valid and effective during the
term of the exclusive technical support and service agreement.

) Equity Pledge Agreement

The Registered Shareholders agreed to pledge the entire equity
interests and additional registered capital of Ankai held and to be
held by the Registered Shareholders to the WFOE, as security
for the obligations under the loan agreement, exclusive technical
support and service agreement, exclusive call option agreement
and the power of attorney (collectively the “Transaction
Documents”). Under the equity pledge agreement, except with
prior written consent of the WFOE, the Registered Shareholders
are prohibited from transferring any of their equity interests in
Ankai, or creating or allowing any creation of any third party security
interests which may affect the rights and benefits of the WFOE.
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The equity pledge agreement takes effect from the date of execution
of the loan agreement and shall be terminated until the earliest of:

(i) fulfilment of all obligations under the Transaction Documents; (ii)

the lapse of the Transaction Documents; and (iii) termination of the
Transaction Documents.

Risks relating to the Structured Contracts

(1) There is no assurance that the Structured Contracts could comply
with future changes in the regulatory requirements in the PRC
and the PRC government may determine that the Structured
Contracts do not comply with applicable PRC laws, rules,
regulations or policies;

(2) The Structured Contracts may not be as effective in providing
control over and entitlement to the economic interests in CSIB as
direct ownership;

(3) Potential conflicts of interest among the WFOE, CSIB and the
registered shareholders of CSIB may exist;

(4) The equity pledge against the equity interest of CSIB under the
equity pledge agreement is subject to successful registration with
the relevant governmental authority to take effect; and

(5) The Structured Contracts may be subject to scrutiny of the PRC
tax authorities and additional tax may be imposed.

Nevertheless, the Company has obtained PRC legal opinion that

the Structured Contracts are not in contravention of the current
regulatory requirements in the PRC. Yet, the Company will continue
to monitor the relevant PRC laws and regulations relevant to the
Structured Contracts and will take necessary actions to protect the
Company’s interest in CSIB. The Company will also unwind the
Structured Contracts when the restrictions on foreign ownership
under the prevailing laws, regulations and practice in the PRC are
removed.

Measures taken to mitigate the risks

The Structured Contracts contain dispute resolution clauses that (i)
provided for arbitration and that arbitrators may award remedies over
the shares or assets of Ankai, injunctive relief or order the winding up
of Ankai; and (ii) provided the courts of competent jurisdictions with
the power to grant interim remedies in support of the arbitration
pending formation of the arbitral tribunal or in appropriate cases. The
courts in Hong Kong, the place of incorporation of Ankai and CSIB,
and the place where Ankai and CSIB’s principal assets are located have
been specified as having jurisdiction for this purpose.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
LUy ]

For the year ended 31 December
HE+-AZ+—RLLFE

Revenue WA 348,449 407,511
EBITDA RzHHIE ~ B\ ~ ITEREHATHZEF 3,427 (26,858)
Operating loss & 518 (1,337) (42,099)
Net loss B 1838 (7,527) (42,124)
Basic loss per share (HK cents) #REREE (GBL) (0.66) (4.54)

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 250,305 397,954
Total assets EE#AE 592,272 618,697
Total liabilities & R4 97,571 117,863
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders I RFE{E #E# ER 486,431 491,614

Cash (used in)/generated from operations (70,587) 47,673
(AR)/ RAKEZHHRS

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 30,294 69,515
RERASEFEWRMFR

Current ratio MBI L2 5.43 5.04
EBITDA margin Rzt A8 » BIR » fTERBHANBRIR 0.9% (6.5%)
Net loss margin FEHER (2.0%) (10.2%)
Debt-to-equity ratio BEEARLE 0% 0%
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RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group reported total

operating revenue of HK$373.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 9.9% from that of the previous year. Loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$6.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017, compared with HK$45.3 million for
2016.The loss for the year was mainly attributable to the reduction
in revenue mainly due to the gradual scaling down of the BUS-TV
business which approached the expiry of the related licence
agreement with KMB on 30 June 2017 and net off by exchange gain
of approximately HK$12.3 million due to the appreciation of the
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars and net reversal of provision
for onerous contracts of approximately HK$13.9 million. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had bank deposits and cash of HK$250.3
million (2016: HK$398.0 million).

OPERATING REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$373.5 million, of which HK$348.4 million
was from media sales services and HK$25.1 million was from

other revenue and other net income. Revenue generated from the
media sales services was HK$348.4 million in 2017 compared with
HK$407.5 million in 2016, representing a 14.5% decrease mainly
resulting from the expiry of the licences relating to BUS-TV and

billboard businesses.

OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group’s operating expenses decreased by HK$82.0 million,
from HK$456.8 million in 2016 to HK$374.8 million in 2017 as
aresult of the decrease in impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment by approximately HK$22.9 million, the decrease in
royalty, licence and management fees by approximately HK$11.6
million, the decrease in cost of inventories sold by approximately
HK$9.8 million following the expiry of a licence agreement on the
sale of merchandises and the net reversal of provision for onerous

contracts of approximately HK$13.9 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$Nil).

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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CASH FLOW

In 2017, the cash used in the operations of the Group was HK$70.6
million (2016: cash generated from the operations of HK$47.7
million). Payment for capital expenditure in 2017 amounted to
HK$7.2 million (2016: HK$11.6 million). The consolidated cash
flow statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 is
set out on pages 105 to 106 of this Annual Report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank deposits and cash amounted
to HK$250.3 million (2016: HK$398.0 million), denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. Apart from providing
working capital to support its media sales, the Group maintains

a strong cash position to meet the potential needs for business

expansion and development.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings. The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of bank
borrowings to the total share capital and reserves of the Group was 0%

at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had stand-by banking facilities
totalling HK$30.0 million (2016: HK$30.0 million).

At 31 December 2017, the Group had net current assets of
HK$429.0 million (2016: HK$475.4 million) and total assets of
HK$592.3 million (2016: HK$618.7 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2017, bank deposits of HK$98.2 million (2016:
HK$78.3 million) were pledged mainly to secure certain bank
guarantees provided by the subsidiaries of the Company to the
independent third parties regarding their due performance and
payment under certain licence agreements between the subsidiaries

of the Company and the independent third parties.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi.
During the year, the Company recognised an exchange gain of
approximately HK$12.3 million (2016: exchange loss of HK$9.5
million) due to the appreciation of the Renminbi against Hong Kong

dollars. During the year, there was no material fluctuation in the
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exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The Group did
not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any
financial instruments to hedge its financial position exposure in 2017.
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the unutilised amount of proceeds
from the Global Offering and the exercise of an over-allotment option
by the underwriters on 18 July 2001 were placed into bank deposits.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during 2017 amounted
to HK'$7.2 million (2016: HK$11.6 million). The amount of capital
expenditures incurred is shown in notes 11 and 12 to the financial

statements on pages 136 to 137 of this Annual Report.

Capital commitments contracted for but not provided for in the
financial statements of the Group at 31 December 2017 amounted to

HK$13.5 million (2016: HK$Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND POLICIES

The financial statements set out on pages 100 to 177 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules, all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICIES
At 31 December 2017, the Group had 122 full-time employees.

The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
and benefits package to all its employees. In addition, it offers a
performance bonus scheme to its senior staff based on achievement
of business objectives and a sales commission scheme to its sales team
based on achievement of advertising revenue targets. The Group has
adopted a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as

required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
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RoB—fF - ARELEEITENS R ESBTA
MRS IEETEASRIAP M BHRRER -
RoB—tFR-F-AFt-A=t+-B £-FF
—FL A\ BRBRREE R BN ERRBRE
& AR B TFIERITN -

BRI REREIE
AEBR-ZE—+FEENERFAS AB 7,200,000 7T
TN B 11,600,000 TT)° FTEEE KA AR E
FEHNAFERFBEEF B37TEMNMBREM T L
12

R-ZE—+F+_A=Z+—8 AEELTENAKE
BEREELBENCRITANENERRIEREE
13,500,000 JTT( —Z— /X &F BT L) »

HAREE

RZE—FRZE—RF+A=+—H K5£H
WA ERKAEE o

SEHERRBUR

BNE 100 BEEFE 177 BT METIRE ERAIE
BAFERT  BAEMASEMNITAERKE
BUBHREEN) (BBSHERRE - BEAR
ERAREB(RHERDE B RE MARE o

EE XS BUER
RZTFE—+tF+ZA=+—H0 xEEEH 1282
BEE AEEAHZEEERHTEMARS S
B RAERES o 1o AEETT AR ERMH
—IBLAENEE B AERARBICAE - WHE
EFMRE-IBNENESRA B EAERNHEER
S8l - REBEREBEGEHIERE S ENEHIHRR
E R EAESHEIHEERERESM -



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had the following

continuing connected transactions, details of which are set out below.

(i) The Group entered into the transaction with the following
connected party on 31 October 2014 as set out below. The

transaction constituted a continuing connected transaction

which is subject to reporting, announcement and independent

shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The details of the transaction and the

proposed annual caps were disclosed in the announcement of

the Company dated 31 October 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 12 December 2014. The transaction and the

proposed annual caps were approved at the special general

meeting by the independent sharcholders of the Company (the

“Independent Shareholders”) on 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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1) The Kowloon
Motor Bus Compan
(1933) Limited (“KMB”)
(Note 1)

nEELE(—h==

BRAR (ThE])

(FffeE1) display advertisements

Licence fee payable by Bus Power Limited
(“Bus Power”) (Note 2) to KMB in relation to
the grant of an exclusive licence by KMB
to Bus Power to market, install, display and
maintain advertisements on or at such parts
of exterior and interior areas and spaces of
the KMB buses on which Bus Power may

105,479 144,000

Bus Power Limited ([ Bus Power]) (Fi &£2) 5t 71
2 A1 Bus Power X B B - 8 - BR
N #5 B A5 7 LB B8 & A0 3D K B8 M I BF Bus
Power AJ B R E & BN B N 22 B T 5K B e i
FERNEX a0 E

Notes:

GEE

1. KMB is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary and an associate of Transport
International Holdings Limited (“TIH”). TIH was the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company up to 26 October 2017. As such, KMB was a
connected person of the Company up to 26 October 2017.

2. Bus Power is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

1.

NERFBERERERAR(HB)NEERL2EWB AR
BEA - BE_T—LFTAZTRA  FERLRTMNEK
RPERRAER - Et - BE-F—EFTAZ+RA AER
ARRMEEAL -

. Bus Power AARARIMEEEZENEAR
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(ii) The Group entered into the transaction with the following
connected party on 31 May 2017 as set out below. The
transaction constituted a continuing connected transaction which is
subject to reporting, announcement and independent sharcholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The details of the transaction and the proposed annual caps were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23 May 2017
and the circular of the Company dated 14 June 2017. The transaction
and the proposed annual caps were approved at the special general
meeting by the Independent Sharcholders on 30 June 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+HF+-A=1+—RBIL=FE

iy FAEBR-_Z—tFRA=+T—HETIIREEA

THETRS - RELTRIETHASZ RS
BRFERERS  AETHRE - XM B
RUAERTE - ZRHLEBFELROFBER
RRRAR-ZF—LFRA- T =B TIENRMH R
ARRR =T —EF XA+ EATIEARIAR
B-aXoshERFELRER T —tF A
=T ARBERFRIAS LB BRI E -

2) KMB Licence fee payable by Leader Force 12,094 21,500
= Limited (“Leader Force”) (Note 3) to KMB in
relation to the grant of an exclusive licence
by KMB to Leader Force to conduct media
sales agency and management in relation
to the KMB bus shelters for the purpose
of advertising, sponsorship or commercial

promotion

Leader Force Limited ([ Leader Force ) (FifzE
3)FEILE A Leader Force B BEBAR NLEER
TIRESETHEBHEREREERER

DAHEITES - BRI EHENBR TR

FEANE SRR B

Note:

3. Leader Force is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(i) The Group entered into the transactions with the following connected
parties on 12 November 2008 as set out below. The transactions
constituted continuing connected transactions which are subject to
reporting, announcement and independent sharcholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of
the transactions and the proposed annual caps were disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 28 November 2008. The transactions
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and the proposed annual caps were approved at the special general
meeting by the Independent Sharcholders on 15 December 2008.

The following transactions have been extended for the period from 1
August 2012 to 30 June 2017.The details of the extended transactions
and the respective proposed annual caps were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 3 July 2012 and the circular of
the Company dated 30 July 2012.The transactions and the proposed
annual caps in respect of the royalty fees payable, shortfall receivable,
the management fees payable and the sales rebate payable are subject to
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
and the respective proposed annual caps were approved at the special
general meeting by the Independent Sharcholders on 15 August 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-A=1+—HIFE

ENFT_ATEARBRRENAE LB K
RPLAE

NTRZGHPREE-ZE——FNA—HLERE
TE—+HFRA=TH - ERXSGREZEERE
FELROFBERARRANR-_ZE——F+tH=
BHZENRAEARRNR_T——F+tA=1H
TIBERBRARE - RELTRAUETTAZ
ZEXSGNARRNENE - BRTRE - BN
ERBENEMNEELHNEZRFR LRAETH
] AHRBIRRIERTE - ZEXHNEAR
EFFELRER T —Z-FNATHEARRE
FrRIRE DB AR RALAE

3) KMB
hBE

Royalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited (“Bus
Focus”) (Note 4) to KMB in connection with

the provision of media sales services for panels
installed at transit vehicle shelters owned by
KMB

8,982 14,000

Bus Focus Limited ([Bus Focus]) (&4 gt
ABNLEHEENREEWMRE=RBEEHER

BRRNEHENE

4) JCDecaux Cityscape Limited

Management fee payable by Bus Focus to

10,207 15,500

(“JCDecaux Cityscape”) (Note 5) JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the
EEEREAR AT ([/=5 R ]) provision of media sales services for transit

(Bit5ES)

vehicle shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus 3t 3 /LB E M ZEEMIRE =M
REHERBEARSRAINNERE

Notes:
4. Bus Focus is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a direct

40%-owned associate of Immense Prestige Limited (“IPL”). IPL is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of JCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong Limited (“JCDecaux CHK”).
5 JCDecaux Cityscape is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux CHK.

FieE

4.

Bus Focus B RN R A B E B BconEZMMWB AR ¥ A
Immense Prestige Limited (MPL)) B A 40% R HIBEZ R A o
IPLE]CDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong Limited ( ’—]CDecaux CHKJ) E"]
2EHBRA -

1%%’?'&1@&7,%]CDecaux CHK I ZEHEAR] o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_ZT—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5) JCDecaux Cityscape Sales rebate payable by Bus Focus to JCDecaux (615) 4,500
R Cityscape in connection with the provision of
media sales services for transit vehicle shelters

owned by KMB

Bus Focus St AN E#E N REBE G {RE =2
HEHERSERNEeREZAHHEER

6) JCDecaux Cityscape Shortfall of guaranteed rental receivable by 4,969 12,000
== R Bus Focus in connection with the provision
of media sales services for transit vehicle

shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus i B A M R IEH H(xE =24
HEEHE RIS R RFR SN T B

(iv) The Group entered into the transaction with the following
connected party on 31 October 2007 as set out below. The
transaction constituted a continuing connected transaction
which is subject to reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The details of the transaction and the proposed
annual caps were disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 21 November 2007. The transaction and the proposed
annual caps were approved at the special general meeting by the
Independent Shareholders on 10 December 2007. The details of

the annual caps in respect of the licence fee and service charges
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payable by RoadShow Media Limited (“RoadShow Media”)
under the following transaction for the three years ended 31
December 2010, 2011 and 2012 were disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 17 September 2009 and the annual caps
were approved at the special general meeting by the Independent
Shareholders on 9 October 2009.

The following transaction has been extended for the period from
1 August 2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the extended
transaction and the proposed annual caps were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 March 2012 and the
circular of the Company dated 18 April 2012. The transaction
and the proposed annual caps in respect of the licence fee and
service charges payable by RoadShow Media under the following
transaction for the five years ended 31 December 2013, 2014,
2015, 2016 and 2017 are subject to the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction and the
proposed annual caps were approved at the special general
meeting by the Independent Sharcholders on 14 May 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+F+-A=1+—HIEE

([RoadShow Media]) 5L B A T2 5 FE 5 B0 45 5 B
MIRBENFE LROFBERARAR-ZE
NEAATERTEBRARE  ZFFEL
RER-_ZTEAF+ANBRERERIAE L&
B AR SR ©

NTRGWHREE_E——F N \A—HALRE
ZE—tFRAZTH -TERXRZREHRFE
FROFEEREARRRZE—_F=A+<H
HEOAERARTR-_ZE——FmMA+NB T
BEHBNAEE - IRIE ETRMNETHAT - %
REREBE-_T—=F - ZF—NOF - —_F—h
FE-RERZEEFHZA=+—AL
T FF JZ RoadShow Media Fi A T2 5 R RO R &
MBRBEBENEEFE LR - BAETHE - 2R
BYRRAERTE - ZRXHREZFEERER
CE-—HFRRATHARKRENARE FEEY
AR AL ©

7) KMB

Licence fee, service charges and rental

10,942 54,000

nBe expenses payable by RoadShow Media (Note

6) to KMB in connection with the

granting

of an exclusive licence to conduct BUS-TV
Advertising on KMB’s transit vehicles fitted
with the multi-media on board broadcasting

system

RoadShow Media (Kt 6) SLIER B R B F i1
EERDZEERERGANNERESH -
ETETERESERERNE TR

g REBLRES

Note:

6. RoadShow Media is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

it -
. RoadShow Media BANA BIMEZE 2 ENE R E]
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For each of the continuing connected transactions as set out in (i),
(i), (ifi) and (iv) above, the Group has complied with the respective
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions as set out in (i), (ii), (iii)

and (iv) above, which were entered into by the Group, are:

*  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

*  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third

parties; and

*  inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with Listing
Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Since the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange, the Group
has utilised approximately HK$488.2 million for the development
of, and the purchase of equipment for use in, the BUS-TV and

other advertising business and for the acquisition of complementary
businesses in Mainland China. The balance of the proceeds, which has
not been utilised, has been deposited with licensed banks in Hong

Kong.
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Executive Director I{TEE

Mr Xu, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 21 November 2017. He has more than 10 years of
corporate executive management and investment cxpcricncc.
From June 2005 to June 2012, Mr Xu was a venture partner

of New Enterprise Associates (Beijing), Ltd., one of the group
companies of New Enterprise Associates, Inc. which is a venture
capital firm. He was primarily involved in designing and executing
investment strategies in the retail and healthcare industries. Mr
Xu also served as a director of AirMedia Group Inc., a NASDAQ
Stock Market-listed company and a leading operator of out-of-
home advertising platforms in the PRC, which operates digital
TV screens in 37 airports and digital frames in 32 airports and
providing advertisements on airline routes, as well as operating
traditional media platforms such as billboards, lightboxes and
LED screens, from September 2013 to December 2016. Mr Xu
founded Bison Capital Holding Company Limited, which is an
investment holding company specialised in investments in the
media and financial industries, and has been an executive director
since December 2013. In May 2010, Mr Xu was nominated as a
chief committee member of the Expert Committee of the APEC
E-Commerce Business Alliance.

AL W+-R"E RZBE—tF+—A=+—
HEZERAARRTES  FELRITHER
ERETHEEBTFZEERR - FAELER
TERRFRAECTE-—FRNAHPBEEENew
Enterprise Associates (Beijing), Ltd. (B—AIxEE QT
New Enterprise Associates, Inc. By H ':P —HEE QA )
MEIEERA - REERZENMBREREITERSE
REMAITIRE R - REENBER T —=FN
RE-Z-—RFT-_AHHEEEMEEEEEAR
ANANEE  WRARRKTERZFRH M TR
RPBEBRENPIMEELR - HRIN 37 E#EL R
32 BRISRBBISERFERBISHE  REME
MEES  UKEEEFR  BANRLEDETFERE
%{ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%?é o R B T Bison Capital Holding
Company Limited ~ —HEZERFHEBNERERE
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Non-Executive Director JEHITESE

Dr Ma, aged 69, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 21 November 2017. He was the former president

of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd from 2004 to 2013 and served
as its executive director and chief executive officer from 1999 to
2013. Dr Ma formerly served as the chairman of CIGNA & CMC
Life Insurance Company Limited, and served as the chairman of
Wing Lung Bank Limited from 2008 to 2015. He was an adjunct
professor of the School of Economics and Management of Tsing
Hua University, the PRC from 2006 to 2009. Dr Ma is currently a
member of the 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”). He was a deputy

to the 10th National People’s Congress from 2003 to 2008 and a
member of the 11th National Committee of the CPPCC from 2008
to 2013. In addition, he is currently the chairman of National Fund

for Technology Transfer and Commercialisation.

Dr Ma is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 670 and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code: 600115) since October 2013, Postal Savings Bank of
China Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code: 1658) since December 2013, Legend Holdings Corporation

(a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 3396)
since June 2015 and China World Trade Center Co. Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600007)
since August 2014. He was previously an independent non-executive
director of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 386 and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange with stock code: 600028) from May 2010 to May
2015, China Resources Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 1109) from July 2013 to June 2017,
Winox Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code: 6838) from June 2011 to March 2015 and Guotai
Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code: 2611 and the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock
code: 601211) from January 2013 to May 2016.
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Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer I{TEE RITHAE

Mr Bian, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director and

the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 8 February 2018.
He has more than 20 years of experience in commercial banking,
investment banking and corporate finance. From 2013 and up until
joining the Company, he acted as a managing director and a co-head
of the financial products division (the “Financial Products Division”)
in BOCI Securities Limited (“BOCI Securities”), a leading Chinese
institution, and was responsible for the business development and
the management of the Financial Products Division which provides
the services of debt capital markets, fixed income sales and trading,
credit research and structured products. From 2005 to 2013, Mr
Bian worked in BOCI Securities and served as a managing director
and the deputy head of the Financial Products Division. Mr Bian
obtained a master of business administration from Murdoch
University, Australia in February 2002.

TEE AT RZE—N\F_ANBEZEA
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Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer IITEER EENKE

Mr Zhu, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 13 December 2017.
He has more than 23 years of experience in accounting, corporate
finance and advisory services. Mr Zhu was previously the chairman
and executive director of AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 260) from
December 2015 to November 2017 and an executive director

of Peace Map Holding Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 402) from December 2012 to October
2017. He previously acted as the deputy chief financial officer of
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 232) from January 2011 to
January 2016, he acted as the deputy chief accountant of AVIC
International (HK) Group Limited. Mr Zhu obtained a master’s
degree in accounting from Capital University of Economics and
Business of the PRC in August 1998 and a bachelor degree in
accounting from Xiamen University, the PRC in July 1994, and is
a senior accountant.
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Independent Non-Executive Director BIAFHTES

Dr Qi, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) and a member of the Company’s remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”). He is a professor of
accounting and former associate dean of Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business (“CKGSB”) in Beijing, the PRC. He began
teaching in CKGSB in 2002 and was the founding director of the
executive master of business association programme. His primary
research interests are in financial accounting and reporting as well

as profit manipulation by management of listed companies.

Dr Qi received his degree of doctor of philosophy in business
administration from Michigan State University in 1996, master
of business administration degree from the University of Hawaii
at Manoa in 1992 and bachelor of science and arts degrees from
Fudan University, the PRC in 1985 and 1987 respectively.

Dr Qi is currently an independent director of Sohu.com Inc.

(a company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: SOHU)) since 2005,
iKang Healthcare Group, Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ
(Symbol: KANG)) since 2014 and Momo Inc. (a company listed
on NASDAQ (Symbol: MOMO)) since 2014, an independent
non-executive director of SinoMedia Holding Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 623) since May
2008, Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 3303) since July 2015 and
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 376) since February 2016. Dr Qi

was previously an independent non-executive director of Dalian
Wanda Commerecial Properties Co., Ltd. (a company which was
delisted from the Stock Exchange in September 2016 with stock
code: 3699) from January 2016 to September 2016 and Honghua
Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 196) from January 2008 to December 2017, and an
independent director of Bona Film Group Limited (a company
which was delisted from NASDAQ in April 2016 (Symbol:
BONA)) from December 2010 to April 2016.
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Independent Non-Executive Director BAFHTES

Mr Chen, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He is
currently a director and president in Link Motion Inc. (Symbol:
LKM), a smart car and smart ride company, whose shares are
listed on the New York Stock Exchange. He is also a partner in
PacGate Law Group, a law firm in the PRC. Mr Chen obtained
a bachelor degree in biochemistry in the Peking University, the
PRC in 1992, and he obtained a degree of jurisdoctor in the
University of Towa, the United States of America in 1998.

Mr Chen is currently an independent director of Ambow
Education Holding Ltd. (a company whose shares are traded in
the over the counter markets of the United States of America
(Symbol: AMBOY)) since March 2013 and a director of Link
Motion Inc. (a company listed on New York Stock Exchange
(American depositary shares) (Symbol: LKM)) since February
2016. He was previously an independent director of Link Motion
Inc. from July 2014 to February 2016.

Independent Non-Executive Director BAFHTES

Mr Feng, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He was previously a
director of AirMedia Group Inc. from May 2011 to December 2016,
and served as chief operating officer with respect to certain affiliated
entities of AirMedia Group Inc. from October 2005 to December
2016. Mr Feng received an executive master of business association

degree from Peking University, the PRC in 2009.

The Executive Directors of the Company are also members of the

senior management of the Group.
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the year to reach out to as many groups of

C O M M U N ITY people as possible.
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E N ‘ 7 I R O N M E |> | T A L Our active participation in positive community-
wide activities demonstrates our commitment to
C O M MIT MEN T S being a socially responsible corporate citizen.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Scope of this Report

This is the annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of Bison Finance Group Limited (formerly known as RoadShow
Holdings Limited JEBIZIRE R A 7 *) (the “Company”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017. This report provides information
on the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) issues and
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). It
covers our Hong Kong operations which represent the majority of
the Group’s investments and businesses, and our most significant
environmental and social impacts and influence are from our media
sales, design and management services, and advertising production.
For more details of our businesses, please refer to the Operational
Review on pages 9 to 15 of this Annual Report.

This report should be read in conjunction with the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 56 to 80 of this Annual Report.

Reporting Standards

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social

and Governance Reporting Guide (“HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”)
as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions
contained in the HKEx ESG Reporting Guide for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The HKEx ESG Guide Content Index that refers to the relevant
information contained in this report is set out in the Appendix to

this report on pages 49 to 55.

" For identification purposes only
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Feedback to this Report

If you have any feedback and suggestions about this report, please

contact us at: cosec(@bison.com.hk.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We have reviewed our operations to identify the ESG issues relevant
to the Group. Subsequently, the identified ESG issues have been
assessed by considering their importance to our stakeholders as well
as the Group based on the results of the stakeholder engagement

conducted last year. The ESG issues considered to be material are

listed below:
List of material issues

ESG Aspects
BiE - HEBRERER

Operating practices

ZEED

HAHEEE

mEAREETMNRERER FEBE

cosec@bison.com.hk LABSE 48 F AP ©

EEMFE

BAE BRI RMOES - LB EAKERENR
B HEREAREE - ER BBARBEEFESNE
BROER  BEMBMNNERE HEREAEEY
AEBENFHERAEENEEHHZEEEEL
ff o WRBEANIRE - HERERFEHIMT -

BEEEHE

Issues
=5

Protection of consumer data and privacy

REBEEEER RALE
Product/Service quality
Em /RiEE e

Customer service

P R%

Protection of intellectual property
rights

(RIS AR EEHE

Supply chain management
HEEEE

Anti-corruption practices

RESBER

Employment and labour practices

BIEMSBTER

Labour standard
B TR
Workforce and turnover

BERESRKLE

Occupational health and safety
B ESicdeb e
Development and training

R RIF

Community

e

Community investments

HREE

Environmental
RIE

Waste management and reduction
initiatives

EEEYEIR RRKEE SRR
Material use and efficiency

P EHE PR B (o8 PR Ak

Energy consumption and efficiency
initiatives

BETROHRE M (6 A R et vt 3
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ABOUT THE GROUP

Our Business

The Company is a listed public company in Hong Kong with a
history of 17 years. Headquartered in Hong Kong, the Group was
principally engaged in the provision of media sales, design services
and production of advertisements for transit vehicle exteriors
(“BUS-BODY?) and interiors (“BUS-INTERIOR?), shelters (“BUS-
SHELTER”), Multi-media On-board (“MMOB” or “BUS-TV”), online
portal, mobile apps and outdoor signage advertising business for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The Group also offered integrated

marketing services covering these advertising platforms.

Having reviewed the Group’s operations and considered the terms
included in the tender invitation issued by The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) for a new licence relating to
the BUS-TV business, the Group decided during the year ended 31
December 2016 not to submit a tender for this new licence, which
would have succeeded the then existing licence due to expire on 30
June 2017. As a result, the Group’s BUS-TV business ceased with
effect from 1 July 2017.

Furthermore, in May 2017, the Group by itself entered into a licence
agreement with KMB for the provision of bus shelter advertising
agency services to KMB for an initial term of 5 years commencing
from 1 July 2017 and ending on 30 June 2022 (both dates inclusive),
which may be extended for another 5 years from 1 July 2022 to 30
June 2027 (both dates inclusive), at the option of KMB. This licence
has succeeded the licence relating to bus-shelter advertising business
jointly operated with JCDecaux Cityscape Limited which expired on
30 June 2017.
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ESG Strategy and Policy

The Group is committed to a high standard of corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”). It focuses on minimising the impact of
our operations on the environment and promoting environmental
awareness among employees and the public. We believe that the
Group can play a positive role in the development of the local
community through our community investment. We treat all
employees with fairness and respect, and facilitate their career

development.

The following ESG policies guide the Group’s business and

operational decisions, and deliver our commitments:

* meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on CSR

matters
°  pursuing good CSR practices in our operations
°  minimising the Group’s potential impact on the environment
°  promoting environmental awareness among employees and the public

°  minimising its carbon footprints through efficient use of

resources and employing green office initiatives
°  providing a safe and healthy working environment to employees

e supporting our partncring non govcrnmcntal organisations

(“NGOs”) and charitable organisations to help the needy

°  engaging our stakeholders and taking into account their interests

to achieve sustainable business growth

ESG Prospects

The Group will continue to improve its CSR performance and
actively pursue environmental sustainability. In particular, we will
adopt new and innovative measures in handling material issues
concerned by our stakeholders, including waste reduction and

intellectual property rights protection.

We will keep up with our work to give back to the society,

and continue supporting our partnering NGOs and charitable
organisations to help those in need. Moreover, we understand the
importance of communication in our approach towards sustainability.
We will keep leveraging our business edge to promote social and

environmental awareness.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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ESG HIGHLIGHTS IN 2017

Environmental Initiatives and Awards

World Green Organisation (WGO)’s United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals — Green Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace
Awards Labelling Scheme 2017

Participated in World Wide Fund (WWF)’s Earth Hour 2017

Participated in Greeners Action’s Lai See Reuse and Recycling

Programme 2017

Social Initiatives and Awards

Cooperated with Agency For Volunteer Service to organise “The
7th Hong Kong Volunteer Award” and organised “Caring Hearts”
Volunteer Activities, including:

— Easter Party for Youth-Elderly
—  Fun Day for Kids with Disability

—  Luncheon for Families with Physically Disability

Supported Orbis World Sight Day 2017

Supported The Community Chest of Hong Kong — Dress
Causal Day 2017

Our Industrial Participations

Affiliated Member of the Association of Accredited Advertising
Agencies of Hong Kong (HK4As)

Participated as a Silver Sponsor of HK4As Kam Fan Awards to

recognise the best advertising works in the market

Membership in Sub-Committee on Promotion & Publicity of
Volunteer Service for Volunteer Movement in the Social Welfare

Department

Membership in Promotion and Fundraising Committee for
Agency for Volunteer Service
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OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance Structure

The Group recognises the importance of good corporate governance
practices in directing and guiding the Group using professional

and ethical business practices. Our capable Board of Directors

(the “Board”), effective risk management and internal control
systems, and dedication to accountability and transparency with our
sharcholders are core elements of our governance principles. We aim
at achieving sustainable business development by taking into account
the interests of our stakeholders while ensuring that our business

is conducted in compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory

requirements.

Our Board is responsible for the success and sustainable development
of the Group. The Board provides direction and gives approval on
matters concerning the Company’s business strategies, policies and
plans, while the day-to-day business operations are delegated to the

Executive Directors.

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. For details of the Board and the Board Committees,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 56 to 80
of this Annual Report.

Code of Conduct

We set high standards of professionalism and ethicality for our
Directors and employees in order to maintain our position as

a top-performing media company in Hong Kong. Our Code of
Conduct provides guidance on responsibility towards the Group’s
sharcholders, customers and the community. It sets out the rules
and policies on conflicts of interest, procurement and tendering
procedures, confidentiality of information, bribery and corrupt

practices, and equality of employment opportunity.

All Directors and employees are required to abide by our professional
standards and comply with our Code of Conduct. Any member in

breach of the Code of Conduct is subject to disciplinary action.
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Anti-corruption Measures

We are committed to providing a fair and efficient business and
working environment for all of our employees. It is the Group’s
policy to prohibit bribery and corrupt practices. The Group
complies with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and will act
without delay if any legal proceeding arises. Our Code of Conduct
describes all types of anti-corruption practices, such as bribery and
money laundering in detail so as to avoid any misunderstanding by our
employees and prepare them to react accordingly. It also recognises
employees’ rights and obligations to report any related cases. In 2017,

there were no incidents of corruption reported within the Group.

OUR EMPLOYEES

People are our most valuable asset. Our dedicated employees are the
keys to success. The Group ensures that our employees are well taken
care of through adopting policies that aim at developing their skills to
maximum potential, maintaining their health and safety, upholding
our equal opportunities principle, and maintaining a safe working

environment for all.

People

We are an employer that provides equal employment opportunities.
Employment, recruitment, training, terms of employment, benefits,
promotions are offered regardless of the individual’s race, sex, marital
status, pregnancy, disability or family status. Our non-discrimination
commitment is demonstrated by our Equal Employment
Opportunity Policy to ensure employees are treated equally and
fairly under all circumstances. Our policy is fully compliant with the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance
and Family Status Discrimination Ordinance. Complaints or cases
of discrimination can be directly reported to the Head of Human
Resources & Administration. A thorough investigation will be run,
with appropriate follow-up actions to department head/immediate

supervisor and the staff involved.

We also have a firm belief in providing a harassment-free working
environment. As such, we have adopted the Elimination of Sexual
Harassment Policy in accordance with the Sex Discrimination

Ordinance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group is in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations relating to compensation

and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and

other benefits and welfare, including the Employment Ordinance,
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance and Family Status

Discrimination Ordinance.

Our emphasis on integrity is reflected in a firm commitment to
uphold the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, which specifies that
neither employees nor Directors shall accept any advantages without

the permission of the Company.

As a service provider, we also devote ourselves to protecting the
privacy of all staff, including their personal data, and treat all

information in the strictest confidence.

With our clear policy and dedicated efforts, no cases of child or

forced labour has been recorded in our operations.

At the end of 2017, the Group had a total of 122 full-time employees, 92
employees were located in Hong Kong while the rest were in the PRC.

Statistic of workforce in Hong Kong
Total number of workforce by gender

REBIE S NESEH
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Keeping Our People Healthy and Safe

Occupational health and safety

We are committed to ensuring our staff’s health and safety, as they
are integral to our smooth operation. As part of our commitment,
we provide a good and safe working environment for our staff, and
comply with all occupational health and safety laws in Hong Kong
that are relevant to us. In 2017, there were no records of work-
related incidents causing fatalities or injuries, nor lost days due to

work injury or occupational diseases.

Sexual Harassment

Our staff are well-protected from all forms of sexual harassment
with our policy. As stated under the Sex Discrimination Ordinance
with which we are compliant, sexual harassment at work is unlawful
and prohibited and have the right to complain or report any cases of
workplace sexual harassment. Complaints or reports will be directed
to the Head of Human Resources & Administration and will be
followed by a thorough investigation and appropriate action. All cases
will be treated in the strictest confidence, and the complainant will
not be victimised or penalised. This demonstrates our motivation in

providing a safe and favourable work environment for all.

Keeping Our People Happy

Compensation and Benefits

Further to our commitment to staff's well-being, we ensure that
they get sufficient leave as suggested by Hong Kong labour laws.
They are entitled to one rest day every seven days, as required by
the Employment Ordinance. They also enjoy more holidays than the
statutorily required holidays (i.e. 12 days).

In addition, we have special arrangements that enable our staff to
leave work early on special occasions, such as Mid-Autumn Festival,
Christmas Eve and Chinese New Year’s Eve, allowing them to spend
more time with their families and loved ones. Our newly married staff

are also entitled to enjoy ten calendar days of marriage leave.

By organising staff-friendly activities, we aim at promoting staff
relationships and effective communication to foster a good working
environment. Encouraged by the very promising results of previous

events, we intend to continue holding such activities in the future.
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Remuneration

We have a systematic process to ensure staff are paid in a timely and
regular manner. Our remuneration structures aim at rewarding staff
after taking into account of the abilities and performance of each
individual. Our staff members are also cligible for the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (MPF), allowing them to make their own
investment choices that would directly benefit them after retirement

(after turning 65 or retiring after the age of 60).

Keeping Our People Educated and Trained

Development and Training

We are committed to developing our staff and enhancing their
skills and knowledge so that they contribute fully to the growth and
success of the Group. We provide development opportunities and
programmes which are challenging and participative in nature to

hone our staff’s professional and personal skills.

In 2017, all staff received a total of 148 hours of training through

attending both internal and external training courses.

OUR COMMUNITY

The Company believes it is important to proactively contribute to our
pany p P y

local communities and maximise the effectiveness of our activities. We

organised various activities throughout the year to reach out to as many

groups of people as possible. As part of our inclusion and diversity

principle, the nature of our activities differs one from the next,

demonstrating our flexibility in organising such events, and our enthusiasm

in learning more about the different and complex needs of our society.

Giving back to Our Local Community

Our active participation in positive community—wide activities
demonstrates our commitment to being a socially responsible
corporate citizen. We always try our best to properly address the
community’s needs through our events. In addition, we encourage
our clients and their staff to be responsible citizens through
organising a myriad of CSR initiatives, spreading our vision down the
value chain. Some of the events organised or sponsored this year are

as follows:
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* Agency For Volunteer Service “Caring Hearts” Volunteer
Activities
As the campaign co-organiser, we organised a series of “Caring
Hearts” Volunteer Activities such as Easter Party for Youth-
Elderly, Fun Day for Kids with Disability and Luncheon for
Families with Physically Disability. More than 300 beneficiary

individuals participated in the volunteer activities.

* Pet Adoptathon 2017

A campaign organised by The Society for the Prevention of
Cruelty to Animals (SPCA) that brings together animal welfare
organisations across Hong Kong to find second chances for
deserving animals. We support the campaign by sponsoring them

with an advertisement placement on our BUS-TV platform.

*  SPS Charity Walk 2017

Suicide Prevention Services (SPS) aims to help people who are
suicidal to relieve their distress or despaire and regain their will
to live on. We supported the campaign by sponsoring them with

an advertisement placement on our BUS-TV platform.

* Sowers Action Ancient Teahorse Route Expedition for
Education 2017

Sowers Action aims to promote education development in
China. We supported the campaign by sponsoring them with an

advertisement placement on our BUS-TV platform.

In 2017, we took part in a series of “Caring Hearts” Volunteer
Activities such as Easter Party for Youth-Elderly, Fun Day for Kids
with Disability and Luncheon for Families with Physically Disability.

Our participation contributed 56 service hours.

In addition, the Company has charitable contributions totaling
HK$400,000 in 2017.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group understands the implications of climate change for the
entire world and our indirect impact on the environment through the
services we provide to customers. We include principles of sustainable
development in all aspects of our operations to reduce our impact on
the planet as much as possible. Looking ahead, we are moving towards the

direction of environmental sustainability in all aspects of our operations.
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Natural Resources

The Group is committed to raising the public awareness of
environmental conservation, while reducing our own carbon
footprint through various means. We are continuously looking for
innovative ways to showcase the consequences of climate change,
while keeping some of our more successful initiatives. We were deemed
by the WGO as one of the pioneers in raising environmental awareness in
the media industry. On top of that, we are constantly looking for ways to
implement more sustainable practices in our offices to further reduce

our overall environmental impact.

Adpvertising Sticker and Paper Usage
EEERERAE

f[][][][][l[ﬂ

2017

106,472

X A 2016 )
©) ©) 116,049 2~

-

Sticker for BUS-BODY, BUS-INTERIOR and Billboards
Btr&s  BrERERESRIK

Emissions

We are acutely aware of the need to reduce our production of
greenhouse gases. This prompts us to employ green office initiatives
and use our resources efficiently. We will proactively explore
different ways in reducing carbon emissions in the future. The

operations of the Group do not involve discharge of the air and

greenhouse gas emissions (other than greenhouse gas emission arising

from the use of electricity), discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. The conversion of
the amount of greenhouse gas emissions from the use of electricity is

around 110 tonnes'.

Remark:

1. Greenhouse gases emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and
was based on the carbon emission factor for electricity purchased references
information released by CLP Holdings Limited.
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Recycling Our Waste El U EEEY)

In order to minimise the amount of waste produced, the Group BEMEEBREVEERERE - NEBEREWLE
actively recycles paper, plastic bottles, aluminum cans, fluorescent iR B 38 ORE  MNEREFEED - R
light tubes, toner cartridges and electronic waste. The amount of T FRPHEEYEEEETAT

recycled waste in 2017 was estimated as below:

Recycled EBIK

2017 2016
Paper waste recycled FrEl Y EE AR o 1,497 kg/ N i 1,056 kg/ A FT
Fluorescent light tube waste recycled ~ FEISEER S E 0 pes/ X 48 pes/ %
Plastic waste recycled FrlEl Y Bz 22 28 2 796 pcs/ 1@ 720 pes/ &
Aluminum waste recycled Pl i B S S 720 pcs/ {8 240 pes/ &
Toner cartridge waste recycled FriEl e EEE i & 64 pes/ @ 127 pes/ {8
Electronic waste recycled Frel & FEEZE Y 11 computers/ AEM 19 computers/ & B

6 printers/ AITENH# 7 printers/ & 47T E[J i
11 monitors/ EFR% 15 monitors/ &5 %=

7 Macs/ & Mac B
Conserving Our Energy and Water RERERRKER
We devote ourselves to energy conservation as is well-demonstrated BB NIRERR - MiEFEAS ISR IN
by our use of more energy-efficient LED lights and our active Ehe o BIE(E A B B AR A LED B K B IR 8
participation in WWF Earth Hour 2017. Electricity consumption HREARESGHIR—/NEF 2017 « FPYF A RZHEE
accounts for most of our energy use. We will continuously look for JFRE - BB eBES KRR R aREN
ways to improve our performance in energy efficiency. Fik e

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type

RERESNWEER SEEERER

Total electricity consumption (MWh) RIEEE(JKER) 203.58 220.61
Our motivation in environmental sustainability has driven us to BMESRESIREIFERR A eRBERAKE
continuously improve water efficiency and reduce water consumption. TR S R REK o

Water consumption in total and intensity

RIEKEREE
Total water consumption (cubic metre) #BFE/K& (3277K) 173.92 240.98

2017 3k ERSBMEEER A
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Environmental Commitments RIREH

As part of our commitments, we regularly support events organised ERBRIRFGEN R BMMEAFHRRIEEIE

by environmental or social NGOs. Our support aims at enhancing BTSRRI RES) - SEE B B B2 HIRRIEEIE
awareness and allowing our employees to participate in these events. SIRIREM ©

*  WWF - Earth Hour 2017

We are active supporters in numerous meaningful local green
events. In particular, we sponsored the WWF — Earth Hour
airtime for promoting this internationally popular event, and
showed post-event coverage of the occasion in our full-flect buses
for seven days. Additionally, the lights of our billboards at Hip
Kee Godown No. 2, Cheong Wan Road, and Aberdeen Tunnel

were switched off to show our support for the worthy cause.

*  WGO - Green Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards
Labelling Scheme 2017

Apart from social initiatives, we also play our part in
environmental conservation within our offices. Various green
office practices and initiatives have been employed to raise
awareness among our staff, and hence reduce our overall carbon
footprint. Our environmental efforts were honoured by the
WGO's United Nations Sustainable Development Goals — Green
Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards Labelling Scheme.

¢ Greeners Action — Lai See Reuse and Recycling Programme
& Amazing Greeners 2017
We supported the two campaigns organised by Greeners Action

by sponsoring them with an advertisement placement on our
BUS-BODY and BUS-SHELTER platforms.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017

HRABRESE — IR— 2017

BATESRNTH A ERFEERNREE
o EBEEENE RMEHTHRERESS
— W ENEEHRAEREFERES
WHSE B R EE R AR ECS L EFE R B R
Boppsh BABLURNHLER KA  BE
BREEFRENESRGE  ATEHERE
BEEBARHIRREE

HtRECHAS - SFERLERBREIEEER
5T #2017

B2 |y ERITHREEIN - RPITRAEERA
ERHETRR - Blem B TEN - BIEEERE
) BMEBEITTZEGENRAEEREBER - M
EHEME NERMEET R EAMNES R
AHEHEEE HeR A ERERIIEMER
Tl

BEATEH - ARHEOBERRTHRRETE
2017
BMEREDGRTHECLTEFRELHGES
FENBRS  FHEETHETNENERL
5 o



OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Responsible Procurement

We aim at keeping strict procurement practices so as to ensure the
utmost quality of our supply chain and reduce any supply chain
management risks. In 2017, we engaged a total of 250 suppliers solely
from Hong Kong, By purchasing the products and services that we
need locally, our Group reduces the carbon emissions associated with

transport and shipping.

Our Group has established long-term and good relationship with the
suppliers which ensures steady supply so as to provide high quality

products and services to customers.

Supply Chain Management

Quality Assurance

Delivering topfquality service to customers is our number one
priority. To improve our customers’ satisfaction, we actively collect
customer feedback and complaints. Complaints received would be
investigated within 24 hours, followed by taking appropriate actions
s0 as to continuously offer top-quality entertainment and comfort to

our passengers .

Supply Chain Management

Effective supply chain management can help to increase our
operational efficiency and minimise ESG risk. Maintaining an
effective and compliant supply chain is part of our daily operations.
We have a Billboard Services Procurement Procedure and Policy in
communicating the standards we uphold to our suppliers and staff.
In addition, our Contractor Performance Evaluation Guideline is

published to constantly review services of our contractors.

IV E m R ARTE

LB B ERNTT RS
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Product/Service Quality

Customer privacy

We strive to build confidence in our customers, particularly through
privacy and personal data protection. The Group keeps reminding
the employees of and emphasising the importance of safeguarding the
security of the personal data. When collecting and processing such
data, the Group complies with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
and the guidelines issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner
for Personal Data. The Group will not use or provide personal data
to any person for usc in direct marketing unless we have obtained the

data subject’s consent in writing.

There were no incidents and substantiated complaints concerning

breaches of customer privacy or losses of customer data in 2017.

Customer Service

The Group is not complacent and is constantly seeking new ways to
enhance our clients’ satisfaction of our products and services. We have
commissioned survey specialists, Nielsen, to assess the effectiveness
of our BUS-BODY and BUS-TV campaigns for our clients since 2010,
and more than 120 campaigns have been surveyed. The information
is vital for us in understanding whether our services and products are
adequate and effective. In 2017, there were no records of complaints
received or recalled products due to safety and health reasons. On
the other hand, we respect and value intellectual property rights. We
prevent the use of pirated software and infringement of copyrights in
our operations, and there are no claims against the Group in relation
to infringement of intellectual property rights against the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.
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APPENDIX B &
HKEx ESG Guide Content Index BRIRE - HERERIESIB RS
HKEx ESG Reporting Guide BRARE  HERERREED

Aspects, General Disclosures

Descriptions ESG Report 2017

—E-LFRR - 4gRERERE

and KPIs Wk
BE - —REERBRERER

General Disclosure

—ARIER

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions

discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRAERIOREREEEEN - A7k R ek

)5 AEREEEEYNEESH

@ BK: &

(b) BFHETABEATENHEBEER
FRBIE R} o

About the Group: ESG Strategy and Policy
Our Environment: Emissions; Conserving
Our Energy and Water, Recycling Our Waste
BRAKE : BR5 - 1w RELREREK
R

HIFIRIRE - BERY) - RERRKKEIR -
Bl EEZE )

KPIA1.1
BREBIEIZALL

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

e RS R AR R R RS

Our Environment: Emissions

BPIERE « B

KPIA1.2
BARERURIRAL2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where
appropriate, intensity.

BERBEHER(NER)BE -

Our Environment: Emissions

BPIRERE « B

KPIAT.3
RRRERURIRALS

Total hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity.

MEEE=EEDRES R (WER)ZE

Our Environment: Recycling Our Waste

BPIMERE « mUEREY

KPIA1.4
BRSARAIEIR AL4

Total non-hazardous waste produced and,
where appropriate, intensity.

FELEZEEDEER(WER)BE -

Our Environment: Recycling Our Waste

BAFIRIRE - mUREERY)

KPIA1.5
BRR AR ALS

Description of measures to mitigate emissions
and results achieved.

R R PR E R i R AT S AR ©

Our Environment: Environmental
Commitment

BPIERE - BIREGE

KPIAL.6
BRRABIEIRALG

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

HpRIE e E M EEERYN A  REE
EEMWIERRPIERR

Our Environment: Recycling Our Waste

BPIRIRE « DUEEREY)
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide BRFRE - HERERHERED

Aspects, General Disclosures Descriptions ESG Report 2017
and KPIs it “E-LERE 4 ERERRE
BE - —REERERERIER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, About the Group: ESG Strategy and Policy
— e including energy, water and other raw

Our Environment: Recycling Our Waste;
materials.

Conserving Our Energy and Water
ARERER(BEER  KEREMEMR) muiem: 25 deRSA%BE

HIBER © B
BRI IRIE  BIUREEEY)  (RERLR oK
BR
KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by Our Environment: Conserving Our Energy
R ERSE AL type in total and intensity. and Water
REMNESNEER SMEEREAEE  BANERE  REERIKER
REE -
KPIA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Our Environment: Conserving Our Energy
RO IR IE A2.2 BRKERTE - and Water
BMIEIRE - (RERLRIKER
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efﬁciency initiatives Our Environment: Conserving Our Energy
RS IEIE AD 3 and results achieved. and Water; Environmental Commitments
Ha A RS IR 5 A ke a T B R AT IS AR o BMOERE  REERIKER  RIR
S
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Our Environment: Conserving Our Energy
RENIEIE AL 4 sour.cing v‘{aFe.r t.hat is fit for purpose, water and Water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. RIS « RERRKER

R SKEGE AR LR B EMEE - A RE
THRK a8 R EARR

KPIA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Our Environment: Natural Resources
BB EISIE AL S products and, if applicable, with reference to BIERE  RREE

per unit produced.
BURK FT A BRI R E & (AnE A )
BAEBMILEE -
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Aspects, General Disclosures
and KPIs
BE - —REERBRENER

General Disclosure

Descriptions
it

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant

ESG Report 2017
“E—tFRE - HERERRE

About the Group: ESG Strategy and Policy

— MR impact on the environment and natural Our Environment: Natural Resources; Recycling
TRELTOTEEE, Our Waste; Environmental Commitments
BIREETT NEIRIE MRV E RS ERTE BAREE « B35 - e RE AT R
TR - =
BMIVIRE - RRBIR ¢ BUEERY) ¢ IRIR
ZEH
KPIA3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities ~ Our Environment: Natural Resources;

RABRESRIRIR A3 1

General Disclosure

—MRIREE

on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.

FIE R EIRIR RARAR RN EAZE
REHRERE AT ERTTE

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

BRI R - BEREA - TR

R FERE - Sk - RERUKEA

B RAEFAY -

@ B Rk

(b) BTFHETABEATENHEBLIER
ROIER

Recycling Our Waste; Environmental
Commitments

HFIHIREE « RARER + BIUREEEY)
IRIRAEGE

Our Employees: Keeping Our People Happy
Our Corporate Governance: Code of Conduct
HMHES : MzEHE

HMBREER « B<PER

KPIBI.1
BAGRAR SR B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region.

R BIEARE - FhER Mt REIDE
EE&RE -

Our Employees: People
EMES : BT

KPI B1.2
AR EIEIZB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

RIER - FEcAE R R EE S A EBIRK
LE= o

Our Employees: People
BMEES : BT
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide

Aspects, General Disclosures
and KPIs
BE - —REERBRERER

General Disclosure

— MR ER

BXRERE - HERERBEES

Descriptions
it

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BRRELZE2TIERERRERS OB

=

@ BOR &

(b) BFHBEITAGEATENHBEZR
ROIER -

ESG Report 2017
“E—tFRE HgRERRE

Our Employees: Keeping Our People Healthy
and Safe

BMWESR - REFETRERZE

KPIB2.1
RASRAR B R B2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

ETEREME T AB KX -

Our Employees: Keeping Our People Healthy
and Safe

BAWEE - RFBEIREREZE

KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Our Employees: Keeping Our People Healthy
RS IEIE B2.2 ETHEATIERS - and Safe

BMNEES : REEIEREELZS
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Our Employees: Keeping Our People Healthy
RESR 45 W= B, 3 measures adopted; how they are implemented and Safe

and monitored.
AT IR AN RO B SRR B2 2 18 1 - DAKRAR
BARITREERFE ©

BAWEE - RFBEIRERZE

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge

Our Employees: Keeping Our People

— B and skills for discharging duties at work. Educated and Trained
Description of training activities. KPIES : 128 E REE|
ERIRFHEE BT LIERE MM H LR
BER o faiEIES o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender  Our Employees: Keeping Our People

PR R AR IR B3. 1

and employee category.

R RESBRIESNZIREBDLL -

Educated and Trained

BAWESR « R REd

KPI B3.2
BASEAE SRR B3.2

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
MR REBERIES - BEEETHZI
ERS]isE S8

Our Employees: Keeping Our People
Educated and Trained

BPIRER - RGCEE RIE
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Aspects, General Disclosures Descriptions ESG Report 2017
and KPIs it “E—tFRE - HERERRE
BE - —RIEERARERISE

General Disclosure Information on: Our Employees: People
— MR (a) the policies; and HKPIMES : BT
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BEEMIIEE TSRS T

@ BR: R

(b) BFEBITABEAXENHBERR

ROl EHRS o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment ~ Our Employees: People
RAGR S EIE BA. 1 practices to avoid child and forced labour. HPWES - BT

Ha A = FR S 18 71 A 18 e AR S 2 T R o

BT -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Our Employees: People
RS EIE B4 2 practices when discovered. HPWES : BT

H AT B30 8 A B R B R 8 B 1B L P B ER

B2 ©
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social Our Products and Services: Responsible
— R TE risks of the supply chain. Procurement; Supply Chain Management

EIR MG NIRIE KAt RREBUR © BAERERE - MARENFREFE

g ftEsE
KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Our Products and Services: Responsible
RS AE IEIEBS. 1 i S DRI EEEE - Procurement
HFINER LIRS : LAEENHAFE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Our Products and Services: Supply Chain
R E N EIE B 2 suppliers, number of suppliers where the Management

practices are being implemented, how they are 4 (g 2 R IRFS : ftpEsEE TR
implemented and monitored.

Hauli e R A e RISl - MERITEH

BOIMHERER « URE@EMNHITR

BERTTUE ©
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide

Aspects, General Disclosures
and KPIs
BE - —REFERBRERISE

General Disclosure

— MR ER

BXRERE - HERERBEES

Descriptions

i

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of
redress.

BRMREERMREH@ELRZS &

4 EREALBEEE AR AR

@ BUR &

by BFEHBITABEAZENHBEER
BROIRER -

ESG Report 2017
—ELtFRE HERERRE

Our Products and Services: Supply Chain
Management; Product/Service Quality;
Customer Service

BPIRVE M R IRTS - SR EE
Em/ REEE : TERS

KPI B6.1
RASR AR IR B6. 1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEREEREMEETRREREFIENR
MARUKREE DL ©

Our Products and Services: Customer Service

BAIEm LIRS : TP RY

KPI B6.2
RS ARHEIR B6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

BRANE @R REHIRFEE A RIEE
Tk o

Our Products and Services: Customer Service

BAIHE R IRTS : B P IR

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing Our Products and Services: Customer Service
RA4e 48 WS IE B6.3 and protecting intellectual property rights. RAMERRRE  ZER%

et R B R (RE AR ERE R BV Bl
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and Our Products and Services: Quality Assurance
BRSNS 1T Bo 4 secall proesdis, BMMER LR - BERE

T S E PR REMBUER -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Our Products and Services: Customer Privacy
RS IEIE B6 5 privacy policies, how they are implemented HIPIERRIRS : TEALE

and monitored.
il H B B B RHRE RALB R - LARAERE
HITRERTE -
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Aspects, General Disclosures Descriptions ESG Report 2017
and KPIs it “E—tFRE - HERERRE
BE - —RIEERARERISE

General Disclosure Information on: Our Corporate Governance: Anti-corruption
—MRIREE (a) the policies; and Measures
. TN S
(b) compliance with relevant laws and HAMERER : RESHE
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering,

B IEEER « 1R - BGFRIERER :

(@ BER: K&

by BFEBTABEATZENHEEERZRR
FIEE R} o

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Our Corporate Governance: Anti-corruption
PR EEIE BT A corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its Measures

employees during the reporting period and the KPR LEES - RE5HEE

outcomes of the cases.

RERIAAEEIT A EEEREWE B

BETFAARMEE B REFFARGR ©

KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-  Our Corporate Governance: Anti-corruption
RASR4E WIEI= BT.2 blowing procedures, how they are implemented ~ Measures

el migatireil, RMNEEER  RASHE

FEAi P S e R BB WRAZ T - A RABEHITR

BERTTUE ©
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to Our Community: Giving Back to Our Local
— e understand the needs of the communities where  Community

the issuer operates and to ensure its activities KWt R : BEdE

take into consideration the communities’
interests.

B RAATL R 2 B T iR 8 PR AL 3 75 AN
EREEWED S Z AR MRAIBOR

KPIBS.1 Focus areas of contribution. Our Community: Giving Back to Our Local
AR AE R IEAZ BS. 1 B EREE - Community

BMRIEE - ElERR R
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Our Community: Giving Back to Our Local
AR AENIEIE BS.2 EEHBEMBDAER ° Community

BfILE - MEE R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1 2 s s

(= 3F&l:l

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Bison Finance Group Limited (formerly known as RoadShow
Holdings Limited FABIERER AR (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) have placed strong
emphasis on maintaining high standards of corporate governance
and believe that good corporate governance provides a solid and
sound framework to assist the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Directors”) in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities to the Group and
its sharcholders. The Board also believes that good corporate governance
practices are important to protect the interests of our sharcholders and

to build the investors’ confidence.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 except that

the then Chairman of the Company did not hold meeting with the
Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive
Directors) without the Executive Director present as stipulated in

code provision A.2.7 due to the cancellation of the said meeting,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Directors are individually and collectively accountable to the
shareholders for the success and sustainable development of the
Company. The Board provides direction and approval in relation to
matters concerning the Company’s business strategies, policies and
plans whilst the day-to-day business operations are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director is
required to pursue excellence in the interests of the sharcholders
and fulfill his or her fiduciary duties by applying the required level
of skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the

statutory requirements.

* For identification purposes only
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Board Composition

Due to the change of controlling sharcholder of the Company, with
effect from 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017, (i) Dr John CHAN
Cho Chak resigned as the Chairman of the Company and a Non-
Executive Director (“NED”); (ii) Ms Winnie NG resigned as the
Deputy Chairman of the Company and a NED; (iii) MrYUNG Wing
Chung resigned as the Deputy Chairman of the Company and a NED;
(iv) Mr LOH Chan Stephen resigned as the Managing Director and
an Executive Director (‘ED”); (v) Mr MAK Chun Keung resigned
as a NED; (vi) Mr John Anthony MILLER resigned as a NED; (vii)
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun resigned as a NED; (viii) Mr LEE Luen

Fai resigned as a NED; (ix) Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI resigned as an
Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”); (x) Dr Eric LI Ka
Cheung resigned as an INED; (xi) Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan
Leung resigned as an INED; and (xii) Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
resigned as an INED.

With effect from 21 November 2017, (i) Mr XU Peixin has been
appointed as an ED; (ii) Dr MA Weihua has been appointed as a NED;
and (iii) Dr QI Daqing, Mr CHEN Yigong and Mr FENG Zhonghua
have been appointed as INEDs.

In addition, Mr ZHU Dong has been appointed as an ED and the
Chief Financial Officer with effect from 13 December 2017 and Mr
BIAN Fang has been appointed as an ED and the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 8 February 2018.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board has seven Directors,
comprising three EDs, one NED and three INEDs. The INEDs
constitute more than one-third of the Board. These INEDs bring

a wide range of business and financial experience to the Board,

which facilitates the provision of strategic advice in the future
development of the Group. One of these INEDs possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each INED
a written confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all INEDs are independent.
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Board Structure

EEERB

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EEE

1 NED

3 EDS
BHHITES

BUTES

3 INEDS
BBEUFHITES

Audit Committee
EZLEg FMEEE

3 INEDs 3 INEDs
BBUIFRITES

Profile of all Directors are set out on pages 27 to 31 of this Annual

Report.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions
is maintained on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in August 2013.The Company recognised and embraced the
benefits of having a diverse Board to the quality of its performance.
The Board Diversity Policy aimed at setting out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered based on a range of perspectives
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective

criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision on the
appointment of the Directors will be based on merit and contribution
that the sclected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to

ensure its effectiveness.

| Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group

by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company. The types of decisions that are taken by the

Board include those relating to:
* the strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

*  the monitoring and controlling of the Group’s operating and financial

performance;

*  overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders,
including shareholders, customers, Government, suppliers,

employees and the community;

*  ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s

accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions;
*  the corporate governance functions; and

*  overseeing the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control systems.

Day-to-day management of the business of the Company is delegated
to the Executive Directors who are required to report back to the
Board.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of

the Company during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, to fulfill the corporate
governance functions, the Board has: (i) reviewed and monitored the
policies and practices of the Company on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (i) reviewed and monitored the Code of
Conduct for Directors and Employees; and (iii) reviewed compliance
of the Company with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report as set out in the Appendix 14 of

the Listing Rules and the results of such review were satisfactory.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of

legal action against the Directors and officers.
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Chairman and Managing Director/
Chief Executive Officer

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility,
the role of the Chairman is separate from that of the Managing
Director/ Chief Executive Officer. During the year under review, the
Chairman was Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (up to 12 December 2017)
and the Managing Director was Mr LOH Chan Stephen (up to 12
December 2017), neither of whom has any financial, business, family
or other relationship with each other. On 8 February 2018, Mr BIAN
Fang was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the
Board and ensuring that the Board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities in the best interest of the Company. In addition,
as the Chairman of the Board, he is also responsible for ensuring
that all Directors are properly briefed on all issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate, accurate and reliable information

in a timely manner.

The Managing Director/ Chief Executive Officer is responsible

for implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s
strategy and overseeing the realisation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board. In addition, the Managing Director/ Chief
Executive Officer is also responsible for providing leadership for the

management and running the day-to-day operations of the Company.

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of the
Group. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. Written procedures are also in place for
Directors to seck independent professional advice in performing their
Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense. No request was made by

any Director for such independent professional advice in 2017.
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Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal procedures for the appointment of
new Directors. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The nomination is then submitted to the Board for
decision with reference to the criteria that include professional
knowledge and industrial experience, personal ethics, integrity and
personal skills, and the time commitments of the candidates. Any
Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting (in the case of filling a casual vacancy)
or until the next following annual general meeting (in the case of an
addition to the Board) after his or her appointment and shall then be

cligible for re-clection at that meeting,

All NEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three years. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the

Company’s annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Directors’ Induction andTraining

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his or

her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and

regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, Directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates
Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules

and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate

governance practices .
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of BEBEEERHMTE  EERNEE_T—tF+=A
trainings received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December =+ —HIEFEEEZNEIIBENT :
2017 is as follows:

Type of trainings 3%3/|H

Mr XU Peixin %3R5 4" AB
Mr ZHU Dong K& 54" AB
Mr LOH Chan Stephen bl A,B
Dr MA Weihua S5FEEE+T AB
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak B EE+" A,B
Ms Winnic NG {R5Ei§ & +" A,B
MrYUNG Wing Chung &k 8 554" AB
Mr MAK Chun Keung 2538 564" AB
Mr John Anthony MILLER # £33 54" A,B
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun /% 8§56 4" A,B
Mr LEE Luen Fai ZX8 850 4" AB
Dr QI Daging A EH L+ AB
Mr CHEN Yigong BRIFI E4+ AB
Mr FENG Zhonghua & 5% Ht A,B
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI /7 BEt" A,B
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung ZZR#EH 4" AB
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung RIC R A,B
Dr JohnYEUNG Hin Chung #58$1#+" AB
* appointed on 21 November 2017 N R-Z—tF+—A-+—BEZT
o appointed on 13 December 2017 ORI EE+-AT=AEEE
# appointed on 1 February 2017 and resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017 ORI A HREEARR T —HE A
" resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017 T AT EET
N RIZE—HF AT AT FRRERHT
Notes: Bi5E
A:  Reading materials and updates on various topics, including corporate governance A BEBEEATARE(BEAHACEEAEEREEHENE
matters and directors’ duties and responsibilities E) BIM R B E R
B:  Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings B HEEER gk mER S RENE
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Ms Christine MAK Lai Hung, supports
the Chairman, the Board and the committees of the Board (“Board
Committees”) by ensuring good information flow and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. She advises the Board on
corporate governance matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors. The Company Secretary is an
employee of the Company and is appointed by the Board. Although
the Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and Managing
Director/ Chief Executive Officer, all Directors may call upon her
for advice and assistance at any time in respect of their duties and the
effective operation of the Board and Board Committees. The Company
Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship between

the Company and its shareholders, including assisting the Board in
discharging its obligations to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During 2017, the Company Secretary had over 15 hours of
professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established various Board Committees. The majority of the
members of the Board Committees are either INEDs or NEDs.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 12 September 2001
and was dissolved by the resolutions of the Board on 12 December
2017. Prior to the dissolution, the Committee comprised three
NEDs and an ED, namely, Mr John Anthony MILLER (chairman), Dr
John CHAN Cho Chak (deputy chairman), Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun and
Mr LOH Chan Stephen. All the members of the Executive Committee
resigned with effect from 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017.

The Executive Committee previously reviewed business operations,
financial operations and ad hoc projects of the Group. These projects

include major acquisitions, investments and their funding requirements.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. The

Committee currently comprises three INEDs. After each meeting,
the Audit Committee reports to the Board on significant issues.
On 12 December 2017, the Risk Committee has been dissolved by

the resolutions of the Board, and the Audit Committee will also be
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responsible for overseeing the overall risk management framework
of the Group and to advise the Board on the Group’s risk-related
matters. As at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the
Audit Committee are Dr QI Daging (chairman), Mr CHEN Yigong
and Mr FENG Zhonghua.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices, to
improve the credibility and objectivity of the Company’s financial and
other reports, and to strengthen the systems of internal control and risk

management and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on the

websites of the Company and HKEx.

During 2017, the Audit Committee held two meetings. The Audit

Committee reviewed the following documents and matters at the meetings:

¢ the Directors’ Report, Independent Auditor’s Report and
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016 and 2016 Annual Report, with a

recommendation to the Board for approval;

¢ the Company’s Interim Financial Statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 and 2017 Interim Report, with a

recommendation to the Board for approval;

¢ the Company’s accounting policies and its compliance with the

prevailing accounting standards of Hong Kong;
* the results of the external audits;

*  the fees payable to the External Auditors of the interim review
for the six months ended 30 June 2017, and terms of engagement

of the External Auditors for approval by the Board;

*  the proposed internal audit plan for the financial year 2018
of an outsourced independent professional firm (the “Internal
Auditors”) including the extent of co-ordination between the
Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors; and

¢ the compliance by the Company with all applicable laws,

regulations, standards and best practice guidelines.

The Audit Committee also met in separate private session with the

External Auditors at least once during the year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
March 2004. The Committee currently comprises three INEDs. As
at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the Remuneration
Committee are Mr FENG Zhonghua (chairman), Dr QI Daging and
Mr CHEN Yigong.

The Remuneration Committee is intended to define and articulate
a compensation philosophy or strategy consistent with the strategic
objectives of the Company. To achieve this objective, the Remuneration
Committee formulates policies on and reviews the remuneration of the

Directors and senior management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the management on the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and senior management,

and make recommendations to the Board. The Board will have

final authority to approve the recommendations made by the

Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on websites of

the Company and HKEx.

The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for

Directors and senior management are:

* no individual should determine his or her own remuneration

package;

*  remuneration packages should be on a par with companies with

whom the Company competes for human resources;

¢ the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages that
attract and retain executives needed to run the Group successfully
and motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst it should avoid paying an excessive amount for such

purposcs;

* remuncration packages should reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well as the complexity of

work; and

*  remuncration packages should be structured in such a way that
they provide incentives to Directors and senior management to

improve their individual performance.
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In 2017, the Remuneration Committee:
*  reviewed the remuneration packages of senior management;

¢ reviewed the Directors’ fees proposal and made recommendation
to the Board; and

*  reviewed the proposed remuneration package to be offered to
the new Directors and the Chief Financial Officer and made

recommendation to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 8 March
2006. The Committee currently comprises three INEDs. As at

the date of this Annual Report, the members of the Nomination
Committee are Mr CHEN Yigong (chairman), Dr QI Daqing and Mr
FENG Zhonghua.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

*  reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and making recommendations to the Board regarding any

proposed changes;

¢ identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, and selecting or making recommendations to the

Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
* assessing the independence of INEDs; and

* making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and

the Managing Director/ Chief Executive Officer.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on the

websites of the Company and HKEx.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017

R-Z— 4%  FHEBRD :
RIERERABNOFIES
RIEFREHTE  YREFRIRHEE R

R A EEE R ERUBE R D Z#
HERR  UMEESRLEE -

REEES
ARARRZBERNF=ANBKIIRLEES - £8
SEAMA=RBIUIFNTERER - RAFREH
REZEGNEBERITIEE(ER)  BEREHL
NIRSFREESAE -

RELZEENIZRERRE

SR E RN - ABRAR (B A
WRIEHAE) - LREFRREARRE DR
#
neREaARRAEFEREHNAL Bk
BERAATHEEERBARSNEERIR
s -

FHEEMIFATTES R ¢ R

AEFERZETXAENZAEETNES(LERT
FEREREEE TTRER)NBIEERSE
HiIZHEHE -

Z B RIS E T N AR RS B R PSR o



In 2017, the Nomination Committee:

* reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and

the Board diversity;
* reviewed and assessed the independence of INEDs;

* made recommendations to the Board about the retirement and
reappointment of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company; and

* assessed individuals suitably qualified to become the Directors
and the Chief Financial Officer, and made recommendation to

the Board on individuals nominated for directorship.

Risk Committee

The Company established the Risk Committee on 27 November 2015
and was dissolved by the resolutions of the Board on 12 December
2017. Prior to the dissolution, the Committee comprised an INED
and two NEDs, namely, Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
(chairman), Mr John Anthony MILLER and Mr Allen FUNG Yuk
Lun. All the members of the Risk Committee resigned with effect
from 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017.

Upon the dissolution of the Risk Committee, the Audit Committee
is responsible for overseeing the overall risk management framework
of the Group and to advise the Board on the Group’s risk-related

matters.
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Directors’ Attendance at Meetings EENEREERR
The Directors’ attendance records at the following meetings in 2017 are EER T —EFHRUTERNCEIIDOT

set out below:

Meeting attended/held
BELE /BT

Board Executive Audit Remuneration  Nomination Risk 2017 Annual Special
Meetings ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General General
gzee; Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors TRZEE BHZEE HMZEe BEZEEe ERERE —E-tf BE
ESng g3 ] 6 g3 83 RRBEFAS BRKE
Mr XU Peixin” N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
TRMARSEAE TEA NEA TEA TEA TEA NE A TNE A NE A
Mr ZHU Dong” N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
REFET TEA NEA TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA
Mr LOH Chan Stephen” 4/4 9/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
B el el R ~aA
Dr MA Weihua™ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
R L NE A NEA TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA
Dr John CHAN Cho 4/4 10/10 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
Chak” (Chairman) TNER TEA TER TEM
RAEEEL (FE)
Ms Winnie NG 4/4 N/A 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 0/1
(Deputy Chairman) TER TEH TNER TER
EEIELE (BZF)
MrYUNG Wing Chung’ 4/4 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1 N/A 1/1 0/1
(Deputy Chairman) NER i
BABEL (BLR)
Mr MAK Chun KeungA 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
BiRea A NEA TNEA TEA TNEA TiEMA
Mr]ohnAnthonyMILLERA 4/4 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1 1/1
BELELE TEA TiE T
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun” 4/4 7/10 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1 0/1
BEBEE TEA TEA TEA
Mr LEE Luen Fai " 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
THEEL NiEH TEA NEA TiE A TNEA
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Meeting attended/held
gulE/ By

Board Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination Risk 2017 Annual Special
Meetings ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General General
A Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors ThZEE® BHZEE FHMZRE E4ZRe® ERERE - I-tf BR
BENE g3 EE 6 e g% BRRBEAE TV
Dr QI Daqing+ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
BREELT TNEA TiEM TiEH TiE R TiEM NiEH TiE M TiEM
Mr CHENYigongJr N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
BRI At TNEA TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA NERA
Mr FENG Zhonghue{r N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
ISR EE S A TEA NER NE R TEA NER NE A NER NER
Dr CarlyeWai—LingTSUIA 4/4 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1 N/A 1/1 1/1
HEBREL TNER TEA
Dr Eric LI Ka CheungA 3/4 N/A 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
TRE[L TEA TEA TEA NiEH
Professor StephenA 4/4 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 0/1
CHEUNG Yan Leung TEA
RICRHE
DrﬁmnYEUNG}ﬁn 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
ChungA NERA NE A NERA NE A TNE A
BEPEL
appointed on 21 November 2017 B RZT—tF+—AZ+REZE
appointed on 13 December 2017 R E—+Et- A+ =RESH
appointed on 1 February 2017 and resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017 # R-E—+F - —HEZERN-_ZT—+F+=A
resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017 + =B MU EEHT

M RZE—HF AT AT FREREERE
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements for each financial year or period that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that year or period. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors have:

¢ selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

*  made judgments and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable; and
*  prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group’s financial statements. This responsibility extends to annual
and interim reports, “price sensitive” or “inside information”
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, as well as reports to regulators and information required
to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements. The responsibility
of the External Auditors for the audit of the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 94 to 99 of this Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of External
Auditors should not be impaired by other non-audit assignments, the
Group ensures that assignments other than statutory audits undertaken
by External Auditors should not have an adverse impact on their
independence. The External Auditors are also required to review their
relationship with the Group and furnish confirmation to the Audit

Committee confirming their independent status.

During 2017, the External Auditors (including any entity under common
control, ownership or management with the External Auditors or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of all
relevant information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally) provided the following audit and non-audit

services to the Group. Details are set out below:
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Audit A%

2,000,000 2,420,000

Non-audit services (Note) FEZEAZ ARTE (Fii %)

1,149,000 528,000

Note:
Non-audit services for both years mainly consisted of the reviews of the Group's

interim financial reports and the performance of certain agreed-upon procedures.

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External
Auditors confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
thereafter to the date of this Annual Report, the External Auditors

are independent of the Group in accordance with the independence

requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board should oversee the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems on an on-going basis, as well as ensure that a
review of the effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Management is primarily responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of the internal control and risk management systems. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and

determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives and ensuring that the
Group has established and maintained an appropriate and effective

risk management system.

The Risk Committee was delegated by the Board with responsibilities
to oversee the Group’s overall risk management framework and to
advise the Board on the Group’s risk-related matters. Subsequently,
the Risk Committee was dissolved by the resolutions of the Board on
12 December 2017. Upon the dissolution of the Risk Committee,
the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the overall risk
management framework of the Group and to advise the Board on the

Group’s risk-related matters.
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With the assistance of the External Consultant, the Company compiledaRisk ~ ESMNERER BN T - ARFCAREEREEFM - 2
Management Manual, which sets out the Group’s risk management policy, RESIAEENRREERE - g EIEERKLER
risk management framework and risk management process, for the purpose BERF MmN EEnRRER - AREEF
of enhancing the risk management of the Group. The Risk Management fieERREZEe RESSHE -

Manual was approved by the Risk Committee and the Board.

AR EEAELE
Risk Management Framework AEBEORREDERREN = EHRIER - 0

The Group’s risk management framework is based on a “Three Lines EeEMAN PAREATHBATHNAGREF -
of Defence” model with a systematic approach and clearly defined

roles and responsibilities of relevant parties.

1™ Line of Defence

F—EBRR

Risk ownership Departments/Business Units/Staff Members RERPY S %FEEE( BT

B ¢ identifying existing controls relating to the risks in their . 3% 7| & & [ 81 & f{ A B 0 30 A 254+ 5T
areas and evaluating the adequacy of the control; (EEEE TR

¢ designing risk responses (i.e. actions to improve or

HEFE T B0 AR A /B FE Y 7 22 (D
the risk assessment process) for risks without adequate BE BB R R R (BT
control to mitigate risks to the target tolerance level; BRI E ) - AR ERIEEZ B IRA

TN
¢ implementing the risk responses for which they are RFEKF
responsible for; - REFBHEEETRRELHTER

optimise controls or mitigate risks identified during

*  reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of risk responses  4asi g mr g B L S AR =
for which they are responsible for and update the Risk eI RESRBEL T RN A RBIRER

Management Task Force at least semi-annually on the status

A - Wik DB FRRREEEE B

of their risk responses implementation. RERREL T RETERATHER -
2" Line of Defence
FEERR
Risk management Risk ManagementTask Force Al EEEEEK
RREE ¢ providing support to the Senior Management during the . AZREF « 7T R EESRE| RS 1 % A EfES
process of design, implementation and monitoring of BREGBREhESREEASIEHES
the riék mﬂinage@ent a-nd internal @ntrol systems, and i RRAEESRAEE J:’_I; & e
ensuring that it is consistently applied across the Group; -
*  maintaining and updating the risk register; N
RT7 B AT R R AC 85T

*  providing the risk owners with the methodology for
conducting the risk and control monitoring activities, - [EEREE ARMETRERLELES

providing direction and training on how to complete B755E - BhHna) S AR R e e S & B B
the risk response plans and other risk reports; and WEBRREIRA I B R

*  overseeing activities performed by risk owners,

obtaining and reviewing work prepared by the risk - EREREREAETHED  RERE
owners. Eﬁ)ﬁkl‘ﬁ%%/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ’ﬂlf’ﬁ °
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2" Line of Defence

B %

Risk reporting Senior Management BREEAE
R E R ° monitoring risk management process and . EESRUR bR E TRRR T N2 hNch @ B MY AR A rE
developing relevant responses to risks; hER
. certifying that they operate an effective system of e %
risk management and have undertaken an exercise EEE 1&_;;; TRREMEBRE if/ NG
to identify and assess significant risks faced by the BB TR HEA B KA E AR B E E’\]
Group; EWNE
*  reporting to the Audit Committee on the progress . MEZZESERRMEIEREFHNEE
and status of the risk management process; and BYR R
*  reviewing the risk register and reporting the . EMEBRONTE LESEAEREES
effectiveness of risk management to the Audit . :I ] ) A S
Committee and the Board annually. RESFERRBTRRE -
Risk oversight Audit Committee ZREES
BB .

3" Line of Defence

EZEBR

Independent
assurance

B AR F

. ; .
overseeing the Group’s overall risk management
framework and to advise the Board on the Group’s
risk-related matters;

approving the Group’s risk policies and risk
tolerances;

reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk
tolerances and policies; and

reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk control/mitigation tools including the
enterprise risk management programme, the risk
management systems, the internal audit function
relating to risk management and the Group’s
contingency plans annually.

Internal Audit Function

outsourced to the External Consultant;

carrying out the audit plan, assessing and analysing
if the controls stated in the risk register is sufficient
and effective; and

supporting the Board through the Audit Committee
in reviewing the effectiveness and efficiency of the
Group’s risk management system.

ERASERBRRERER jﬁﬁzli
SERBREEEENESSREE
FHAEENERERNRRERAE
EHRRREARERAREREMEK
REOERBR - &
T&.:HEK%@J—LME x/% i}ﬁZIE
R BRECERRERTE

BERG - HERE E&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]lﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁ
MEERAKEERETE -

REREFLINRE
- OMHITSMNBEER
- ETEREE FHEROTRRCEM

PSR B RARAEN + &

ﬁﬂ%?§§§§%§$ﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ$§%
BB 1 R AR SRR ©
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Risk Management Process BREEEF

The 5-Step risk management process is adopted under the Group’s AEEMEREEERCHANAPRBREERRRF - &
risk management framework, as illustrated below: AT -

05 01

UPWARD REPORTING RISK IDENTIFICATION

AND MONITORING [\ Bz 5% B
B L RERREE \
Risk
Management
Process O 2
oo Ai’-"-
BB EBEEF RISK ASSESSMENT
AND PRIORITISATION
N RPN
BB EIRIERF

i

RISK OWNER APPOINTMENT
ZERBEEA

04

RISK
RESPONSES
o, i P S
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Step 1

Risk Identification

Departments, business units and staff members

identify the risks which will be categorised into

BHFY - EBBEU RS TEM AR - B
BB AS8ID R SRR - SRBE E B K AT R

E—% external risks, strategic risks and preventable risks. R ©

2\ B2 8% Bl

Step 2 Departments, business units and staff members EHF - EBEMLRE THHEHERNR
Risk Assessment % W E AR RS EBRFEREE

and Prioritisation

gt
[\ Rt A K
HEPIBIRIE

assess and score the risks identified along with
their impact on the business and the likelihood
of their occurrence, and prioritise the risks in a

logical manner.

BRI BEIEH AR ET D - BIAA FEEH T
A BEF R BRERIEF

Step 3
Risk Owner
Appointment

B=H

ZERREAEA

Risk owners will be appointed to all identified
risks. The risk owners are responsible for ensuring
that an analysis over the causes and consequences
of the risk is conducted and an appropriate risk
response is in place to manage the main causes and

consequences.

MAACEAIRREERBRARA - AR
BEANBREFROMEBRGOZKRE R
R UIEFREAERBREHTRAEEE
ARER

Step 4
Risk Response
=

Risk owners design risk response plans based on
the nature of the risks (external, strategic and
preventable) and overall impact and likelihood that

may result from the risk occurring,

R 8B ARERERIEE (SN - 508 R AT
Br85) AR m R Al se S AR O B RS R B M E A
R AT BENE RR AT R B T 58 ©

Step 5
Upward
Reporting and
Monitoring

FRHS

[ A P e B AR

Senior management monitors the risk management
process and report to the Audit Committee and
the Board.

RREEABERRRERREF  YAFE
BRREEREEEER -

Enterprise risk management (“ERM”) Assessment

The Company conducted an ERM assessment for the year ended 31
December 2017 based on the Group’s risk management framework
to assess the risks relevant to the business of the Group through the
External Consultant. The ERM assessment report was compiled

to cover: (i) the top inherent risks of the Group; (ii) the control
assessment results; and (iii) the new controls recommended to

manage the risks. The ERM assessment report, as endorsed by the

Audit Committee, was presented to the Board for review.

rEEEEE ([ EFmEEE )L

RNARERINEERBIBEREEN RS EEIERETT
THE-Z—+tF+-A=T—"RLEENLERR
ERFE  UTEASEEBHAEBRRE - RIESSE
ERERF GRS ERRE - ) AEEES
B i) BRI R Ra)ERANEERBROH
EEPREIE - ICBEZZ B ERUNCERREE TR
EEEREEEER -
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Internal Control

The Board assesses the effectiveness of the internal control system
through the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit Committee have
decided to outsource the review of the internal control system to the
Internal Auditors and the Board has delegated to the management the
design, implementation and monitoring of the internal control system
as well as the review of relevant financial, operational and compliance

controls procedures.

Control Environment

The review of the internal control system by the Internal Auditors
has made reference to the “COSO” framework (the internal

control framework developed by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission). The expectations of
the Company regarding duty and integrity are clearly stated in the
Company’s Code of Conduct and Staff Handbook, as well as the
policies and procedures manuals, which set out the rules and policies,
for the Directors and employees to follow. These cover all aspects

of administrative and operational activities, including relationships
with customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow staff. The internal
control system covers every activity and transaction of the Group.
The system is based on clear stewardship responsibilities, authorities
and accountability. Our employees are an important part of our
internal system and the Group expects them to contribute to that
system. In addition to setting our guidelines, principles and values,
the Group recognises that an environment where employees feel
free to bring problems to management is also necessary to make our

internal control system successful.

Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and employees, assisted by the Internal
Auditors with particular professional experience in assessing risks
and control procedures, have evaluated the Company’s control
environment, conducted risk assessments of businesses and processes,
and documented those processes that are critical to the Group’s

performance.

Qualified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor the
system of controls on an ongoing basis and the Managing Director/
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have to report
any significant changes, deficiencies and material weaknesses in, and
fraud related to, internal controls to the Audit Committee and the

Internal Auditors.
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Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the internal audit plan designed by the Internal
Auditors and agreed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Auditors
review the Company’s internal control system every year in such

a way that the review of all the major components of the internal
control system are completed within a period of three years. The
Internal Auditors provide recommendations to management to
improve internal controls after cach review for management and

Audit Committee’s consideration.

No significant arcas of concern that might affect the Company’s

shareholders were identified.

The Board, through the Audit Committee with the assistance of
the External Consultant and the Internal Auditors, has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2017 respectively.
The Board has received a confirmation from management on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and is satisfied that such systems are effective and adequate
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS ETHICS

Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees (the
“Code of Conduct”) has long been established to ensure that both

Directors and employees are kept abreast of and fulfill a set of defined

cthical obligations and appropriate behaviours when conducting
businesses and/or performing their duties. The Code of Conduct
also provides guidance on responsibility to the Group’s shareholders,
customers and the community. Any member in breach of the Code
of Conduct is subject to disciplinary action. The Code of Conduct

is updated from time to time, taking into account changes in the

relevant legislation and the business environment.

A set of Code of Conduct can be accessed through the Company’s

intranet and the Company’s website.

Price-sensitive and/or inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling and

dissemination of price-sensitive and/or inside information, the Company:

* isaware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance that information that is
expected to be price sensitive or inside information should be

disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable;
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¢ conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and

Futures Commission in 2012;

¢ has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the

unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

*  has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs. Senior management
of the Group are identified and authorised to act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated

areas of issues.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, procedures including preclearance on dealing in
Company’s securities by designated Director, notification of black-
out period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors
and employees, identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information to stated purpose and on a need-to-
know basis have been implemented by the Group to guard against

possible mishandling of inside information within the Group.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of the Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry by the Company, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Securities
Code throughout the year 2017.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with shareholders
is essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the Group’s
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Major means of

communication with shareholders of the Company are as follows:

Information Disclosure on CorporateWebsite

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about
the Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. The Company
maintains a corporate website (www.bison.com.hk) where important
corporate information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information such as annual reports and interim reports, notices and
announcements, circulars and other information are available for

review by shareholders and other stakeholders.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company’s annual general meetings and special general meetings
provide a useful platform for direct communication between the
Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each

substantially separate issuc at the general meetings.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange
for the notice to shareholders to be sent in the case of annual general
meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to
be sent at least 10 clear business days before in the case of all other
meetings. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, all sharcholders
have 21 clear days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
and Special General Meeting (“SGM”) for the passing of a special
resolution, and 14 clear days’ notice of all other general meetings

at which the Directors and Committee chairmen or members are
available to answer their questions. A representative (usually the
engagement partner) of the External Auditors also attends the AGM
and will take questions from sharcholders relating their audit of the

Company’s financial statements.

The 2017 AGM was held on 16 May 2017. The poll results of the
2017 AGM were published on the websites of the Company and
HKEx. The 2018 AGM has been scheduled to be held on Friday, 8 June
2018.

Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other
than on procedural and administrative matters) are taken by poll. The
results of any voting by poll are announced and published as soon as
possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before the earlier
of the commencement of the morning trading session or any pre-
opening session on the business day following the meeting, on the
websites of the Company and HKEx.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the sharcholders of
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the Corporate

Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules:
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Convening of special general meeting on requisition
by shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, sharcholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board of the Company to convene a SGM for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The request
must be in written form with the purpose of the meeting stated
therein, duly signed by the sharcholders concerned and deposited

at our Hong Kong principal office for the attention of the Company
Secretary. Upon receipt of the confirmation by the Company’s Share
Registrars that the request is valid, the Company Secretary will
arrange to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws and the statutory requirements to all

the registered sharcholders.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of those shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meetings may submit a written request to move a resolution at
general meetings. The procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings (including nominating a person for election as a
Director) are set out in the Company’s Sharcholders” Communication

Policy, which is available on the website of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through (852) 2165 3000 or e-mail at
cosec@bison.com.hk or directly by questions at an AGM or SGM.
Questions on the procedure for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or a SGM may also be put to the Company

Sccrctary at the same means.

Constitutional Documents

There were no changes made to the constitutional documents of

the Company in 2017. An updated version of the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws of the Company is available on the websites
of the Company and HKEx.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Bison Finance Group Limited
(formerly known as RoadShow Holdings Limited BB E
BRA7]") (the “Company”) submit herewith their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Change of Company Name

After the date of this report but prior to its issue, as approved by

the shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 16 March 2018, the change of the English name of the Company
from “RoadShow Holdings Limited” to “Bison Finance Group
Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name “ BEHReRERAR
A \]” as the sccondary name of the Company in place of its existing
name in Chinese “ Bz 3B % B PR A 7)” (which has been used for
identification purpose only) have both become effective on 16 March
2018.The Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name and the
Certificate of Secondary Name were both issued by the Registrar

of Companies in Bermuda on 27 March 2018.The Company shall
file the necessary forms to the Companies Registry in Hong Kong
and obtain the Certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name of
Registered Non-Hong Kong Company confirming the registration of
the new English and Chinese names of the Company in Hong Kong in
accordance with Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Principal place of business

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered office
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company will be changed from Flat

D, 2/F, HK Spinners Industrial Building, Phase 5, 760-762 Cheung Sha
Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong to Rooms 4105-06, 41/F, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect from
18 April 2018.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of media sales and design services
and production of advertisements for transit vehicle exteriors (“BUS-
BODY?”) and interiors (“BUS-INTERIOR?”), shelters (“BUS-SHELTER”),
Multi-media On-board (“MMOB?” or “BUS-TV?”), online portal, mobile
apps and outdoor signages advertising businesses. The Group is also
engaged in the provision of integrated marketing services covering these

advertising platforms.

* For identification purposes only
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The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. The analysis
of the principal activities and geographical locations of the operations of
the Group during the financial year are set out in note 2 to the financial

statements.

Recommended dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HKS$Nil).

Business review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017, a discussion on the Group’s future business development and the
description of the risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
are set out in the Letter from the Board on pages 2 to 7 and Operational
Review on pages 9 to 15 of this Annual Report. This discussion forms
part of this Directors’ Report.

The risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set out on

pages 71 to 77 of this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in Financial Highlights on page 17

and Financial Review on pages 18 to 26 of this Annual Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group respects the environment and is committed to building
awareness of environmental conservation and minimising its carbon
footprints through efficient use of resources, employing green office
initiatives and promoting environmental awareness among employees
and the public. The Group understands the implications of climate
change for the entire world and is committed to minimising the

potential impact of its operations on the environment.

In 2017, the Group supported various meaningful local green events
in town such as “Earth Hour 2017” of World Wide Fund and “Lai See
Reuse and Recycling Program 2017” of Greeners Action.

In relation to the efficient use of resources, the Group has introduced
various measures including, improving the office environment to
help conserve energy, using of more energy-efficient LED lights to
reduce electricity consumption and the need for air-conditioning,
encouraging double-sided printing, less colour printing and paperless
practices to reduce carbon footprints. The concept of “Reduce”,
“Reuse” and “Recycle” are heavily promoted. Employees are also

encouraged to treasure food and minimise waste and noise.
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During the year under review saw the Group’s continuous
commitment to greener office operations honoured by the World
Green Organisation’s United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
Green Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards.

For details of the Group’s environmental policy, performance and
commitments during the year, please refer to the Environmental,

Social and Governance Report.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

On the Group’s business and operation levels, before using any
information, programme, music video or photo which is not owned
or taken by the Group, the Group shall identify the copyright owner,
ascertain the ownership of the relevant copyright work and obtain
consent from the copyright owner. In addition, if any advertisement
placed by the advertiser which may have legal issue or issue about
compliance with the applicable laws, rules or regulations, such
advertisement shall be pre-vetted by the Group in accordance

with the advertising guidelines of the Group before acceptance

of publication. The Group keeps reminding the employees of and
emphasising the importance of safeguarding the security of the
personal data. When collecting and processing such data, the Group
complies with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and the
guidelines issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data. The Group will not use or provide personal data to
any person for use in direct marketing unless we have obtained the

data subject’s consent in writing.

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to
complying with the requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, and ordinances relating to disability, sex, family status
and race discrimination, as well as the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety of employees of the Group, so as to safeguard the interests and

well-being of its employees.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)
for, among other things, the disclosure of information and corporate
governance, and the Group has adopted its own Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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Relationship with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets of

the Group. With a view to retaining talents, the Group offers

a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and benefits

packages to all its employees. On-the-job training and development
opportunities are provided to employees to enhance their career
progression. The Group also encourages work-life balance by
organising charitable, corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) and
staff-friendly activities for employees, which are vital to promote staff

relationship and communication.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the key customers of the
Group include the advertisers and the advertising agents (collectively,
the “Advertisers”). Delivering top-quality services to the Advertisers
is our top priority. To ensure customers’ satisfaction, the Group
actively collects feedback from the Advertisers and deals with
complaints within 24 hours. Most of the Advertisers have established
long-term business relationship with the Group which ensures steady

advertising income of the Group.

During the year under view, the largest supplier of the Group was
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (‘KMB”). The
Group has maintained long-term and close business relationship with
KMB over the years. The other key suppliers of the Group include
advertising production or outdoor media companies. The Group has
also established long-term and good relationship with these suppliers
which ensures steady supply so as to provide high quality products

and services to customers.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26 to

the financial statements. There were no movements during the year.
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

S
RAMBFEMBEARE AHENE=NT ¢

Mr XU Peixin”

Appointed on 21 November 2017

il v RZE—tF+—A=-+—HEEZE
Dr MA Weihua” Appointed on 21 November 2017
s REZ—+F+—A=+—REZT
Mr BIAN Fang+ Appointed on 8 February 2018
LT ATE—\F=— ANBEZE

Mr ZHU Dong+ Appointed on 13 December 2017
SRR RIE—tF+ A +=REZF
Dr QI DaqingA Appointed on 21 November 2017
EABEL RZZE—tF+—A=-+—HEZE
Mr CHENYigongA Appointed on 21 November 2017
BRI LS4 RZZE—tF+—A=-+—REZE
Mr FENG ZhonghuaA Appointed on 21 November 2017
IR A" KT —tF+— A=+ —HEZ(E

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak” Ggs, e

Resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017

BRAEE AT 41 aps RZE—tF+ A +-H TN TEEIERFT
Ms Winnie NG” P Resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
HABERF oL R-ZE—tF+-A+=B NFHEEIEEE
Mr YUNG Wing Chung# Resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
KB R-ZF—+tF+ = A+ - H FNFHERFIERHITE

Mr LOH Chan Stephen”
BIgSE

Appointed on 1 February 2017 and resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
R_E—+F A —BEZRAFMN _E—+tF+ A+ B TFEEIEEHT

Dr Carlye Wai—LingTSUIA BBS, MBE, JP
BRIAE A F 4Rt Bas, MBE

Resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
RZZE—+F+= A+ =B MR ERE
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Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung” GBS, OBE, Jp
FREBLTARFHL 6rs, OBE

Reﬂgned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
R=F—tF+=—A+ =B T FTERFIEFT

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan LeungA BBS, JP
SR1Z RHUR A F4hL Bes

Resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
REZE—tF+ A+ =B T FEEIEFE

Dr JohnYEUNG Hin Chung’ sss, OBE, Jp
SR BT A4 ses, oBE

Re51gned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
RZZE—+F+ A+ =B N IEET

Mr MAK Chun Keung#
ZeifRoa S A

Resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
REZ—EF+ A+ A T FERIERE

Mr John Anthony MILLER" sgs, oBE
28 SR 4% sps, oBE

Res1gned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
R-ZE—tF+ A+ B T FHERIEFE

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun®
HEB S

Resigned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017
REZE—tF+ = A+ A M URIEFHE

Mr LEE Luen Fai”

Re51gned at 4:00 p.m. on 12 December 2017

e =

—tF+ A+ A TR ERHE

Executive Director

Non-Executive Director
A

Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87 and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
Mr XU Peixin, Dr MA Weihua and Dr QI Daqing will retire from
the Board of Directors (the “Board”) by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being cligible, have offered themselves

for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

compensation.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2017 and have
interests in the shares of the Company, and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) at that date as recorded
in the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under the

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are set out as follows:

EERESTHRAEBRKS - HERORE
EENERNAR

BIREEFEPERIDE 2R ERFENES
LERTTBRABRGIARELMARLE R
—tF+Z A=+ HEERRZERAR T REME
BrE (& R (R A LB IRGIDE xv 5F) ey i
BEEANES  FRE WA ETET
AEFETESFXHNRETADMBRTHMEAR
AREBBERHARAR (MM ]) M m#s|
LI

Interests in issued shares of the Company and associated corporations of the Company

RAEQTRARBNEBEEC RTROHES

Personal
interests

Family
interests

RikES

B AR

The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AAT  BREERY 0.1 THEER

Corporate

(073,153
interests

Rtz

Total % of total
number of issued shares
shares held {52 Ep
iR ERTRG
B4 g Bott

interests

DRER

Mr XU Peixin (“Mr Xu”) (Note 1)
RIS (R D) (Wit 1)

700,678,005 -

700,678,005 70.25%

Bliss Chance Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”) (Note 2): Ordinary shares of no par value

EERFARARA(EE] #:it2): BEEEBER

Mr Xu (Note 3)
oA (e 3)

160,000,000 -

160,000,000 100.00%

Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited (“Bison Capital”) (Notc 2): Ordinary shares of US$1.00 each

AREFERMERERAR(EREFR ) Wit o). SREE 1.0 XTNEE

R

Mr Xu (Note 3)
BREE (B12r3) ! -

- - 1 100.00%

Notes:

1. These 700,678,005 shares of the Company are held by Bliss Chance, all the ordinary
shares of which are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital
is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr Xu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr Xu is
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Bliss Chance.

2. Bliss Chance and Bison Capital are the holding companies of the Company.

3. All the ordinary shares of Bliss Chance are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison
Capital. Bison Capital is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr Xu. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr Xu is deemed to be interested in the shares of Bliss Chance held by
Bison Capital. Mr Xu is a director of Bliss Chance and Bison Capital.

B EE -

1. ZERRR0067005s RIRDEEERE © =8 2EERRY
HEREARZERERHEE - BREFABREEZE R T
B - IRIEES RIEED - G ERR AR EEFHENAA AR
DA -

2. EERBEREFRRARATMERAT

3. EEEMEBEOAARELAR2ENERHES - AREARAR
BREEZERERESR - REESFRAEED - HREERS
RREREAFKANESRNTEAELR - HRELEREER
BREATNES -
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Short positions in issued shares of the Company
and associated corporations of the Company

Personal
interests

PN

Family
interests

Kkt

The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AAT  BREERY 0.1 THEER

Corporate
interests

DR

REQXTARAQANEEZEC RTR
BHREKRE

Other
interests

Hitigss

% of total
issued shares
HED
ERTRG
Batk

Total number
of shares
held that

are subject

to short
position
FEESR
KEROER

Mr Xu (Note 1)
BAEE R

678,259,144

678,259,144 68.01%

Bliss Chance (Note 2): Ordinary shares of no par value
BBt EEEZER

Mr Xu (Note 2)
TR (Hat2)

160,000,000

160,000,000 100.00%

Notes:

1. 678,259,144 shares of the Company held by Bliss Chance have been charged in
favour of Fruitful Worldwide Limited (“Fruitful Worldwide”). Fruitful Worldwide
is wholly-owned by China Huarong International Holdings Ltd., which in turn is
wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. All the ordinary
shares of Bliss Chance are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison
Capital is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr Xu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr
Xu is deemed to be interested in the short positions in the shares of the Company

held by Bliss Chance.

2. Bliss Chance is the holding company of the Company. All ordinary shares of Bliss
Chance held by Bison Capital have been charged in favour of Fruitful Worldwide.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr Xu is deemed to be interested in the short positions in the
shares of Bliss Chance held by Bison Capital

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352

of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent

Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
Iinterests and short positions in shares and
underbdngshares

At 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the persons
(not being Directors and chief executives of the Company) in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336

of the SFO were as follows:

Capacity
g%

Bliss Chance (Note 1) Beneficial owner

ETERRREMATRRAD RERRDOE
HRKR

R-Z—EF+-A=+—B BEARREERES
TTRABINGATRAR AR E MBI AE(EE
BAES R 6BI)E xv ) MBIA RARBIAR (5
BREGES RBEGEIDEXVEE 3D BAMNE
AR R R RARARRFIREGES R E
)% 336 TF EMERMOERIARMT :

% of
total issued
shares

2B BT
varil=led

Total number
of shares held

P R A8

700,678,005 70.25%

EE (Hf:F 1) E=fEAA
Bison Capital (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation

N N Y 700,678,005 70.25%
BIRE A3t 2) FEHEE MR ’
Ms JIANG Feng Yun (Note 3) Interest of spouse
- : DY) 700,678,005 70.25%
BREL W 3) RABHER ’
Fruitful Worldwide (Note 4) Person having a security interest in shares o
Fruitful Worldwide (4 4) RIER R EBRFERNAL 678,259,144 68.01%
Chilﬁliuarongﬁlnﬁernatl_(zn_al Holdmgs Limited l?errsLo/ri ha\gng a s;ctfiy interest in shares 678,259,144 68.01%
PR ERBIRIER AR A A R HEBRBERAL
China Huarong Asset Ma.nagement Co., Ltd. Person hav1ng a security interest in shares 678,259,144 68.01%

TEEREETERNARAF

RN HEBEREERNAL

Notes:
1. Bliss Chance owns 700,678,005 shares of the Company.

2. As Bliss Chance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bison Capital, Bison Capital is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of the Company held by Bliss
Chance under the SFO.

3. Ms JIANG FengYun is the spouse of Mr Xu. She is deemed to be interested in
700,678,005 shares of the Company which represents the same interest of Mr Xu
for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

4. 678,259,144 shares of the Company held by Bliss Chance have been charged in
favour of Fruitful Worldwide. As Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China
Huarong International Holdings Ltd., which in turn is wholly-owned by China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd., China Huarong International Holdings Ltd.
and China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the
security interest in the 678,259,144 shares of the Company charged in favour of
Fruitful Worldwide for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

AR E] 700,678,005 AR AZ (D

2 AREEREREANZEMBLR  REEFRAERK
- AREARLEESRESHAEARFRSZHENRN
A o

3. BEZELZTAREENERS - R ARAZA R 700,678,005
B P EA R - IEFRAEGKRIDEXVIME © %%
IR AE A NBRER -

4. EEH A B KR F)678,259,144 8% fX 15 2 K T Fruitful
Worldwide © 3 7 Fruitful Worldwide B9 #F B 2 @l B8 B 32 A% & R
RNAIZEHES - T HERBRIERAR AR A BT EER
BEEERMNERAFRIZERS - WHEFRAEKDNE
XVEmE - PEERBERERERATIRTFEHEREEERE
1D A R A R AR B AR F] 2 F Fruitful Worldwide #)
678,259,144 R AR {7 R HE A (R FFHE A o
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Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the

SFO have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is

currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

Contract of Significance

There was no contract of significance between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017.

Competing Interests

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors were not
aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the controlling
sharcholders of the Company and their respective close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest, which

any such person has or may have with the Group.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during

the financial year is as follows:

IREFRMER

RAFBREER  AEEEREFS RHERED BIEG
MHERBEERIT

Percentage of the Group’s total

EAREEBRE DT

Sales Purchases

HE BE

The largest customer BRAEP 8% =
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEET 24% -
The largest supplier BRAHIER - 46%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate REARHER A - 69%

No Director who held office at 31 December 2017 nor any of his
close associates; nor any sharcholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the

Company) had any interest in the largest suppliers.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

Tax relief

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
sharcholders of the Company by reason of their sharcholding in the
Company.

Management Contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate
to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any

business of the Company.

RZBE—+F+ A=+ —HEENES Ei\fi’rﬁi%
TBMEALREARRBESMA  HEARQT
BTN 500 ) BRER A S K (B P A (AT A AR

BE  HEIWEARQF LHRSE

FAN ARBFHEEAMNBELAABEREE
HEKBE AR BUEA EHRES

BRBERE

ARBNARARREREEIBERLBEENK
37 o

BBRR

ARABANAEBARBBRAFEROD A ZHENE
AHRERR

EEHEN
REE= t¢+ A=+—BLLEFE - AREH
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$400,000.

Equity-linked agreements

No equity-linked agreement was entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2017.

Profile of Directors

Profile of Directors are set out on pages 27 to 31 of this Annual

Report.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 178 to 179 of this
Annual Report.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the local
governments of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) under the
regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes are defined
contribution plans and their particulars are set out in note 29 to the

financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

XU Peixin

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BISON FINANCE GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED)

HEAREHEEERLATmBERELRERATD) RERNE L X BMIRE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the
shareholders of Bison Finance Group Limited
(formerly known as RoadShow Holdings
Limited)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bison
Finance Group Limited (formerly known as RoadShow Holdings
Limited) (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 100 to 177, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Recoverability of accounts receivable

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on

pages 113 and 114.
The Key Audit Matter

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s
accounts receivable, after making
allowances for doubtful debts of
HK$9.2 million, amounted to
HK$91.7 million, of which HK$31.2
million was past due. The balance of
accounts receivable represented 18.5%
of the Group’s net assets at the end of
the reporting period.

The Group enters into sales
transactions with customers across

a number of different sectors.

These customers have different

credit profiles and the timing of
settlement of accounts receivable can
be influenced by sector norms and
the economic environment in which
the customers operate. The Group’s
allowances for doubtful debts are
based on management’s estimate

of the expected credit losses to be
incurred, which is estimated by taking
into account the credit history of the
Group’s customers and current market
and customer-specific conditions.

At the end of each reporting period
a considerable level of management
judgement is therefore required to
determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment and, if such
evidence is determined to exist,

the amount required to write

down accounts receivable to their
recoverable amounts.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recoverability of accounts receivable
included the following:

¢ understanding and evaluating the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
relating to the Group’s credit control
process;

¢ assessing whether items in the ageing
analysis of accounts receivable were
included in the appropriate ageing
category by comparison with the
relevant sales invoices on a sample
basis;

* evaluating the recorded allowances
for doubtful debts by comparing cash
receipts after the end of the reporting
period against accounts receivable
balances at the end of the reporting
period, on a sample basis, taking into
account credit terms given to the
relevant customers;

¢ assessing the basis of management’s
conclusions about the recoverability
of the significant or long overdue
balances with reference to recent
history of settlement, defaults or
disputes and their assessment of the
delinquent trade debtors’ financial
condition and estimated date of
settlement; and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BISON FINANCE GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED)

HEARTREEERAA

(BBREERERAR) RRNE I BENRES

Key audit matters (continued)

Recoverability of accounts receivable (continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued) ~How the matter was addressed
in our audit (continued)
We identified the recoverability of J

accounts receivable as a key audit

assessing the historical accuracy
of the assumptions and estimates
matter because of the significance made by management for the
allowances for doubtful debts by

examining, on a sample basis, the

of any potential reduction in the
recoverable amount of accounts

reccivable to the Group’s results for utilisation or release of previously

the year and because the determination recorded allowances for doubtful

of allowances for doubtful debts is debts during the current year and

inherently subjective and requires write-offs of accounts receivable

significant management judgement during the current year which were

which increases the risk of error or not provided for at the end of the

potential management bias. preceding financial year.

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors ecither intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BISON FINANCE GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED)
HEHRTHMEBERAA(BERELRERAT) RRNB L ZBAMERE

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Felix Kwo Hang LEE.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z—tHF+-A=+—RALFEGRERHE)

2017 2016
Note $°000 $’000
F 3 Fr T
Revenue WA 2&3 348,449 407,511
Other revenue EMA 4(a) 10,759 17,125
Other net income/ (loss) Hulhss /(EEia ) %58 4(b) 14,274 (9,940)
Total operating revenue 4R U A 48 ZE 373,482 414,696
Operating expenses rEBH
Royalty, licence and management fees BHNE  EFELTES (194,574) (206,153)
Cost of production SUVERK ZN (69,548) (74,611)
Staff expenditure BT H (66,598) (66,010)
Depreciation and amortisation PrE L (4,764) (15,241)
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 16 — (9,844)
Repairs and maintenance WS RIRE (2,211) (5,926)
Impairment loss on accounts receivable FEURBE FUREE 1R 18(b) (2,858) (2,422)
Impairment loss on intangible assets W EERERER 12 — (217)
Write-down of inventories FERE 16 — (4,101)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment — ¥7% - B5E K& & &R EE1E 11 (37) (22,910)
Reversal of provision/(provision for) onerous BgmE BiEe s
contracts, net (B8 ) 558 23 13,910 (14,455)
Other operating expenses Hip ik & A (48,139) (34,905)
Total operating expenses 4R 4A =8 (374,819) (456,795)
Loss before taxation MFi A E B 5 (1,337) (42,099)
Income tax 5% 6(a) (6,190) (25)
Loss for the year REEEE (7,527) (42,124)
Attributable to: FE{ENT :
Equity sharcholders of the Company N/NEIED (6,577) (45,260)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R RE S (950) 3,136
Loss for the year REEEE (7,527) (42,124)
Loss per share (in Hong Kong cents) FREE GBL) 10
Basic and diluted ARG #E (0.66) (4.54)

The notes on pages 107 to 177 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity sharcholders of the Company

attributable to the year are set out in note 9.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ReBEakEMEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE—Z—+F+-A=+—HILFE(URERE)

2017 2016
$°000 $’000
Fr T
Loss for the year REEEE (7,527) (42,124)
Other comprehensive income for the RNEEHM2EKE
year (after tax and reclassification (BBREREH
adjustments): DERAEE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HiZnSHoHEEERZN
profit or loss: B H
Exchange differences on translation of the HME B BIBINERB TG
financial statements of operations outside RFHE =
Hong Kong, net of tax H% AR 1,394 (1,015)
Total comprehensive income for the year KEEZHWNEBARE (6,133) (43,139)
Attributable to: ERmT
Equity shareholders of the Company N/NCILED (5,183) (46,275)
Non-controlling interests JEIERERE RS (950) 3,136
Total comprehensive income for the year KEEZHWNEBARE (6,133) (43,139)

The notes on pages 107 to 177 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
llV_\%Eji%;lﬁ;‘Rﬂj—%

At 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZB—tF+-A=+—HERBEHE)

2017 2016
Note $°000 $’000
F 3 Fr T

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BENREE 11 15,491 13,629
Intangible assets mEE 12 - o
Cowb Al o 13 40,770 .
Non-current prepayments and deposits JERETEMNZIE LIRS 14 3,218 1,523
Deferred tax assets EETRIBEEE 25(b) 7,042 10,393
66,521 25,545

Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 16 — —
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEURE ZM B A B FRIE 17(b) — 5,203
Accounts receivable FEURBRE FX 18 91,737 101,154
Loan receivable FEWRE 7k 19 26,400 —
Other receivables and deposits HitEWEER RIiRE 57,305 10,098
Current tax recoverable JE U AN HA F 18 25(a) 1,756 400
Pledged bank deposits 2R ITER 20 98,248 78,343
Bank deposits and cash WRITEARES 21 250,305 397,954
525,751 593,152
Current liabilities REBEE

Accounts payable FETBE X 22 29 1,977
Amount due to ultimate holding company JEA B AT AR A R FIA 17(a) — 3
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERT R RZ M B A B I8 17(b) — 1,065
Other payables and accruals HiENMERLESER 95,227 99,165
Finance lease liabilities BEEEARE 24 151 —
Provision for onerous contracts E R A AR 23 545 14,455
Current tax payable FE < 2N HA 5 1B 25(a) 835 1,060
96,787 117,725
Net current assets REEESHE 428,964 475,427
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABAERE 495,485 500,972

Non-current liabilities E =L
Finance lease liabilities BEHEAaRE 24 590 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 25(b) 194 138
784 138
NET ASSETS EEFE 494,701 500,834

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017



2017 2016
Note $°000 $’000
F 3 F Tt
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RBREAR#ES

Share capital R& A 26(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves Fkn 386,694 391,877

Total equity attributable to equity AT RRE(GRERS
shareholders of the Company Fakl 486,431 491,614
Non-controlling interests FERES 8,270 9,220
TOTAL EQUITY R 494,701 500,834

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15

March 2018.

BIAN Fang
TF
Executive Director

HITEF

The notes on pages 107 to 177 form part of these financial statements.

KEFEN T \F=A+HBRRELRETE -

ZHU Dong
®E
Executive Director

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z—+HF+-A=+—RLEFEREEFHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

EARRREL
Non-
Share General Contributed Other  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total interests Total equity
Bx  -REE  EERH  HbEE  NERE  RHER @it FBREE  EshE
§'000 §°000 §°000 §°000 §°000 §°000 §°000 §'000 §°000
T T T T T T S T T
Balance at | January 2016 R-B-RE-A-AHER 99,737 602 531,569 (605) 13,346 (106,760) 537,889 7,684 545,573
Changes in equity for 2016: —E-NEMERED:
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(BR) /B — — — — — (45,260) (45,260) 3,136 (42,124)
Other comprehensive income Hi2ElkE — — — — (1,015) — (1,015) — (1,015)
Total comprehensive income 2EMG RS — — — — (1,015) (45,260) (46,275) 3,136 (43,139)
Dividend paid to non-controlling B PR RERN
interests e — - — — — - — (1,600) (1,600)
Balance at 31 December 2016 and  R=B-XE+ZB=1+-AR
1 January 2017 —E-+E-f-AlER 99,737 600 531,569 05 B0 (15200) 491,604 900 500,834
Changes in equity for 2017; “E-LENERSE:
Loss for the year KEEEE — — — — — (6,577) (6,577) (950) (7,527)
Other comprehensive income A 2ENR — — — — 1,394 — 1,394 — 1,394
Total comprehensive income 2EMGRE — — — — 1,394 (6,577) (5,183) (950) (6,133)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RoE-tE+ZA=1-BHER 99,737 602 531,569 (605) 13,725 (158,597) 486,431 8,270 494,701

The notes on pages 107 to 177 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z—tHF+-A=+—RALFEGRERHE)

2017 2016
Note $°000 $’000
fE T Tt

Operating activities RETEH
Loss before taxation S F BT EE (1,337) (42,099)
Adjustments for: EEEA
Depreciation and amortisation PrE RN 4,764 15,241
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BB KEE

plant and equipment (Wezs), /&8 (1,987) 432
Impairment loss on accounts receivable FEUBE FOREE1E 2,858 2,422
Write-down of inventories FERU — 4,101
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREERERE — 217
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - & L& EREEE 37 22,910
Interest income 2 WA (5,260) (4,918)
(Reversal of provision)/provision for onerous (BB E) IR L BE

contracts, net JRER (13,910) 14,455
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss PEH (Yzs) B8 (10,461) 11,585
Operating (loss)/profit before changes in EEESBEINSE

working capital (518) &BF (25,296) 24 346
Decrease in inventories ZERD — 2,615
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to ultimate B AR A B R

holding company, net CR ) /G anFEEE 3) 5,007
Decrease/ (increase) in amounts due from fellow BB S NG e ]

subsidiaries WA () 5,203 (2,084)
Decrease in accounts receivable JE LUK B FOR > 8,331 45,067
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables and HithfE W BR RN IR &

deposits (3gm) /s (44,166) 13,670
Decrease in accounts payable FE A~ BR FOR A (1,948) (3,094)
Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERT B Z MY B A B R IR > (1,065) (12,174)
Decrease in other payables and accruals HibEAMBER R IESTE R R (6,725) (20,245)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (AR),/ REAREZTENIRE (65,669) 53,108
Tax paid 2 EIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — B EBFEH (4,339) (4,885)
— The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) — B EAREME

income tax paid (TH B ) Prisa (579) (350)

Net cash (used in)/generated from (BAR),/ KA EEWN

operating activities REFHE (70,587) 47,673

20174 4% BERnemEEERAR |



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

REBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BET—tH+-A=+—BLEFEGRERHE)

2017 2016
Note $°000 $’000
B3 Fr FT

Investing activities BETE
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and BEADE  HENRE

equipment IDE ¢ (7,176) (11,488)
Payment for the purchase of intangible assets BEAETEENK — (90)
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries UG BE B B A B 3R (40,500) —
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEWE - MEREED

equipment T8I 2,001 10
Increase in loan receivable FE U B ZRiE AN (26,400) —
Interest received = WF S 6,292 4,909
Decrease in bank deposits with original maturities REHABE=EA8

over three months RITEZR A 186,642 28,753
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank SRR ITIER

deposits (3hn) R (19,905) 1,348
Net cash generated from investing activities RERETHNRESFE 100,954 23,442
Financing activities mEEE
Repayment of finance lease liabilities BEmidiHEasE 24(b) (73) —
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders 25 F IEFE AR A& R Y AR B, —_ (1,600)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBEZENIRES EEE (73) (1,600)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RENRESEEYWEMEE 30,294 69,515
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HNEER

at 1 January HEZEEY 204,621 138,571
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSgHHZE 3,792 (3,465)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—BA=+—HW

at 31 December HERESZEY 21 238,707 204,621

The notes on pages 107 to 177 form part of these financial statements. F107BEF 177 BB AT IEREN—BMH o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSR R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAETIN - BIEBE)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies

adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 comprise Bison Finance Group
Limited (“the Company”) (formerly known as RoadShow
Holdings Limited) and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the

financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHIERIN - HIRBETE)
1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EESITBE®E)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(©)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements and estimates made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the

financial statements are discussed in note 32.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these impact on the accounting
policies of the Group. However, additional disclosure
has been included in note 24 to satisfy the new
disclosure requirements introduced by the amendments
to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative,
which require entities to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both

changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the

Group and other parties) are considered.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017

(b) B35 % 4R B ()

A RAERRRFEEERT - WEE
AAERTEZEERERTNEE - RIAREE
FIRZ A AR M AT REETY
EARAREREERE  ARELETTH
HARE R oR SR BRfE AR

FREEBHERAKEAYBREER

] VB 1
HimE M B REREEATENHE REFTR
MIEE32 5050 ©

B BE2H
BESMASERMERNAEETERA
'“E.’JEJrHHFﬁémi’x&ﬂ’ﬂ(%%ﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁﬂu>>E’U
ZIRER] - L FEEFTHAKE S5 BRHE
FB AW M4 EBIEEIMNEELR R
(ERGFERDE 7TRNEFT [H2 R EX -
BEFEFAE OB BERR  ZIEFTEZRERER
HEEEE  EHBHRREREAFEER
BEgMELMNARED  BRREREE
EHNEBNIFREEE -

7N 5 [ 36 4 R A AR R AN & 5 AR 4D R A2 R
R RS2

(d) WA TR ERER

MBARAXAREZHNER - HWAKE

W2 REREFET AT NS B O R

R ERN - RBEENITREEHZERNE
NARFEELOR  AAEERFZERDN
ZHIE - I AKRERTHERNN  EE

ER(BAEENEMALRHEN)BEES -



1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share

of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
sharcholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity

shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to

goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

()

(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the

acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets

and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a

bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for

impairment (see note 1(j)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESTERE®

(f) Property, plant and equipment ) ME - BERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see

note 1(j)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or

disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment
Billboards

5-7 years
Over the remaining

lease term

Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
Hardware and software 5 years
Motor Vehicle 5-10 years

Leaschold improvements Over the remaining
lease term
Panels Over the remaining

lease term

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if

any, are reviewed annually.
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(BREEHERIN

BIREMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Programming library

Cost of programmes produced in-house is recognised as

an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

(h) Intangible assets and amortisation

@)

(i)

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete the
development. Capitalised development costs are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment

losses (see note 1(j)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Website
and mobile apps development costs capitalised are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of five
years from the date they are available for use. Both
the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.

(i) Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially

recognised at fair value and therecafter stated at

amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (sce

note 1(j)), except where the receivables are interest-

free loans made to related parties without any fixed

repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be

immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at

cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see

note 1(j)).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of receivables
Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
cach reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

— For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with

credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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(BREEHERIN

BIREMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the assets’
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable included within accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets;

— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for
use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

— Recogm’tion qfimpaitment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).

— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.
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(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year

(see notes 1(j)(i) and (ii)).

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out costing
method and comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017

1

FEESTBER(8)
() BERE(E)
(ii) B o 2 el 1B ()
S 12765 988 0 8 [0 48 {22 R 10 1k 128 4F 3 4
RAEEETETOEEREE - ME
518 0 18 B 5 1 e 2208 B0 0 47 72 48

AR °

(iii) ARIRY 5 3 & R Bl 1E
REBELTRY  AEEAER(BEEF
KRN 34 5% [ B 52 | M 2L R
FEENEANTRT RS - X HIH
MERE  ARBEARAERYBFE
EREARARENR R REDE
(R 16)6) & Gi)) e

(k) #&
FEDZRARAEIFEMRE P HRKS
HIHR o

AT RGEEFLLRAEAE  YBERA
BB R AR R H A # 1r BE IR B P AE 3 3
ZERRG RS ME KA o

AR FESERATEKBRETNGETEE
AR 78 TR R 5t 85 & 0 7 BB AR IR
FRSH)BE -

EELFER  HEFFERREERERE
MRABERRAT L - FENEEHBERE
AERFENBENAEFEBRIELR
WoRsEENARAER R/ E - ERFE
MOR AV 20 - R IR S R E B0 HA R
MR B EINER N EEBEHR -



1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

@)

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(m)Cash and cash equivalents

)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at

acquisition.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years .

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.
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(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which

the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or
the Company has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultancously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:
— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a

net basis or realise and settle simultancously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBE®E
(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities (o) BERRIAERE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain W& AREBHRARRA A BEEBEFHREK
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has VA TE S HETE 2 TS T AT AR TR A H B A s A TR
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a THEAE - WEEH A& E M 2= e 0] 514
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic TR RIZBS L REERER B BENAE
benefits will be required to scttle the obligation and a WREE WEEHEBHEEEEAN  #
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value HBIVABITE ERTEEME X HAIRESER -

of money is material, provisions are stated at the

present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.
Provision for an onerous contract is recognised when the BERITEHN TR ETTE £/ Al # A
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the Al RE 2 AR B TE B R M A B Al 0 B = iR

contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be BB A Y BE - B4 T AT Al ik & AR ik
received. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect BB S AWM REKRAFERE - BIETE LK
the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is EREBITEHNMEEEMEENRITI€HE
the lower of the cost of fulfilling the contract and any ﬁ% °

compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil

the contract.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic BrIEFTHAA BN =2 iR - DRSS
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be SR HLERZAN ISR - T H
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a FIER SEfhEt c BILTEE TS WIRE AR
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of BE - BRIFNELEN SR SR - T A
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose MWEEEETHNEFEAEER T —HEKZEARK
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or EHERBESEST  MARREERSE -

non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss

as follows:

(i) Income from bus interior and exterior advertising,
multi-media sales, and advertising on transit
vehicle shelters, online portal, mobile apps and
outdoor signages is recognised when the related
advertisements are telecast or commercials appear
before the public. Revenue is stated net of agency
commission and rebate and is recognised by
reference to the stage of telecast of the related

advertisements at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Fee income from media sales management
and administrative services, production of
advertisements and advertising agency services is

recognised when the related services are rendered.

(iii) Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered at the customers’
premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the merchandise have been transferred to the

customers. Revenue is stated net of trade discounts.

(iv) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(v) Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the sharcholders’ right to receive

payment is established.

(vi) Insurance brokering service income is recognised

when the related services are rendered.

1 EESFBEGE
(p) AR
g A T 32 B 4 BR s FE U (B B0 R A B E B
B WAREGBENZAERARED - &
SETT SEd AT B 2 S R A B AR AR (0SB A ) B
RAT =R B R -

() REELTERARRELEFIIEE
T ZHEBHEHE URFEERES
F B FTHREREBRARFPINESE
BEENBRATIEEBES AR BREHE
H B RERR o PO RO U A B FNBR IR B
EROMFKE A2REMESRHSE
HIRIE RO PE B AR o

(i) REHEHETERITBRY - RIEE
ERESRERBHEBKATIERE
ARG RER

(i) REFRFENRADNETRINER
FRAEHER - AEmEAENERE
aREBEEERTELPHNRZ - AFIH
HBABIRRR Z IR -

(v) MBEATIEERREA B RN EOAME

(v) FELETIRE R BB U A TE B SRMCER 5 7K
B RETIHE S A RERR o

(vi) PR R AR 42 AR 75 WA TS FE 4R (1 R AR 75 B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHERIN

BIREMEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Leased assets and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to

use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of

time in return for a payment or a series of payments.

Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of

the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the Group are classified as operating leases.

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 1(f). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1(j). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which

they are incurred.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Leased assets and operating leases (continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

made.

(r) Employee benefits

)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollar while
that for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is
Renminbi. The presentation currency of the Company is

Hong Kong dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

1

FEGHBER &)
(q) HEEEREEHE(H)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHIERIN - HIRBETE)
1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EESITBE®E)

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(t)

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated

separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in equity which relate to that operation
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.

Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

Yo P p

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or an associate or joint venture of

a member of a Group of which the other entity

is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a).

(vii)A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are

not individually material may be aggregated if they share

a majority of these criteria.

1 FESHBE®E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by geographical areas. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the
following two reportable segments.

Hong Kong: Provision of media sales, design and
management services and production of

advertisements

Mainland China: Provision of media sales services and

production of advertisements
There are no sales between the reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
most senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following

bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation and amortisation

of assets attributable to those segments.

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and non-
current assets and liabilities, respectively, which are directly

managed by the segments.
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2 Segment reporting (continued) 2 7
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments HE
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is set out FE

below.

(a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities:

R & (#)

—F—+

P R

;rE=ZE-—RFE+-A=+—H1t
EE2{RDIBOEREFNT o

(a) 2HHBUA - BRIRAE  EEREME

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BE Fh gl K pE et
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
$°000 $°000 $°000 $’000 $°000 $’000
T T Fr T T T

Revenue from external KEINEFEH

customers WA 348,449 407,511 — — 348,449 407,511
Other revenue and other HAup g A R EH A

net income/ (loss) Wk /(518 ) 258 6,810 12,093 (161) 193 6,649 12,286
Reportable segment 2RO

revenue WA 355,259 419,604 (161) 193 355,098 419,797
Reportable segment EWHTER

profit/ (loss) (F51E) 15,097  (13,651) (820) 53 14,277 (13,598)
Depreciation and RNEFBIFER

amortisation for the year it (2,707)  (13,018) — — (2,707)  (13,018)
Impairment loss on accounts & U BR FURIE

receivable B8 (2,858) (2,422) — — (2,858) (2,422)
Impairment loss on | EERE

intangible assets E5i8 — (217) — — — (217)
Write-down of inventories 17§ — (4,101) — — — (4,101)
Impairment loss on M- MEL

property, plant and FEBE

equipment B R —  (22,910) (37) — (37) (22,910)
Reversal of provision/ B iEm R

(provision for) onerous S U (BHE)

contracts, net HEE 13,910 (14,455) — — 13,910 (14,455)
Reportable segment S2W|HE

assets EE 418,093 460,803 117,342 153,233 535,435 614,036
Additions to non-current FERIETREN D I

segment assets during the BER

year RE 7,176 11,578 _ . 7,176 11,578
Reportable segment S2W|HE

T T aE 89,270 117,334 363 529 89,633 117,863
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

2 Segment reporting (continued) 2 DEERE (E)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (b) 2HRABRA  BRREE - EERAEY
profit or loss, assets and liabilities are as follows: BRINE :
2017 2016
$°000 $’000
T T
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue SO ERUTA 355,098 419,797
Unallocated other revenue and other ROBEMUA R E Az
net income/ (loss) (B8 F58 18,384 (5,101)
Consolidated total operating revenue 1T BRI A 4a%E 373,482 414,696
2017 2016
$°000 $°000
T T
Profit or loss BRHEE
Reportable segment profit/ (loss) E2/RHIEA,(EB) 14,277 (13,598)
Unallocated other revenue and other AOBEAMBU A R E AU
net income/ (loss) (B8 F58 18,384 (5,101)
Unallocated head office and corporate AP ECAAMERR 2
expenses and others PELHEEM (33,998) (23,400)
Consolidated loss before taxation IR E BT R EE (1,337) (42,099)
2017 2016
$°000 $°000
5 F
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets SHHEEE 535,435 614,036
Unallocated head office and corporate AP B =R
assets and others PEEEREM 56,837 4,661
Consolidated total assets SEEBEME 592,272 618,697
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2 Segment reporting (continued) 2 DEERE (E)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (b) EHIBYRA - ZAREBE - EEREEY
profit or loss, assets and liabilities are as follows: BRI : (&)
(continued)
2017 2016
$°000 $’000
F Tt
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities EWMHHAE 89,633 117,863
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMLBHER &
liabilities and others rEEBENREM 7,938
Consolidated total liabilities SEBEMEE 97,571 117,863
3 Revenue 3 WA

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of media
sales and design services and production of advertisements
for transit vehicle exteriors and interiors, shelters, Multi-
media On-board (“MMOB” or “BUS-TV?”), online portal,
mobile apps and outdoor signages advertising businesses.
The Group is also engaged in the provision of integrated

marketing services covering these advertising platforms.

Revenue represents income from media sales, design and
management services and production of advertisements, net

of commission and rebate.

AEETRNRERTEEWMESINERERA
BEEZ RBEEB(RBEZHEEIX [EL
B W FREAEBARFPINESEEHR
BEHE RRETRTE - UREERIENER - K
SEMRMGRELSES FANGEam S EER
% o

BRI E MR B S R EMNE - KA R
f R REBRE - UREE R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

4 Other revenue and other net income/(loss) 4 H AR Hb s (88) 38

(a) Other revenue

(a) EftA

2017 2016
$°000 $’000
T Tt
Interest income from financial assets not KEWIEBIERIZEAABETY
at fair value through profit or loss RS EENT BIRA 5,260 4,918
Sales of merchandise EmiEeE — 12,117
Insurance brokering service income (R 4 42 IR FS U A 684 —
Sundry revenue EugA 4,815 90
10,759 17,125
(b) Other net income/ (loss) (b) Eftz (F518) F8
2017 2016
$°000 $°000
Tt Tt
Exchange gain/(loss) FE H Wz (E5E) 12,287 (9,508)
Gain/ (loss) on disposal of property, plant HeEmE  mERREKZE
and equipment (E#8) 1,987 (432)
14,274 (9,940)
5 Loss before taxation 5 BRBIAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: MREIATESEE MER
2017 2016
$°000 $’000
T Tt
Auditor’s remuneration IZ S BB & 3,149 2,948
Contributions to defined contribution ERM TGRSR
retirement schemes I 1,498 1,701
Depreciation and amortisation e Ly 4,764 15,241
Operating lease charges LERES H
— land and buildings — T RIETF 3,355 4,671
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6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 6 JRGEEBZRNAEH
profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) FIRFEEBERRIBTIER

or loss represents:

2017 2016
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Current tax S #5518
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the NEBEENER
current year b= 2,211 5,097
Under/ (over)-provision in respect BRAEEBETIR
of prior years (FREERAE) 153 (22)
2,364 5,075
Provision for PRC income tax B ATS B R 419 621
Under-provision in respect of prior years BAEEERETRE — 26
2,783 5,722
Deferred tax IEIEFIE
Reversal and origination of temporary =R 2= B o] [ FE AR
differences (see note 25(b)) (ZH250)) 3,407 (5,697)
Income tax expense P8R 6,190 25
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year RERZHEBNESRBEEDIRBAFEEMET
is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated JERTLBAEY 16.5% (ZF—7XF : 16.5%)7F
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for subsidiaries o RNAREMNHBARMRIBERBHREIRT
in the PRC is charged at the appropriate current rates of REAT R E o
taxation ruling in the PRC.
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAREFHNHEMAXXESHBRNY
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: R :
2017 2016
$°000 $°000
Fx T
Loss before taxation G seN=nyEi=] (1,337) (42,099)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, B F R iR IR X B R R AR
calculated at the rates applicable to losses MG AR ERABREAEDN
in the relevant tax jurisdictions ZETIE (127) (6,735)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR a2 1,336 1,695
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARMBRANTIAZE (2,649) (436)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERBEEBREN B E 7,213 5,460
Under-provision in prior years BEFEBRETE 153 4
Others Hih 264 37
Actual tax expense BERFHIERS 6,190 25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EEME

BEFB(RAIEFIEBMIER(RAAI(HEES
ERRERBINFE BB E  EFHERED

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of ™

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

132

2017
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary scheme
fees (note 5) bonuses  contributions Total
e RER
BNER
E=ng (Hiits) BETAL  RAGEMR @zt
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
i T i r n
Executive Directors HTES
Mr XU Peixin (Note 2) BRMEE L) 2 — — — 22
Mr ZHU Dong (Note 3) RESREMWE3) 10 92 - - 102
Mr LOH Chan Stephen (Note 1) BIREEMZL) 95 2,998 458 14 3,565
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Dr MA Weihua (Note 2) BEEEL (M) 33 — — — 3
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Note 4) RERBL(Hits) 146 — — — 146
Ms Winnie NG (Note 4) mRtsRL(fits) 25 — — — 225
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Note 4) RABEEM L) 269 - - — 269
Mr MAK Chun Keung (Note 4) BIRR TS (Hit4) 104 — — — 104
Mr John Anthony MILLER (Note 4) BEBLE(H i) 126 — — — 126
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun (Note 4) BEBEE (Wit 4) 126 — — — 126
Mr LEE Luen Fai (Note 4) TEBEE (Hite) 104 — — — 104
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHTEE
Dr QI Daging (Note 2) EAERL(Hi2) 33 - — - 33
Mr CHEN Yigong (Note 2) BT EAE(HiE2) 17 — — — 17
Mr FENG Zhonghua (Note 2) BELE (i) 17 — — — 17
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI (Note 4) BRRBL(HiE) 278 — — — 278
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung (Note 4) FRRBL(WE ) 274 - - - 274
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung RERAR
(Note 4) (Frite) 309 — — — 309
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung (Note 4) GEREL(Hits) 104 - — — 104
2,292 3,090 458 14 5,854
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7 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

7 BEEME

2016
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2HR
LEZuk ENEHN ML RAGEIE @t
$°000 §°000 $°000 $°000 $7000
T T T T T
Non-Executive Directors EHTES

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak RAEELT 154 . _ _ 154
Ms Winnie NG hEfTt 231 — — — 231
Mr YUNG Wing Chung I &Yt 275 — — — 275
Mr MAK Chun Keung FiRg e 110 — — — 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER HEBEE 132 — — - 132
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun ERfLs 132 . _ . 13
Mr LEE Luen Fai TEBLLE 110 . . - 110

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI REREL 284 — - - 284
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung THEEBL 279 — — — 279
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung RECRHR 315 — — - 315
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung BEREL 110 . _ _ 110
2,132 — — — 2,132

Notes: B -

BREEA T tF_A-HREZERES  IH

1. Mr LOH Chan Stephen was appointed as a Director with effect from

1 February 2017 and resigned as a Director with effect from 4:00
p-m. on 12 December 2017, but remained as a director of certain

subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr XU Peixin, Dr MA Weihua, Dr QI Daqing, Mr CHEN Yigong and
Mr FENG Zhonghua were appointed as Directors with effect from 21
November 2017.

Mr ZHU Dong was appointed as a Director with effect from 13
December 2017.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak, Ms Winnie NG, Mr YUNG Wing Chung,
Mr MAK Chun Keung, Mr John Anthony MILLER, Mr Allen FUNG
Yuk Lun, Mr LEE Luen Fai, Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI, Dr Eric LI Ka
Cheung, Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung and Dr John YEUNG
Hin Chung resigned as Directors with effect from 4:00 p.m. on 12
December 2017.

The benefits in kind are medical and personal accident insurance
entitled by the Executive Directors of the Group.

Rt F+ A+ A TFUREEREIES  BD
AHEREBMETHEARNES -

2. WBREE  BHERL  BAEEL RIIEER
BREEEE T —tF+— A+ RREZRERE
Eg

3. RREAEB-TEtHF+-_AT=HBEREREE -
4. BAEEEL - BEERLT  BKEEE  BREBELE
HEBgEE  BEBISLE  FEESLE  REREBL

FREBL  RCRBBERBETELE T —LF
TZAT=B TR EREREES -

5. BEVRAEAKERTESZANERREAZIMR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 BREMEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one is REBEZE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—BItFE 7%
a Director whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7 for B ATHhEE—FREE  Z=2EHLER
the year ended 31 December 2017. The aggregate of the M7 E - UL (Z2—RF: AR ) &Ko
emoluments in respect of the four (2016: five) individuals ATHIM @SN T

are as follows:

2017 2016

$°000 $’000

Fr T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e AL REMEF 5,086 7,587
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGTE R 72 90

5,158 7,677
The emoluments of the four (2016: five) individuals with the ZEA(ZF—AF: BR)BEEMEATOME
highest emoluments are within the following bands: DT -
Number of individuals
A"

2017 2016
$500,001 — $1,000,000 500,001 7T — 1,000,000 7T 1 —
$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1,000,001 75 — 1,500,000 7T 2 2
$1,500,001 — $2,000,000 1,500,001 75 — 2,000,000 7T 1 3

4 5
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9 Dividends

(a) Dividend payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year:

9 KE

() AFEEENFRQRRROKE :

Final dividend proposed after the end of the B R & R %
reporting period of nil cent per share RNEAR B
(2016: nil cent per share) —E—RE GRS

2017 2016
$°000 $°000
T T
BE DIk
=l
FRRZA) — =

(b) No final dividend in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2016 approved and paid during the year
(2016: $Nil).

10 Loss per share

(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to ordinary equity sharcholders of the
Company of $6,577,000 (2016: $45,260,000) and the
weighted average of 997,365,332 ordinary shares (2016:
997,365,332 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 and diluted loss per share is the same as basic

loss per share.

(b) BERERMEREERE-B—AE+=
A=+—HUEMRFEMNRBBRE(ZZ—X
F:ET) .

10 BREE
(a) SREXEE

EREABENBEBEBEFARAQAFETER
% B FE 1k &5 186,577,000 T( = & — /X F ¢

45,260,000 70 ) & B #1738 AR A D04 15 X
997,365,332 i (= Z — 7 4F : 997,365,332 I8 &
BR)FTE -

(b) SREEEE
REE_ZT—LtFR-_ZT-F+=H
=S+ HAEFEVEEBEEHSYENE SR
TEBRR  SREESBESREANEIER

o

1|
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

11 Property, plant and equipment 11 Y% BERKRE
Audio
and visual Hardware Furniture Leasehold
equipment and software and fixtures  improvements Billboards Total
FEERE BEEREMG BRREE WEMERE BER a3
$°000 $°000 $°000 $’000 $’000 $°000
T T T T T T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RE—F—H 140,749 14,992 3,423 5,043 538 164,745
Exchange adjustments [ 53 % — (17 (34) — — (51)
Additions RE 10,576 257 167 9,038 . 20,038
Disposal e (1,643) (1,843) (1,399) (4,642) (458) (9,985)
At 31 December 2016 RZBE—RF
+-RA=1+-H 149,682 13,389 2,157 9,439 80 174,747
Accumulated depreciation 2HIERAE
and impairment losses: B
At 1 January 2016 R=Z—"F—f—H 118,027 7,490 2,149 4,607 347 132,620
Exchange adjustments 0 53 % — (15) (33) — (48)
Charge for the year FRIFTE 10,392 2,423 319 1,887 158 15,179
Written back on disposal HE B (1,614) (1,808) (1,021) (4,642) (458) (9,543)
Impairment loss EER 22,8717 — — — 33 22,910
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=R=+—H 149,682 8,090 1,414 1,852 80 161,118
Net book value: BREEE
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RE
+ZA=1+—-A — 5,299 743 7,587 — 13,629
Audio
and visual ~ Hardware  Furniture  Leasehold Motor
equipment and software and fixtures improvements ~Billboards Panels Vehicle Total
FERE ERREE GARRE RENEEE BER  EERA RE &t
$000 $2000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $°000 $000
T i T o T o r i
Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 R-Z—+E-F-R 149,68 13,389 2157 9439 80 - - um
Exchange adjustments Ei A% - 21 44 - - - - 65
Additions AE 48 519 96 1,248 - 3,305 814 6,030
Acquisition of subsidiary WENEAA — 86 59 — — — 502 647
Dispostl b (147,259) (64 (39) - - - — (413
At 31 December 2017 RZT-t£+-A=1-H 247 13,951 2301 10,687 80 3,305 1,316 34,132
Accumulated depreciation BHITERAE
and impairment losses: B
At 1 January 2017 R-S-+F-F-R 149,682 8,090 1,414 1,852 80 — — 161,118
Exchange adjustments i — 21 44 — — — — 65
Charge for the year ENiE 6 2,282 204 2,160 — 107 5 4,764
Written back on disposal HEEED (147,258) (64) (21) — — — — (147,38)
Tmpairment loss HEEE — 20 17 — — — — 37
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+E+-A=1-B 2430 10,349 1,658 400 80 107 5 18,641
Net book value: EEEE:
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+&+-f=1-H 4 3,602 663 6,675 - 3,198 1311 15,491
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Audio and visual equipment was used in the BUS-TV
business. Against the background that the Group decided
during the year ended 31 December 2016 not to submit a
tender for a new licence relating to the BUS-TV business
which would have succeeded the then existing licence due to
expire on 30 June 2017 (see note 23), management assessed
that the carrying amount of the audio and visual equipment
may not be recoverable through future cash flows to be
generated from operations or from their disposal upon expiry
of the related licences. Therefore, an impairment provision
of $22,877,000 was recognised to reduce the carrying
amount of the audio and visual equipment to its estimated
recoverable amount for the year ended 31 December 2016.

12 Intangiblc assets

11

12

M - BERZE®E

TEREARELERER - ENAEEENE
E-T— /\¢+ R=+—RHItFERAETEE
REETEREHE MO RENEEAASE
Hﬁﬁ/\\f? ti/\ﬂ_+EE/ﬁiE’J”‘Eviﬁﬁ -irg
E(REME23) EREMATSREBNREER

ﬁﬁﬂiﬁéi@?ﬁé%&%%FEE’]*Xﬁiw%ibﬂﬁFé@

FEEERER N EPKRE - Al - ERERRE
Eﬁﬂ%zz 877,000 7C * AR B R ENREERER
HREBE=ZT—"F+-_A=+—HLEFEMNMH
S EEEE

BVEE

Website and
mobile apps

a5 R
FHREMAER
$°000
Fr
Cost: R
At 1 January 2016 R-ZFE—RF—HA—H 4,348
Additions NE 90
Disposal HE (1,200)
At 31 December 2016, R-ZE—XRF+-_A=+—8 -
1 January 2017 and T+ HF-H-HK
31 December 2017 —ET—+F+=-A=+—H 3,238
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses: 2 #BEEBESE
At 1 January 2016 R-ZF—R"F—HA—H 4,159
Charge for the year FANEH 62
Written back on disposal H £ B 1 O] (1,200)
Impairment loss BEEE 217
At 31 December 2016, R=ZT—A"F+=-A=+—8"
1 January 2017 and —T—tF—A—HEK
31 December 2017 —T—tF+=-A=+—H 3,238
" Net book value ~ ®@®am
At 31 December 2016, R=F—ARF+=-_A=+—8"

1 January 2017 and
31 December 2017

:i +tF—A—BK
—tF+=-A=+—H

During the year ended 31 December 2016, an impairment

REE-Z

—RFET_HA=+—HILFE B

loss of $217,000 was recognised. The main factor
contributing to the impairment was the expiry of a licence
agreement on the sale of merchandises. The Group assessed
that the recoverable amounts of the development costs
of the website and mobile apps which are used in the
sale of merchandises are not significant and as a result a
full provision of impairment loss has been made on such

intangible assets.

R EEIEA217,0007C ° HRBRENEEEREA
HERMNETHRER ASEFTHAREE
71 i B0 48 U K F A E AR A2 =X B 2 R AN 9 AT UK B 8K
BN AERZEEFNEEREERAER
B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

13 Acquisition of subsidiaries

(a) Business combination
(i) Background

On 14 December 2017, the Group acquired 100%
controlling stake in Ankai (Tianjin) Economic
Information Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Ankai Tianjin”),
which held 100% equity interest of China Sports
Insurance Broker Co., Ltd. (“CSIB”), for a total
cash consideration of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$48,000,000), through certain structured
contracts. The principal activity of Ankai Tianjin is
investment holding while that of CSIB is insurance

brokerage.

The Group exercises control over these subsidiaries
and enjoys all economic benefits of these subsidiaries
through structured contracts, notwithstanding the
fact that it does not hold direct equity interest
in them, as it has power over the financial and
operating policies of these subsidiaries and receives
substantially all of the economic benefits from their

business activities through the structured contracts.

Taking control of Ankai Tianjin and its subsidiary
will enable the Group to strengthen the business
development in the PRC and broaden the sources of

the Group’s revenue.

Included in the profit for year ended 31 December
2017 was a profit of $77,000 attributable to the
business additionally generated by Ankai Tianjin
and CSIB. The other revenue for the year ended 31
December 2017 included $684,000 gcncratcd by
Ankai Tianjin and CSIB. Had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2017, consolidated revenue
for the year would have been $348,449,000, and
loss for the year would have been $4,699,000.

(ii) Consideration transferred

The cash consideration for the acquisition is
RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to HK$48,000,000).
No contingent consideration was agreed between

the Group and the vendors.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017

13 WEHREBLR

(a) EBEH
(i) B
RZZE—+tF+A+MA AEEK
BTZRB(RE)CEEERERNERAR
(T2 X2 ) 100%ERE  MEZEXR
ERFAIERPERELSLBRAR(H
BRI ) 100% B2 - BIHEREAAR
% 40,000,000 7T (48 5 7 7 ¥ 48,000,000
) ZMBREBE THRBEANET
BRI RENEZEBRIRETR
i B AR R £ B BIRBRAC 4D 3T o

BEAKBYEREZSHEARNE
BRE - ANEB R HZEN B QRTTE
EHE TEBEBREANZTAEXSEM
BRARM—IREND  RARAKE
ATEEHZENBRARNMEREE
BRNEN  WERBEBEEGHNEARXK
B 5B R R EBRAE D B LR

)
o

B

BRRISRZREME QB ESES
B AN SR B B2 49 00 o EL 0 R B O SR TS 3 IR
RAEFA AR B A A IR ©

BINBRIERERFBRIREBAESE
& F 77,000 T Mt ABZE_T—tF
TZA=FT—BLFENRF - BHE=
T+ FF+_A=t+—HIEFENHEM
WaHBpERERERTPEBRRBEE
B 684,0007C ° I EER —_FT —+
F—A—BxK AFELHS KA
75348,449,0007C + T A FE EE A A
4,699,000 JT ©

(i) rBEAE
Wi EEH IR KE A AR 40,000,000
TC(FEE 7B # 48,000,000 70 ) © 2N 5 [H 2
BBERESANRE -



13 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) 13 IEBHT B A =) (&)

(2) Business combination (continued) (a) EBE6(E)
(iii) Acquisition-related costs (iii) W 1B 5 AN
The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of REERBEBZENE  ZMBERE
RMB3,160,000 (equivalent to HK$3,639,000) on BEENAEERBEHBRAARE
investment target referral fees, legal fees and due 3,160,000 7T (48 & 1A 7% #5 3,639,000 T ) ©
diligent costs. These costs have been included in ZEKAEFTATHAMKEEER] -

“other operating expenses”.

(iv) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities (iv)ﬁﬂﬂ(ﬁﬂﬁgﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁff
assumed
2017
$°000
T
Property, plant and equipment ME - B KR 647
Accounts receivable FEUBR TR 1,772
Other receivables and deposits H b e WER K R IE & 645
Cash and cash equivalents RENIREEED 7,500
Other payables and accruals HitENMERRESER (2,784)
PRC tax payables FEAS R B R I8 (550)
Total identifiable net assets acquired Frus g n @5 B EFENEE 7,230
(v) Receivables acquired at the acquisition date (v) R g B B8 1 W AR5k
Accounts receivable of RMB1,477,000 (equivalent TEETFEUR KA R 1,477,000 7T (FEER
to HK$1,772,000) and other receivables PEHE 1,772,000 7T ) KR H At FE U AR TR KR ik
and deposits of RMB538,000 (equivalent to AR ¥ 538,000 7T (FB E AP 645,000 7T )
HK$645,000) expected to be collectible at the AIRAUHE B B[ o

acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

13 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) 13 IEBHT B A =) (&)
(2) Business combination (continued) (a) EBE6(E)
(vi) Goodwill (vi) A
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been WHEEIRMEAMNPEDBERAT ¢

recognised as follows:

2017
$°000
SEo
Consideration transferred FreEE (8 48,000
Fair value of identifiable net assets AN EEFENALEBE (7,230)
Goodwill EES 40,770
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the future R = E 2R B T IS =TS 80 R SR & Al g
profitability of the acquired business and the skills NRFEBREBERE TR EEPMM
and specialised knowledge of the work force of oo EEAMEMEREE RN ERBK A
CSIB. None of the goodwill recognised is expected &SR -
to be deductible for tax purposes.
(vii) Analysis of cash flow on acquisition (vii) KIEEH T & 7 B H
Analysis of cash flow on acquisition WiEFBIEL L HE N
2017
$°000
Fr
Cash consideration WERE 48,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FTEEIR & RIS ZEEY (7,500)
Net cash flow Be R FaE 40,500
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13 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) 13 WEBKEB AT (&)

(b) Goodwill (b) BE
$°000
F
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2017 R-—FE—+F—HA—H -
Addition NE 40,770
At 31 December 2017 R—_E—+F+=-_A=+—H 40,770
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December 2017 R—E—+F+=-_A=+—H 40,770
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—t&—HA—H —
Impairment tests for cash-generating units BEFEWE L EEENHBEZ
containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating AEELEEHEERSEESEMAT ¢
units (CGU) as follows:
2017
$°000
T
CSIB A2 (R B 40,770

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on historical data and financial
budgets approved by Board of Directors covering a five-
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average
growth rate of 3%. The growth rates used do not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the business in
which the CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted
using a discount rate of 20%. The discount rate used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant

CGU.

B EEBMR A YO EEE R EER
H-ZAETAERBESRERA - KEE
SHBEREEES RN T FHYREAES -
IFPENRERELLRMTINETHE
RE3niEH o FERAE R R EE It
RetEBMEFNEFRENRYITHER
Ko RS MERANTIR K 20% I H o F{E
RORESBRANRRRABRASLEES
A=k RN

14 Non-current prepayments and deposits 14 ERBFENSFERZES

Non-current prepayments and deposits comprise
prepayments and deposits for the purchase of property, plant
and equipment, security for the due payment of licence
fees and office rental. The amounts are neither past due nor

impaired.

FRBENFARZSERBEEDE  BEER
BARERIASTNOFFERRERBENHE
NHRERRE - ZERRL BB HFRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

15 Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries.

The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note

1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial

statements.

Particulars of

MEBARRE

TEHIIH B R TR ER -

R RR RIS S BA

BRREEBAN - AR

FRA M B 2~ B B 1(d) FTE R XM B A
A EXHEEHARKEMBRRAGAFE -

Proportional of ownership
interest (%)

Place of ssned and EERE(EDL)
incorporation/ paid up capital Effective
Name of company operation ERTREAR interest Direct Indirect Principal activity
AREH BMRY, EE RAEGFE ERES EE Gk TEER
AdSociety Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 — 100 Investment holding
HBEHEEERAT ) 2R REER
Bus Focus Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Uss100 60 — 60 Provision of media sales
Hong Kong INES service for advertising
KERGBE/EH on transit vehicle shelters
RUREEHERESEER
RERHERS
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100 — 100 Provision of media sales
BB 1 service for advertising
on transit vehicle exteriors
and interiors
REFTESHEG PR
NEHESHEEHERS
Cityway Resources Limited The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 100 — Investment holding
Hong Kong 1 %f[ &é@ﬁ&
RERAHE/FH
Cyberstop Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 — 100 Dormant
Hong Kong 1E7T HEi
RBELEE/BA
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100 — 100 Dormant
B 10,000 {3 TEex
Leader Force Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100 — 100 Provision of media sales
) 15 service for advertising
on transit vehicle shelters
and billboards
RUERBEHRET R
BERESNERHERS
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100 — 100 Dormant
BB 10,000 A& (A EE
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15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of

15 B ARIKRE (@)

Proportional of ownership

interest (%)

Place of issued and EERE(AAL)
incorporation/ paid up capital Effective
Name of company operation ERTREAR interest Direct Indirect Principal activity
DEAER EMEYL EE S BAFE ERER =84 B FTEEH
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 — 100 Investment holding
A 2R R REZR
Road Publications Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
B 2RRAR A REBTRomEERD
RoadShow Advertising (Beijing) The PRC US$500,000 100 — 100 Provision of media advertising
Company Limited (limited liability f 500,000 37T agency service and design and
company) production of advertisements
BRBES(LR)ERAA REFREERERER
(BERERAR) EE R ERE
RoadShow Creations Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
A 2R LEBTRSREEER
RoadShow Media Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 — 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 1E7T KB
KERUEE/BR
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 — 100 Provision of media sales &
BB 28R management services
for BUS-TV business
REBTEREBHE
BHEREERS
RoadShow Media Group Limited The British Virgin Islands/ ussi 100 100 — Investment holding
(formerly known as RoadShow Hong Kong 17T RERK
Resources Limited) RERZEE /B
(A%8 RoadShow Resources Limited )
RoadShow Productions The British Virgin Islands/ usst 100 — 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Hong Kong 17T RERK
RERIHE /B
RoadShow Productions Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 — 100 Events production and
& 3 roduction of content for
P
BUS-TV systems
HARERAMEET
BREZNAA
RoadVision Holdings (China) Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 — 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong E BB
ABRLEE/BE
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(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of

15 B ARIKRE (@)

Proportional of ownership

interest (%)

Place of ssued and EERE(AAL)
incorporation/ paid up capital Effective
Name of company operation RIIRCHRE interest Direct Indirect Principal activity
DEAER SMRL, EEL R BAGE BRES EE B FTEEH
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss2 100 — 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 1ETT RERK
RERTEE /B
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 100 — 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 1E7T KB
KERUEE/ER
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited The British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100 — 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong En BB
RBRLEE/BE
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100 — 100 Provision of employment
A 2R agency services
BB
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 95 — 95 Dormant
&8 10,000 &R 19 RS
Silver Sea Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100 — 100 Provision of media sales
&% 1R service for
online advertising
RS FEENER
HERS
888 Lab Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100 — 100 Provision of integrated
—%E/% 1 Hﬁﬁ%ﬁ marketing services
*Ef/\an\ =) m i’n‘
EERS
ERRIREREELAER AT The PRC - 100 - 100 Investment holding
e REER
T REREHERLTAERAT The PRC — 100 — 100 Investment holding
e BAZR
ZE(R2)RBEEZELZHABRARY  The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 — — Investment holding
H AR 10,000,000 7 REER
R RREELERRF" The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 — - Provision of insurance
i AR 10,000,000 7T brokerage service

(i) These are subsidiaries arising from the contractual agreements (see

note 13 for details).
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15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 15 B ARKRE(#E)

The following table lists out the information relating to Bus TEREIEHAREEME — R EREERER
Focus Limited, the only subsidiary of the Group which has ([ FEsE Rtz | ) BRI B2 &) Bus Focus Limited BJE
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised e AN 28 W% E R B R R A 7 fE 3 35 T8
financial information presented below represents the it

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

2017 2016

$°000 $’000

Fr T

NCI percentage IR ERA DL 40% 40%
Current assets TRENEE 25,342 29,604
Current liabilities mEaE 4,667 6,553
Net assets BEFEE 20,675 23,051
Carrying amount of NCI JEIE IR FE RS BRE(E 8,270 9,220
Revenue N 29,287 61,469
Profit for the year EE R 2,376 7,840
Total comprehensive income >EWNEFERE 2,376 7,840
Profit allocated to NCI SR IR E ST BT 950 3,136
Dividend paid to NCI 2 FIEH RS AR B — 1,600
Cash flows from operating activities REKLLETHNRESRE 7,163 9,257
Cash flows from financing activities KERMEEHNRERE — (4,000)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

16

17

Inventories 16 &

All of the inventories are finished goods of merchandise. FEFEEH AEREKS °
The amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as ERAESTHHEFEESENT :
follows:

2016
$°000
T

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHEFEREE

Write-down of inventories FEHUR

9,844
4,101

13,945

Due to the expiry of the licence agreement on the sale of HREE S TR EFEREE S —"F

certain merchandises during the year ended 31 December +ZA=+—RHLEFERER " FE4,101,0007TE

2016, inventories of $4,101,000 were written down to its R-B—RET_A=T—BHMREE]ZRF

net realisable value at 31 December 2016. (ER

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the amount of REBEEZZT—+tFF+-_A=+—HLFE  BR

inventories recognised as an expense is $Nil. ATENEFEESEATIT -

Amounts due from/(to) group companies 17 FEYW (B EERATRE

(a) The amount due to ultimate holding company at 31 Q) RZE—R"F+_A=+—"H EAHKE
December 2016 was unsecured, interest-free and has no H“A REREER RS REERTEERD -

fixed terms of repayment.

(b) The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries at 31 (b)y K= 2*/‘_\¢+ —A=+—8" F’EH&/(FE
December 2016 were unsecured, interest-free, repayable MBARMBARREBELAEER &8 AR
on demand and represent normal trade receivables and EREFEE - &}i&*fﬁ%}f&“ﬂ&&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
payables. The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries Ko 2 E R UR R MY B A B & 50IE I £ 18 B
were neither past due nor impaired. HHRRE o
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18 Accounts receivable

(@)

(b)

Ageing analysis

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to
be impaired at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

18 FEUWBRRX
(a) BB S

REREHIR - 308 1R (E 5 R B R E A
WERSK R BRIR DTN ¢

2017 2016

$°000 $’000

T Fr

Neither past due nor impaired A 4 260 HA SRR E 60,561 52,161

Within one month past due wE DA —1{E A 12,858 21,662

Over one month but within two months past due mERRE—EABLRREAR 7,513 6,616
Over two months but within three months past wEAR @M (E A8

due SR={EA 4,547 3,449

Over three months but within one year past due BAEA=EARIR—F 6,033 14,697

Over one year past due B HAER e — 225 2,569

91,737 101,154

According to the Group’s credit policy, credit period
granted to customers is generally within 90 days.
Therefore, all the balances which are not past due
as disclosed above are within three months from the

invoice date.

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be

recovered within one year.

Impairment of accounts receivable

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against accounts

receivable directly.

REAKENEERE  —RETEPNE
EHiRo0R - At - A EXARER RE
HEHRENERARR=(EA RN -

TP A AR N —F Rk E -

P BRI (E

R EREBBE R ARER - BRIER
SEEEHOZEENESBM - RILBER
T BEEEERERURARREH -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

18 Accounts receivable (continued)

(b) Impairment of accounts receivable (continued)

18

PEUR BRFR (48)
(b) BEUBRZRE ()

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FRARBRBENESHMT -
during the year is as follows:

2017 2016
$°000 $7000
T Tt
At 1 January nN—A—H 6,334 13,501
Impairment loss recognised CDHEZRH B EEE 2,858 2,422
Uncollectible amounts written off 23 AR Ui [B] & 58 — (9,589)
9,192 6,334

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s accounts receivable
of $9,192,000 was individually determined to be
impaired (2016: $6,334,000). The individually impaired
receivables related to customers with long overdue
balances and management assessed that the receivables
are not expected to be recovered. Consequently, an
impairment loss is provided for. The Group does not

hold any collateral over such balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

19 Loan receivable

The loan was made to a third party. The balance is

unsecured, interest bearing and repayable within one year.
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W-_ZE—+tF+-_F=+—8 AEEREK
R 389,192,000 7T( = & — /X 4F : 6,334,000 7T )
EERIEE AAEERME - 8B E 8 EYGR
BhEBREREHBAESRNTSFER A
BB AT EIGRIER A Al AL BRI R - i
EELHREEERE AEBUERZSE
BRI A (IR o

I 4 780 B SR (B Y IR R R D B 2 A o I
BHRRLCHENEFER -

B8 BB RIRE R B UYGRIRTY EE T EHAL
EREAERIEECENBYLEF AR - RIE
BELR  BEEEHECHNZSFEHRNGEE
BRYREBREANE - BZFERDBR
RAUZHKE - RBABZEERIELRE
B ARBY ERZFEHRITEEAER

]
s[a g

W E

ZEERCRBET —RFE=7 - BHRAEER
SRR RER—FRNEE -



20 Pledged bank deposits 20

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between subsidiaries
of the Company and independent third parties, bank
guarantees have been provided to the independent third
parties in respect of the subsidiaries’ due performance and
payment under the respective licence agreements. The
Company has pledged bank deposits of $97,248,000 (2016:
$78,343,000) to banks for the bank guarantees issued.

The remaining deposit amounting $1,000,000 (2016: $Nil)
has been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the

CRFRITEM

BEARRMB AR BB E =LA TR
HE ZEWBAREREZERBITERIMNE
REBBTHEETNNEERRE  EHUZS
BYE=HBZBZANRITER - KRAREHET
B AR TR MR TR ERTT7E 50 97,248,000 7T
(ZZ—7%F : 78,343,000 7C) °

# TNETER 1,000,000 L(ZZE—RF : TL)E
HIRE AR EEERIBITRENER -

Group.
21 Bank deposits and cash 21 ROFERRESE
2017 2016
$°000 $’000
F5 o
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERE 130,074 105,558
Bank deposits with original maturities within FEEEHA=1E8RAH
three months BITER 108,633 99,063
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the MRESGERERERME B
consolidated cash flow statement RERIREEEY 238,707 204,621
Bank deposits with original maturities over three REHEBE=1EA8
months RITIFK 11,598 193,333
250,305 397,954
22 Accounts payable 22 FE(FERRX

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the end

of the reporting period are as follows:

RB|ERR - BNRANREDITEFFOT

2017 2016

$°000 $’000

Tt Tt

Due within one month —1{E AR E| & 29 1,977

Credit period granted to the Group by suppliers is generally
within 90 days. Above balances are all within three months

from the invoice date.

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled within

one year.

HERA—RRTAKENEERR0R - Lk
BN BERARR=EAREIE -

PR A BRSAE N — F BT -
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23 Provision for onerous contracts

Having reviewed the Group’s operations and considered
the terms included in the tender invitation issued by The
Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) for
a new licence relating to the BUS-TV business, the Group
decided during the year ended 31 December 2016 not to
submit a tender for this new licence, which would have
succeeded the then existing licence due to expire on 30
June 2017. Conscqucntly, a provision for onerous contracts
of $14,455,000 was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Group remeasured the provision for onerous contracts
and considered that following the expiry of the licence on
30 June 2017, it is no longer probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation as at 31 December 2017. A reversal
of provision for onerous contracts of $14,455,000 was

recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Given the increasingly keen price and market competition,
a provision was made for onerous contracts relating to the
Group’s outdoor signages advertising business. The Group
assessed that the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under related licences, which are all non-cancellable, may
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
considered these licences to be

therefrom and, therefore,

onerous contracts. Consequently, a provision for onerous
contracts of $545,000 was recognised for the year ended 31

December 2017.
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E’jj‘ﬁ =] II’J ?&1%

KRB AEENEETLERBAEE L
(—h==2)ERA8(AE )BELEETERE
BEBRFISHENERERE  NEEREE
TERFFTZAZSTRUEEEARAENRIER
HIEF T ENRENREIN T —tF <A
= THERNEREBRITE - Bt REZE=
T RNF+_A=+—BLEFEEHBEEO®E
TR 14,455,000 7T ©

AEBEEHAEBEEE NS - IWEF%EAH.:%E
BE_ZT—tFANAZ+HERE RZZ—+
F+ZA=+—HAFKAI&E :ﬁﬁﬁdﬁﬁ’“%“;”-ﬁ“fﬂ
HHERNBTREE - AKERBE_Z—+F
TZA=T—HIEFE BREEEOEFHERLD
14,455,000 JC ©

ENERRMISHIFRBHZ  NREBEHER
INEEREEEBAREBREORE - REET

iy ERETHBETEESPTAEHE)ET
M BEEATE LR T A E R AR s S HBBTEHI A
WZEFTREDMOEENZ - AR RZER
HEAEREN  YERBE-Z—+tF+=A
=T —HIEFE®REIEE KB 545,000 7T ©



24 Finance leases 24 BAEHEE

(a) Obligations under finance leases: (a) il f SR
At 31 December 2017, the Group had obligations under R-ZBE—+F+_-_A=+—"8 KEBEHE
finance leases repayable as follows: EEMEREAENT ¢

2017
Present value
of the minimum Total minimum

lease payments lease payments

BEHE RIEHEE
RARARE RE/¢E
$°000 $°000
Fx T
Within 1 year —FR 151 183
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERERN 158 183
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZLERAERN 432 457
590 640
741 823
Less: total future interest expenses W RRF BT EEE (82)
Present value of lease obligations HEAERE 741
During the year ended 31 December 2016, no REE-Z—E+-_A=+—HIFE -
obligations under finance leases was noted. 7N = [E 5 4 A A B RE o
(b) Reconciliation of changes in finance leases to (b) MEHESBHERERSRELHHE
changes in financing cash flow:
$7000
Tt
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+F—H—H T
Non-cash flow change FESREEH
New finance lease FRtEHE 814
Change from financing cash flow BRERSRESTH
Repayment of capital element of finance lease EEmERENNEIHD (73)
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+HF+-_A=+—H 74
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25 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 25

financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement

of financial position represents:

BIRA &R S B IR 3R B9 AT 1§ Bt

(a) BIRGARBRRRMOANHES :

2017 2016
$°000 $’000
5 i
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year NEE TG B 2,211 5,097
Provisional Profits Tax paid 2 E SR 5 F (3,967) (4,878)
(1,756) 219
PRC income tax payable FERT R BT 5 835 441
(921) 660
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial B B At R Bk -
position:
2017 2016
$°000 $’000
T T
Current tax recoverable recognised in the PR A ISR RIER R FE
consolidated statement of financial position W 78 BA R 18 (1,756) (400)
Current tax payable recognised in the consolidated — F4RE B F5AK 5 2% HERR A FE
statement of financial position < R BA R 1B 835 1,060
(921) 660
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25 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position and the movements during the year are as

25 FIREGRE

(b) ERREBEHARE, (AHR)
MR R BRI BERAAE (]
&) AR BB RAERNBEMT

AN
RERA

B RS AR R R A PR 1S B (50

follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of related
accelerated Onerous
depreciation Tax losses contracts Total
B i AH B
MEFE
WiTEE S HikES BEEN it
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Tr Tr T
At 1 January 2016 R-—ZE—x&E—F—R (3,418) 7,976 _ 4,558
Credited/(charged) to profit FEBEREAS
or s (5I%) 4,137 (825) 2,385 5,697
At 31 December 2016 R-B—RF
+=-—A=+—8H 719 7,151 2,385 10,255
At 1 January 2017 R-ZT—+45—H—A 719 7,151 2,385 10,255
Charged to profit or loss EBEHENY X (547) (475) (2,385) (3,407)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=A=+—8 172 6,676 — 6,848
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of A= A B FEHR S R AR 58
financial position:
2017 2016
$°000 $’000
Tt Tt
Net deferred tax assets ﬁﬁ*ﬁlﬁ/ﬁﬁ,—fr{ﬁ 7,042 10,393
Net deferred tax liabilities EEFIERERE (194) (138)
6,848 10,255
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25 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets of $32,407,000 (2016: $25,194,000) in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $196,408,000 (2016:
$152,692,000), where it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and
entities. At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the tax losses

do not expire under the current tax legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:
At 31 December 2017, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of a subsidiary amounted
to $10,634,000 (2016: $8,991,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $1,063,000 (2016: $899,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of this subsidiary and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits will not

be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017

25 BIRERE B HIR I 3R B9 AT 1§ B (48)

(c) RERWELRERE -

BB T 1) TR ST HE - ARE@ED
BRERE R R E 82T KA 88 3R 7] A DA 88
BEEAORKERTBF - RSB &R
196,408,000 7T (= & — 75 4F 152,692,000 7T )
B R 51 5 7% 85 18 158 32,407,000 TL(ZE — X
F 125,194,000 ) FIELEHRBEE - R=F
—tERZE-RETZA=+—A80 BE
WATMBED] - BEEBELERRE -

(d) RERHEEHIARIE :

W_Z—+F+-F=+—H8H @K
J& R Rl R 9 Ik 2 K & B R M 2 275 10,634,000
TL(ZZF — 754 $8,991,0007T ) © R AR A
THZINB AR MR EER - BRABZME
AEIEA R RBERAIETE D IRAF -
bt - RS IR SR E B R BT R
TE 7 781,063,000 70 ( = Z — 7<4F 1 899,000 7T )
RIEERIBEALE -



26 Capital and reserves

26 BAR MBS

(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EEBAEMBONED
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REE 4R A s S 4H BB 10 B ) B2 B oK 45 4
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated MR REAEREDR - XD A S @
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes w=AKEBHRAARFEE R R BAKRE RS+
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s BESI AT -
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company AY -7
Share Contributed Accumulated
capital surplus losses Total
(&S BERER S 2] st
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
5o S Fr Fr
Balance at 1 January 2016 R-EBE—-XE—HA—H
Hy 4t ea 99,737 594,404 (340,716) 353,425
Change in equity for 2016: —E-ARENEREE
Profit and total comprehensive AEBRNEEZHE
income for the year eyt 1,114 1,114
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-—ZE—XE+=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2017 E=—Z—t%—H—H
EE 99,737 594,404 (339,602) 354,539
Change in equity for 2017: “E—tLHEHNEREE
Profit and total comprehensive AEERBNEEZE
income for the year W zszE — — 1,334 1,334
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZ-ZE—+E£+=A8
=+ —-BH&ER 99,737 594,404 (338,268) 355,873
(b) Share capital (b) B&
2017 2016
Number of Number of
shares shares Total
BRGEE & B
000 $°000 7000 $’000
F B Tt F A& Tt
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares of $0.1 each S E{E0.1 LA LB 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHE :
At 31 December ®nt+=—BA=+—8H 997,365 99,737 997,365 99,737

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to one vote per share at general meetings of the

Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the Company’s residual assets.

AR AR RS RGR S -
EHREAARREAT ETHAE—BRHE
—E - A RAREAAANHSEENS
CESIES TR
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26 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by the Company’s Bye-laws and the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

(ii) General reserve

General reserve is provided by each of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries at 10% of their net profit after tax,
based on the relevant subsidiary’s PRC statutory

financial statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up capital

of the relevant subsidiary.

iii) Contributed surplus
(iii) P

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001, the
Company became the holding company of the
Group. The excess of the consolidated net assets
represented by the shares acquired over the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the reorganisation in 2001 was
transferred to contributed surplus. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus

is available for distribution to shareholders.

(iv) Other reserve

(v)

In 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with
a fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining 8%
equity interests in a subsidiary, KM-Vision Limited
at a consideration of $1,211,000, resulting in a
premium of $605,000. The additional investment
was accounted for as an equity transaction and the
premium was recognised directly in sharcholders’

equity.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with

the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).
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26 BRAER@EE @

(c) REZHMEERAR
(i) Bt7aE
B £ )48 18 B 1O B AR 2 AR 2 ] O 2 R AR R
RBFRE-NN—F(RRERHR -

(ii) —REE
A5 B &P BB A R AR R B
BRI BAEMBREAEORH
RALFIE 10% BA—RRIEEM

—REHETANEHEEMNR2AERRE
BRBRRNBARMNEHRRA -

(iii) EH &2 &

RE—ZFT-FOKEEME ARAK
ABAKBENERAR - RAEEFER
RIEMBERNBLARRAR_FTT—F
RIRE MG S ER ] M FETHRGE
B ZERRCRARHAR REB
RE-NN—FKRBREIRTE  BEREAE
BRADREE TR

(1V)ﬁ/@ﬁ#f§
REER-_ZETLFH-RARWBAA
R — W - LA1,211,000 T AR B U
85 E B B 2 B KM Vision Limited F#RH)
8% MY AR + PTEE A& 8 /5 605,000 7T © Ut
BIMEETIUARERZINE  BEEE
RIRR R PR ©

(v) HERRE
SN (4 5 0 35 R B B0 DA S0 2 T 1 7 3R
REENFAELLZE RSB HLR
B 1) PRI MO B ERSR A2



26 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vi) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company was $256,136,000 (2016:
$254,802,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the Directors did not propose a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: $Nil) (note 9(a)).

(d) Capital management
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a

reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not
have any bank borrowings. The Group had bank deposits
and cash balance as at 31 December 2017 amounting to

$250,305,000 (2016: $397,954,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.

27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arising from the normal course of its business.
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management

policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

26 BRARFESE)

(c) REESHMERARE)
(vi) & HY 7] 7 T 1
RZE—+F+A=+T—H A5k
TR AR S RFE R 256,136,000
JTL(Z =T — 75 254,802,000 7T ) ° 7 3R
HHRE  EETEEMREBEE=_ZT—t
FH+ZA=+—BLEFERERARE
ZE—RF  Tn) (i @) °

(d) EAxgE
AEEERARNEE QS REARE
IR E R BB - TR AR K
THREEOESRREEE  ARESAE
RAMBE  BEAREREDRR AR
B E RIS -

RZE—EtFERZFT—RF+ZA=+—
A AEETETABITEE - AEER
T+ FE+ A=+ -—HORTEZRE
I{ & & 8 /250,305,000 (= & — X & :
397,954,000 7T ) ©

AEBBEERMEHHEEARBRA R X
B DERSBERERIER T TN
BoEEKTFRRFNENRATROES
MREZEEBETE  YHERBEERENE
fEHERREEL AR -

27 MREREEREMIANDAEE

AEENBEEXRBBRIECELER RPEE
MEREERR - ZEFRABRI TEANEEMBE
BBR R MOER S -

(a) EEAR
AEBNEERREEREBRERRE
ERER  SRERA—EEEERE I8

SEERELERERR

20174k ER e EEER AR
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 IBEREEREHMIANAAEER

of financial instruments (continued) (&)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) FERR(E)
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all AEEHMBEERBRAE TEBREENRF
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. HEITEBEEN G ANEE—RETEEH
Customers of media sales business and insurance EEBMRBELETNRL D B0 B K60
brokerage business are generally granted credit terms HEEH mMAmEEEBNEPAIAESR
of 90 days and 60 days, respectively, while customers R —REL T0E0ENEER - A&
of merchandising business either pay on delivery or E — AT M & P YR R o

are generally granted credit terms of 30 to 90 days.

Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from

customers.

Bank deposits and cash at bank are normally placed RITERRIBITRS —REFTHREETR
with licensed banks that have credit ratings equal to or HERIERAEEMIFERT - ERERE
better than the Group. Given their high credit ratings, BEGE S BRI B EAFEIRT
management does not expect any licensed bank to fail to SEEABITERR -

meet its obligations.

The Group has not provided any guarantee which would AEBWERBEEMOESAEBRBKAR A
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk. HAREERRAER -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s AEBRGEWREZNEERRNEEER
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable REIE 18 EE— P EE -

are set out in note 18.

(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBELRER
Individual operating entities within the Group are REEETEBLCEEREEEEINES
responsible for their own cash management, including EE pIEEEERUREEHNESS
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, X MEEREEBBERNSE TEEK
subject to approval by the Company’s Board of Directors T RIAESAAREEENIE AEH
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined MNBRAETHERERESTE © UER
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly HgmannReME ke T Z2BBEI
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it BREANEHESRE  MTERRNR
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate BESHFE -

committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and longer term.
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 IBEREEREHMIANAAEER

of financial instruments (continued) (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBEEZEAR(E)
The Company also monitors closely the cash flows of its RAABINMEYERAWBEARINBERRE -
subsidiaries. Generally, the Company’s subsidiaries are —RME  AAANMBRARERNRESR
required to obtain the Company’s approval for activities BMRIEIRE E5EERRBHHBBE T LERD
such as investment of surplus cash, raising of loans and HrE B EE R EVG A A RIHLE o

settlement of suppliers’ invoices beyond certain limits.

The following tables show the remaining contractual TRETNBEHARATNEENETESHE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the BB TELEER  HIREALREIRIR
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are enE(BEEAGOMNEFTENT MR -
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including Sl R F B A - AIRB R R E B REE A
interest payments computed using contractual rates MEABE)MNEBERAEBENZEERBHEME
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the H

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be

required to pay:

2017 2016
Contractual undiscounted
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow cash outflow
ANRERR ST AORERRER
Within ~ More than ~ More than Carrying Within Carrying
Iyear  Iyearbut 2 years but amount [ year amount
or on less than less than at 31 or on at 31
demand 2 years 5 years Total ~ December demand Total December
BE-F  BERF R+=A R+=A
-FRg BHR BHR Er=F —ERg =+-H
REXE k3 ik a  NREE  NEE @ WEEE
$°000 $7000 $°000 $7000 §000 $°000 $000 $°000

T fr T T T T T T

Accounts payable ERER 29 — — 29 29 1,977 1,971 1,977
Amount due to ultimate ERZEIERAR
e 7% - - - - _ : ; :
ERRZNE
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries A &]FUR — — — — — 1,065 1,065 1,065
Other payables and A ERERR
accruals (excluding EHER
deferred income) (TETIRA) 44,306 - — 44,306 44,306 34,505 34,505 34,505
Provision for onerous BEaH
e B 545 - - 545 545 14,455 14455 14,455
Finance lease liabilities BEHEAE 183 183 457 823 T4 — — —
45,063 183 457 45,703 45,621 52,005 52,005 52,005
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(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
It is the Group’s policy to monitor market conditions
closely and devise suitable strategies against interest
rate risk. The Group regularly reviews its strategy
on interest rate risk management in the light of the

prevailing market condition.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities

at the end of the reporting period.

27 MEEABREEREMIANAAEE

(&)

(c) F=mE
AEENBRASEDNERMSMAR - URE
MM ERRNSERE AEEREE
AT A TS AR - E B AR A L A 2 e B o I R

B o

(i) FIEH#R
TRAJIAEBRRE R RO BEE
BB BRI REER

2017 2016
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BERERE BIRFEH =
% $°000 % $°000
=R Tt Btk Tt
Fixed rate liabilities: BEXMZRERE :
Finance lease liabilities BIEHEARE 4.8 741 — —
Fixed rate assets: BERREE :
Bank deposits (including RITTER
pledged deposits) (BFEEEMAFER) 1.5 218,479 1.5 370,739
Loan receivable e E =X 8.0 26,400 —
244,879 370,739
Variable rate assets: SHANREE :
Cash at bank RTRE 0.3 67,521 0.1 47,852
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 IBEREEREHMIANAAEER
of financial instruments (continued) (%)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(c) RIEEE(E)
(ii) 8BEDH

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses by approximately $547,000
(2016: $459,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after tax
(and accumulated losses) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s loss
after tax (and accumulated losses) is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed

on the same basis as for 2016.

R-TB—tE+—H=+—8 " 47
KEREF TR 100EED - BREFTAE
HihEERB[TE  AEBMOKRKEE
BRRFTEIE R D8 IN4) 547,000 7T
(ZZ—7X% : 459,0007T) °

bR GURE 5 T BRUR RER A R R 3RS
REBREHECAREFFELREE R
R TA(SASENEEAREE
AREBEEMNERRE) - AIAEENRTIEL
BER(EZRFABER)SHRANNKES -
BARANERERBERMRAFTHE B =X
FITESRMTAMELANRESRENX
B BAKEEREEBEB(RRFE
BINEE  SUNMETEFHHEFE WA
FREFEERMT DWEER T
—NFHAEER
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(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

27 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which

they relate.

27 BEAREERSMIANAAEE
()
(d) EHEB
2R 251 A 5 8 B R A 23 B T 9 A 4

et
E¥RE uﬁlJ{EE’JéfE&ELﬁﬁﬁé‘i& HIR

AR SRR

Exposure to foreign currencies NS | Bl
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B E
2017 2016
usb RMB usp RMB
EpH ARM =PI AR
$°000 $°000 $’000 $’000
T T F Tt
Pledged bank deposits SIEBETER 31,183 — 68,343 —
Bank deposits and cash HRITEREERSE 93,139 25,131 57,165 22,292
124,322 25,131 125,508 22,292

In addition, the Group is exposed to currency risk
arising from inter-company receivables and payables
denominated in Renminbi which is not the functional
currency of either the lender or the borrower.
The net inter-company receivables amounted to
RMB122,369,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB122,454,000).

The following table indicates how a change in Renminbi
against Hong Kong dollar at the end of the reporting
period would have affected the Group’s results for the

year and other components of equity.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017

gboh - AREBEEUARE GEERASERFH
THEEEHE ) 51| BR /92 ) Fl R UK AR 30 % B 1+ BR SRR P 2
ERMEERR e R-E—+FE+_-_A=+—8"
A A B WGRIBF 58 A A R 122,369,000 TT(ZF
—NE  ARM 122,454,000 7T) °
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 IBEREEREHMIANAAEER
of financial instruments (continued) (%)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mB (&)

2017 2016

Decrease/ Decrease/

(increase) (increase)

Increase/ in loss for Increase/ in loss for
(decrease) the year Effect on (decrease) the year Effect on
in foreign and other in foreign and other
exchange accumulated  components exchange  accumulated components
rate losses of equity rate losses of equity

KEE AEE
BER R HEfh BiERZq HEf
Exith/  FERY/ BaEm  Exgn/  BEES/ ERAK
(HD) (M) PHHFE (H2) (gm)  Ihwge
$2000 $000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T T T
Renminbi ARE 3% 5,166 — 3% 4,760 —
)% (5,166) - ()% (4760) .

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rate had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to currency risk at the end of the
reporting period, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower, and that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remain constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the linked rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollar against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the effects on
cach of the Group entities’ results after tax and equity
measured in their respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis as for 2016.

Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place either through the People’s Bank of China or other

institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies.

FREIMIBREXZHEAREFAELE
EfFAENERTA MZEILASAKENE
SHAREmEINERR  BREAEEARRENE
AT RAE TR WAL E B IA SN B B E 1O e 1S BR
TR EWER - BREMBEMEHBCCERF
R)EFIE - Bt E - AEERKRETTLEM
EREENEMNEHHIEHE TR THNBE
EXELBATE - LRAVOMBERREAE
BEEBAENEERFENRTREEARES
MBEHFE YRR BERRNBITER LG
B TTRER S A% - DITEER B —XFff
FHYAER] °

ARBIEFAT2EHEBNER - IEFRA
REMINERZFVABBTEARRITHEME
REREINSHMEETT -
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27 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried

at other than fair value

All financial instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost are carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
except that amounts due from/to ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed repayment terms. Given these

terms it is not meaningful to disclose their fair values.

28 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

At 31 December 2017, the Group had the following
capital commitments in relation to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment and investment in

subsidiaries not provided for in the financial statements:

27 BBEARBEERERIENDIAEE

(&)

(e) DREEE
WHERAAEBEIENEHBEER B EH L
AEHE

RZE—+tFR=FT—R"F+=ZA=+—H
MARBEMEEAEZE  HEK BN
IRYERR N B K [ K BT B 2 R ZRIB A IR
RERERTERY ERMEFGRNK - KE
HRARBEHNEETAK -

28 RIE

(a) BEXEE
RZT—tF+_A=+—8  AEEIXK
R BRXELBENEREENE  KE
BERMBARIREREARRENT

2017 2016
$°000 $’000
T T

Contracted for 2HEITENE
Property, plant and equipment L E N 1,960 —
Investment in subsidiaries MiEBARIRE 11,524 —
13,484 -
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28 Commitments (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

()

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of property and equipment

are payable as follows:

28 FAREE)
(b) &R

RZE—+EF+ZA=+—8 XEERE
BEMERREBEHTAIEHKEHERMNH
ARKELSEFEWAT :

2017 2016
$°000 $’000
T Fr
Within 1 year —F R 5,028 3,350
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR 1,829 2,970
6,857 6,320

The Group leases property and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the leases when
all terms are renegotiated. The leases do not include any

contingent rentals.

Other commitments

Under certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media
sales agency and management business on selected bus
shelters, (ii) solicit advertising business in respect of the
interior and exterior panels of buses operated by KMB
and Long Win Bus Company Limited (“Long Win”),
and (iii) solicit advertising business on billboards and
other advertising spaces owned by independent third
parties, the Group has committed to pay licence fees
or royalty fees at a pre-determined percentage of the
net advertising rental received, subject to a guaranteed
minimum amount, as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
Such licences will expire in periods ranging from
2018 to 2022. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
has committed to pay licence fees at a pre-determined
percentage of the net advertising rental received, subject
to a guaranteed minimum amount for exclusive licences
to conduct media sales management services for BUS-TV
business on buses operated by KMB and Long Win. The
future minimum guaranteed licence fees and royalty fees

are payable as follows:

(©)

AEBERBLALEEERAMERRE - HE
NERP—ERF - WAIREHNERE L IE
RILEX - HETBREARAEE -

HAethRig
RZE—+FRZB-RE+_A=+—
A BEASEHERETORAFEE TR
B EREHEREREEEY G
NEREEERTERAR(REEDMEER
TH) BN EB R B & HNER R S AT R
BRGHMBYLE=FHREHESIR R EA
BEMETESEBHNBRETE A58
EABEMEERESHS FENBELEER
DLHBRNEHFEXZNE  HAEZXRERE
SRR - ZERFTERN T T —N\FE
—E—FHEER - RZE-RFT+ZA
=t+—H AEEEAHLERAEREESHES
FRENBELETEDLBNETE  HEAX
RNAEREEMELEEL FHNE LT ERER
RHEEHEEERBOBRETENRK
RECEMR - ENARZEREBFTER
ENMEBHOT :
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A (E)
(c) EfbsE ()

28 Commitments (continued) 28

(c) Other commitments (continued)

2017 2016

$°000 $’000

T Tt

Within 1 year —F RN 180,432 173,024
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREBRFEAN 400,767 365,279
581,199 538,303

The above licences typically run for an initial period R — IR A R E A3 E 72
B MmETHTERBSEEZFTENERE

% EREIRRAENREE °

of 32 to 72 months, and certain of the licences contain
an option to renew the licence when all terms are

renegotiated.

BERKEF

A ERIEE BRI A TES 5 BIED) A KR
B BCIR (B {65 ) ) 1 92 3 0 4 B 3RS 9 11 2 T
SHBRBLHED RESHBREAK

29 Employee retirement benefits 29

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory

Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed

under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
cach required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to the MPF

Scheme vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of Mainland China, the

Group participated in employee pension schemes organised

FORRETEl - RBEVEERBEERE - BRE®RES
E EFREESHARGEELHESHNES
B A s MR MEAFEKRAN ERR
30,000 7T ° S8R B ETEIHR BN ERE ©

REBEFERZER  ARE2EHREARFANBEL
AN T RFERNEBERARSE - AEER

by the local governments under which the Company’s HEEBIOT ¢

subsidiaries were governed. Details of the schemes of the

Group are as follows:

Contribution rate

Administrator Beneficiary MR
BEA FHA 2017 2016
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Centre Employees 20% 19%-20%
IERTHEREESEER L EE

The Group did not employ any staff in Mainland China
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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30 Material related party transactions

In

addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group has the

following related party transactions during the year:

30 EEAEALTHNEKRRS

BRAMEREREMAMARENRZ S REHY
AEERFRAEATBREALHNRS

N s

Expenses/(income)
B (BA)
2017 2016
Note $°000 $’000
B EE T T
Licence fee and service fees for conducting P+ ERERESS
BUS-TV business Y R7% & (i) 10,942 20,897
Licence and royalty fees paid for the right MIHEER HRE = EEMHE
to sell advertising space on bus shelters e R ERNE (ii) 21,076 19,727
Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising B -85 g 7 36 i 4 fi7 £ 17
business at advertising space on bus interiors EBEEBHNENSNESE (iii) 18,927 22,250
Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising ~ FAE-E HINBEEMETT
business at advertising space on bus exteriors  E& EBHEFMETE (iv) 86,552 103,504
Rental expenses HEER v) - 715
Management fee and sales rebate ERERHEER (vi) 9,592 23,676
Service fee paid for logistic function BB RS MRGE (vii) 245 490
Mobile data subscription fees REEIEREE (viii) 681 1,499
Key management personnel remuneration FTEEEAE#ME (ix) 11,012 9,809
Consideration received from disposal of audio  HEFZRMEE W
and visual equipment RIE (x) (2,000) —
Shortfall of guaranteed rental REBEHESH T EEE (xi) (4,969) —
Compensation for capital investment BRI ENRE (xii) (7,500) —
Notes: Bt -

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Licence fee and service fees were paid to subsidiaries of Transport
International Holdings Limited (“TIH”) for conducting BUS-TV
advertising business on buses operated by KMB and fitted with the
BUS-TV broadcasting system. The amount payable by the Group as at
31 December 2016 amounted to $706,000.

Licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising spaces
on certain bus shelters owned by a subsidiary of TIH. The amount
receivable by the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
$600,000.

Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for soliciting advertising
business in respect of the interior panels and other interior spaces
inside the compartments of buses operated by KMB. The amount
receivable by the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
$23,000.

() BHERREEREANERLENEL ENELER
BREZSGETETEREESEH I M FEBBEEERE
BAR([EBDOMBARNER - R=ZT— X F+=
A=+—8 ' N&EEEFRIE R 706,000 TT °

(i) BHHRBFERERHERBNBARMESNET
BErRE=ESAIANER - R_2T—~F+=A
=+—8 ' NEBEKFKIEA 600,000 TT ©

(i) FHHBERERANEMEENE THERANIPES TR
HiBERASBMNEETESER N FHABHE AR
ER - RZE—N"E+-A=1+—8  AEERKZHE
723,000 7T ©
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30 Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for marketing, displaying
and maintaining advertisements at the exterior panels of the bodies of

30 FEEATHNEARR S (&)
Kt - (&)

(iv)

R ERERM SN  RTIRESESNNEMEE
MELTWESIIFREMAIN THAENBARNE

buses operated by KMB. The amount receivable by the Group as at 31 Be-R—E—R"F+_A=+—8 AEEERKZKEL
December 2016 amounted to $167,000. 167,000 JT °
Rental expenses were paid to a subsidiary of TIH for leasing of vy AEEAMREWMESLBZTIL(ZZT—/NF 1 715,000 7T)
properties amounted to $Nil (2016: $715,000). The amount payable MEBENBARSNBEERRE R=2T—X "FEF+=A
by the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted to $Nil. =+—H  KAEEEMFREBELEZT -
Management fee amounting to $10,207,000 (2016: $22,354,000) and vi)y AEERREEEETREZEERRERENES
write back of over-provision of sales rebate amounting to $615,000 HAERAG([EeREE]) X NEREE 10,207,000 TL(ZF
(2016: provision of sales rebate amounting to $1,322,000) were paid — N4 ¢ 22,354,000 70 ) K $H & BB EE B ER B B £ 58
to JCDecaux Cityscape Limited (“JCDecaux Cityscape”), a fellow 615,000 TC( —F — 754 « $HE R FNE 5 1,322,0007T)
subsidiary of a non-controlling sharcholder of a subsidiary of the ZARRARNT BRI EERREARRME A A
Company, for the provision of management and agency services in RBEHR  ENFESESNFEAZT(ZE—X
relation to bus shelters. The amount payable to JCDecaux Cityscape at £ 1 212,0007T) °
the end of the reporting period amounted to $Nil (2016: $212,000).
The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Cityscape for the logistic iy ARERESEYRAAEEREEHE HIREZHER
function provided to the Group in relation to the bus shelters under EXBETHNERYRGSOESEEIMREE - RR
the media sales business. The amount due to JCDecaux Cityscape at LR BN T ESESMNZREAST T(ZZT—RF:
the end of the reporting period amounted to $Nil (2016: $41,000). 41,000 7T) ©
(viii) Mobile data subscription fees were paid to a subsidiary of a substantial ity MBEEAPBERERADBEBRERRGE N THAE
shareholder of the TIH for mobile data transmission services. The ERRNNBARINER NR_TE—A"F+-A=1+—
amount payable by the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted to H - RNEEENFKIEA 125,000 7T ©
$125,000.
Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts paid (ix)y FTEBEBAENMNES(BEWE7MBREXMNTAAA
to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the BEEMRELNESMIEEINTFETERSFSEEN
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: FIE)ITE :
2017 2016
$°000 $’000
Fr T
Short-term employee benefits HAE B R F 10,926 9,719
Post-employment benefits BEERZ R A 86 90
11,012 9,809
Consideration was received from disposal of audio and visual x) HEBEBHONBRAANEEYEXEMKRMHRES
equipment from a subsidiary of TIH amounted to $2,000,000 (2016: 2,000,000 TC(ZF—RF : TjL) c RZZF—ARF+=A
$Nil). The amount receivable by the Group as at 31 December 2016 =+—8 AEEEWZEBEAST -
amounted to $Nil.
Shortfall of guaranteed rental was received from JCDecaux Cityscape (xi) RESREE M T EEHEE T2 F 885 & RS U ER
in connection with the provision of media sales services for transit REHEOTRE(ZE—AF: Tx) R=ZT—L
vehicle shelters (2016: $Nil). The amount receivable by the Group as F+ZA=+—B AKREEREFERET(ZZ—X
at 31 December 2017 amounted to $Nil (2016: $Nil). F:Fx) e
Compensation was paid to JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with (xii) RETFEEZEEBENEAREEY N FESEEMN

the capital investment of bus shelter panels (2016: $Nil). The amount
payable by the Group as at 31 December 2017 amounted to $Nil
(2016: sNil).

(xiii) TIH and its subsidiaries ceased to be related parties of the Group since

27 October 2017. As such, only transactions occurred for the period
from 1 January 2017 to 26 October 2017 are included in the above
related party transactions disclosures.
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30 Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(xiv) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of licence fees and rental
expenses payable to subsidiaries of TIH and management fee payable
to JCDecaux Cityscape above constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided on pages 21 to 26 of the annual report.

The related party transactions in respect of service fee paid for logistic
function payable to JCDecaux Cityscape, rental expense for leasing of
properties payable to a subsidiary of TIH, the mobile data subscription
fees payable to a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of TIH,
consideration received from disposal of audio and visual equipment
from a subsidiary of TIH, shortfall of guaranteed rental received from
JCDecaux Cityscape and consideration paid to JCDecaux Cityscape
for the capital investment of bus shelter panels constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

31 Immediate and ultimate controlling parties

At 31 December 2016, the Directors considered the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be KMB Resources Limited and TIH respectively.
KMB Resources Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands while TIH is incorporated in Bermuda and listed in
Hong Kong. TIH produces financial statements available for

public use.

On 27 October 2017, TIH entered into a Sale and Purchase
Agreement to transfer approximately 73.01% of the entire
issued share capital of the Group to Bliss Chance Global
Limited.

At 31 December 2017, the Directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Bliss Chance Global Limited and Bison Capital Financial
Holdings Limited respectively. Bliss Chance Global
Limited and Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited are
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Bison Capital
Financial Holdings Limited does not produce financial

statements available for public use.

30 BEREAEAITHNEARRS (#)

Hist - (&)

(xiv) BRABERZ S/ EmRRERE
BRENTEHEWNBRARNEIERAEER - URE
RTEaERENEEENEBEATZIEKRBERS
FFBEAERF(EER EMRAUETHATE) o £
AIETOAEZERTENEEHNRFRENEEF 26H ©

BRRRHRBEN TRESRANRBEE  stBEWE
BN THBMBARNEEER BN THRAZZRR
MBARMNRBRERFE  KEBNHBRRIHE
%2%?&1%%451@6’]&(5 fefEm R RE fﬂ%ﬁ’]?

RAKGETIBREZEERENERNREI N FER
ﬁﬂ’]ﬁf‘ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ@/\ix%%/ﬁ%fEEL %(m%i
EMABAEFHAE) o FRERHERRETE

mHRRNE M Aﬁﬂ’\ﬁ)ﬁgiﬂfi ©

31 EERBAERAT

R-ZE—R"E+-_A=+—H8 BEERAELE
ENEESRR REEERD A S 5 &KMB
Resources Limited 2838 © KMB Resources Limited 78
EEELESEMANY - mEEERRE R EE M
R RREAS L o SBRKEMBREAELR
ATBIE -

R_ZT—+tF+A-_++tH HBITIVEEW
#FUNEEAEE B ETRAL3.01%FE
ERKER AT

RZB—tF+-A=1t—H EFRARLFEHE
MEZEARIRERIZERARIDHIRESRIRE
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32 Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment,

intangible assets and goodwill

The Group reviews at the end of each reporting period
to identify any indication that the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets may be
impaired and test annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy

(see note 1(j)).

Such indications include physical damage of a property,
plant and equipment and a decrease in the revenue
derived from an intangible asset or property, plant
and equipment. In considering the impairment losses
that may be required for the property, plant and
equipment, intangible asset and goodwill of the Group,
their recoverable amounts need to be determined. The
recoverable amount of an intangible asset or property,
plant and equipment and assets or CGU to which the
goodwill has been allocated is based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on reasonable assumptions that represent
management’s best estimate of the range of economic

benefits from the asset over its remaining useful life.

(b) Provision for onerous contracts

The Group has entered into a number of licences and
other contracts related to its media advertising business.
Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under these licences and other contracts exceed the
expected economic benefits, a provision for onerous
contracts is recognised. The calculation of the provision
will involve the use of estimates. The provision for
onerous contracts is calculated by taking into account
the unavoidable costs that will be incurred under the
related licences and other contracts and deducting any
expected economic benefits to be derived from these
licences or other contracts. The expected economic
benefits are estimated based on the revenue expected to
be generated from advertisement placements committed
by customers while unavoidable costs are estimated
based on the signed non-cancellable contracts with
suppliers that the Group is obliged to honour, which is
the lower of the net costs of fulfilling the contracts and

the cost of terminating it.
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32 Accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(<)

Impairment of accounts receivable and other
receivables

The Group maintains impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of the debtors to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates of future cash flows
on the ageing of the accounts receivable balance and
debtors’ credit-worthiness. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by management when assessing
the credit-worthiness of each individual customer and
the collectability of each accounts receivable balance.
Any increase or decrease in impairment losses for bad

and doubtful debts would affect the Group’s results in

future years.

(d) Depreciation

()

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
Company reviews annually the useful life of an asset.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted

if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Contractual arrangements

Certain subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of
insurance brokerage services, which falls under the
scope of “Catalogue of Restricted Foreign Investment
Industries” and foreign investors are prohibited to invest

in such business.

The Group exercises control over these subsidiaries and
enjoys all economic benefits of these subsidiaries through

structured contracts o

The Group considers that it controls these subsidiaries,
notwithstanding the fact that it does not hold direct
equity interest in them, as it has power over the
financial and operating policies of these subsidiaries
and receives substantially all of the economic benefits
from their business activities through the structured
contracts. Accordingly, they have been accounted for as

subsidiaries during the year.
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33 AEHMBEARRT T

33 Company-level statement of financial

position
2017 2016
Note $°000 $’000
Mt aE Tt Tt
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARIIRE 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE LB B A B Fh 1B 103,094 94,753
165,929 157,588
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG 372,064 371,880
Other receivables and deposits HitEWEER MRS 476 735
Pledged bank deposits IR ITIER 98,248 78,343
Bank deposits and cash RITERRRE 119,647 149,600
590,435 600,558
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE{S BR AR R B F0R — 3
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A B) I8 273,849 262,077
Other payables and accruals HiENERRESER 6,265 5,707
280,114 267,787
Net current assets REBEESE 310,321 332,771
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRGEERE 476,250 490,359
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS T B A R 3R I8 120,377 135,820
NET ASSETS EEEE 355,873 354,539
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAERGES 26(a)
Share capital A& 2K 99,737 99,737
Reserves FHEL 256,136 254,802
TOTAL EQUITY s 355,873 354,539
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors meEEeN —T— \E=F+ABH# AT IFET
on 15 March 2018. % o
BIAN Fang ZHU Dong
w7 P
Executive Director Executive Director

HITEF HITEF
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34 Non-adjusting events after the reporting

period

(@)

(b)

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors
did not propose a final dividend. Further details are

disclosed in note 9(a).

On 23 January 2018, Bison Financial (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Bison Financial”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) to purchase the entire issued share capital
in Target Capital Management Limited (“TCM”) for
a consideration of $270,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).
Pursuant to the Agreement, among others, the vendors
of TCM shall procure the respective sharcholders of BTS
Investment Limited, BTY Investment Limited, NanTai
Investment Limited and Shangtai Asset Management
Limited (collectively, the “Subject Companies”), to
which TCM is the investment adviser of the Subject
Company’s offshore private equity funds, to sell the
entire issued share capital of the Subject Companies
to Bison Financial or any subsidiaries of the Company
at a nominal consideration of $1 each on or before the
completion of the Agreement. A special general meeting
of the Company will be held on 16 March 2018, details
of the transaction have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 January 2018 and circular dated
28 February 2018. Up to the date of approval of these
financial statements, the transactions have not yet been

completed.

34 FABBREHREE

(@) EFNMEHREDERIRERBME - £
— S BRI o) HEE -
(b) R—_E-—NEFE—/B— + H  Bison Financial

(Hong Kong) Limited ([ Bison Financial | * ZR 72 7]
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HEEREFEEERARAR(IREEES
B EBEBTRE - K(E % 270,000,000
T(TREEEIR]) - REZWH=HE (KPP EE)
REAEETEME AR EBTS Investment
NanTai

Limited * BTY Investment Limited *

Investment Limited M Shangtai Asset Management
Limited (FEH8 [ 32 F 2 A |) & B 8RR &% 1
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#Z 5 A RIH 2 HE BTN T Bison Financial
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(BREEHETI  HRBBTHE)

35 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following

which may be relevant to the Group.

35 EEMERBE-FT —

tH&+=A
=t —HIEFEERERNERT ~ #
B RBEUERERNEE

BEAPBHRETIZERS  BESFMASE
ﬁﬁ%lﬁﬁé\ﬁé:%—ti—kiﬁ:ﬂ——ﬁtig
WAREBMERT - MERNRRE - MARBERE
WERMZFER]  FERRE BRATH
GHEASERBNER] - EANRE -

Effective for
accounting
periods

beginning on

or after

RT3 B8R

ZERBBN

S BER

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
(BBHBRELANE S [SHTAS —N\E—A—§

HKEFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(ERMBHELRDE 155 - [FELHEATUAS

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

(BE(BERMBHRERBEREERE))E 0K [MEXZRENE

HKEFRS 16, Leases
(BEUBMELNDE 165  [HE]

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

(BE(BERMBHRERBERBERE))E 3% [FEHEENTHEEE]

1 January 2018
—N\F—A-H

1 January 2018
—N\F—A-H

1 January 2019
—h&—HA—H

1 January 2019
—hE—F—8
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35 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. While the assessment has
been substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ending 30 June 2018. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that financial

report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
HKFRS 9 introduces new

for financial instruments,
Recognition and measurement.
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, including the measurement of impairment for financial
assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the requirements
of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments and the classification and measurement of

financial liabilities.

HKEFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group
plans to use the exemption from restating comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s

financial statements are as follows.
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35 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

HKEFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure either a 12-month expected credit
loss or a lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the
asset and the facts and circumstances. The Group expects
that the application of the expected credit loss model will
result in earlier recognition of credit losses. The Group is in
the process of completing an assessment of the quantitative

impact of this amendment.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 requires the identification of separate
performance obligations and allocation of transaction price
to the performance obligations in the contract. An entity
typically allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling
prices of each distinct good or service promised in the
contract. An entity estimates the stand-alone selling price
if it is not observable. The transaction price may include a
discount. Except when an entity has observable evidence
that the entire discount relates to only one or more, but
not all, performance obligations in a contract, the entity
shall allocate a discount proportionately to all performance
obligations in the contract. The proportionate allocation of
the discount in those circumstances is a consequence of the
entity allocating the transaction price to each performance
obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling
prices of the underlying distinct goods or services. At
this stage, the Group is in the process of completing a
detailed analysis of the impact of the above to the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.
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35 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

HKEFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(q), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the

classification of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. Once HKFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases and
operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to
current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement
date of the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a
lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and
liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term.
As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply
this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to

be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

The Group expects HKFRS 16 will primarily affect certain
leases that are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to lead
to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on
the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of
profit or loss over the period of the lease. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking
into account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of

discounting.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TFERBHRE
For the years ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T

RESULTS ES
Revenue TN 348,449 407,511 411,946 459,462 462,002
Other revenue and Hilg A K&

other net income Hi g5 558 25,033 7,185 17,975 15,756 26,212
Total revenue PNk 373,482 414,696 429,921 475,218 488,214
(Loss)/profit from e (EE)

operations EF (15,210) (4,734) (41,137) 48,087 98,882
Gain on disposal of other HeEHo R

financial assets BERKZ — — — 36,603 —
Reversal of impairment loss  H A& @i & ZE R E

on other financial assets JE5 48 ¥ o] — — — — 25,611
Impairment loss on property, ME - BE &R

plant and equipment BB EE (37) (22,910) — — —
Reversal of provision/ B R E S EE

(provision for) onerous B U (B

contracts, net JRER 13,910 (14,455) — — —
(Loss)/ profit before BBiAT (B5E),

taxation BF (1,337) (42,099) (41,137) 84,690 124,493
Income tax Fris#i (6,190) (25) (4,892) (8,008) (15,871)
(Loss)/ profit KEE(EE)

for the year B (7,527) (42,124) (46,029) 76,682 108,622
Attributable to: AT :
Equity shareholders of the NN T

Company A= (6,577) (45,260) (47,913) 70,587 104,853
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE S (950) 3,136 1,884 6,095 3,769
(Loss)/profit rEE(FE)

for the year BF| (7,527) (42,124) (46,029) 76,682 108,622
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At 31 December

R+=A=+—8”
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETTT BT T BT T BB T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EE R & &
Property, plant and Y% - BE R
equipment B 15,491 13,629 32,125 39,255 48,938
Intangible assets WL EE — [ 189 2,441 o
Goodwill S 40,770 — — —
Non-current prepayments  JE7ENFE{ FHIE
and deposits Kize 3,218 1,523 14,502 7,444 12,484
Other non-current HiIER
financial assets S RVEE — — — 8,124
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEEE 7,042 10,393 4,775 4311 3,770
Net current assets REEEEE 428,964 475,427 494,199 623,316 611,265
Total assets less current BEERERRD
liabilities =K 495,485 500,972 545,790 676,767 684,581
Non-current finance lease FERDEERE
liabilities afE (590) o - o
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEBE (194) (138) (217) (125) (129)
Net Assets EEFE 494,701 500,834 545,573 676,642 684,452
Capital and reserves BEARRES
Share capital N 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves e 386,694 391,877 438,152 566,305 575,010
Total equity attributable NATIREE
to equity shareholders of e R
the Company Az 486,431 491,614 537,889 666,042 674,747
Non-controlling interests JEIERE RE S 8,270 9,220 7,684 10,600 9,705
Total Equity EREEHE 494,701 500,834 545,573 676,642 684,452
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY
RAEH

Board of Directors EE€ Annual General Meeting BREAFERE

?g%;;;xm Date & Time  : 8 June 2018 at 10:30 a.m.
Venue : Novotel Century Hong Kong

Dr MA Weihua™ Plaza 4, Lower Lobby

EEfEEL 238 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

. A HA & B D 2B \FANANBLEFTR=1T%

MH Bﬁ{ﬁ*‘gfmg b B L EAEIHEEREAEERERL

h TEASEE+ FERE

Mr ZHU Dong"

REEET Closure of Register of Members
EERERMBFELTFE

Dr QI DaqingA

A Bt For the purpose of ascertaining sharcholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting:

Mr CHEN Yigong’ 5 June 2018 to 8 June 2018 (both dates inclusive)

BRIN T %4 ‘ ‘ o .
AEERIALFREBFASTNE LIREMEF)

Mr FENG ZhonghuaA T \FEXNARHE-_ZE-NEXANB(BEEERE)

RIS

Registered Office s EE

* Executive Director Bi7TEE

# Non-Executive Director #1717 EF Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
) Independent Non-Executive Director BUIHNTEE Hamilton M1 Bermuda
Company Secretary 2 BHE Principal Office R E R
Ms Christine MAK Lai Hung Rooms 4105-06, 41/F, Hopewell Centre
AL 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
ACS, ACIS
Telephone . (852) 2165 3000
Registrars BREZIME Facsimile ¢ (852) 2165 3001
BEEFERRNBR183FKAMA L 411 4105-06 =

Hong Kong BB

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 171-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

B3 ©(852) 2165 3000
BE © o (852) 2165 3001
http: //www .bison.com.hk/

ﬁiﬁf%éﬁ%‘%é‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&i Auditors % 2T

BEBFERRNER 1835

AMPL 178 1712-1716 = KPMG
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong
EEE G ETS T

Bermuda BHE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building, 69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HMO8

BEPREIT B 10RATFAE s

Bermuda
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